
 
 

CITY OF BUELLTON 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting of June 27, 2013 – 6:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers, 140 West Highway 246 
Buellton, California 

 
Materials related to an item on this agenda, as well as materials submitted to the City Council after 
distribution of the agenda packet, are available for public inspection in the Office of the City Clerk, located 
at 107 West Highway 246, during normal business hours. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Judith Dale 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Vice Mayor John Connolly  
  
ROLL CALL 
 

Council Members Ed Andrisek, Leo Elovitz, Holly Sierra, Vice Mayor John Connolly, 
and Mayor Judith Dale 

 
REORDERING OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Speaker Slip to be completed and turned in to the City Clerk prior to commencement of meeting. Limited to 
matters not otherwise appearing on the agenda.  Limited to three (3) minutes per speaker.  No action will 
be taken at this meeting. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR                        (ACTION)       
The following items are scheduled for consideration as a group.  Any Council Member, the City Attorney, 
or the City Manager may request that an item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to allow for full 
discussion. 

 
1. Minutes of June 13, 2013 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
2. List of Claims to be Approved and Ratified for Payment to Date for Fiscal Year 

2012-13 
 

3. Consideration of Amended and Restated Agreement with PAWS Parks of Santa 
Ynez Valley, Inc. 
 (Staff Contact: Recreation Coordinator Abello) 
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4. Consideration of Amended Agreement with Wallace Group for Fats/Oils/Grease 
(FOG), Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP), and Industrial Discharge (ID) 
Programs Implementation 
 (Staff Contact: Public Works Director Hess) 
 

5. Consideration of Contract with the Kosmont Company for Economic Development 
Services 
 (Staff Contact: Interim City Manager Bierdzinski) 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS      
 
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
COUNCIL ITEMS 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
BUSINESS ITEMS                    (POSSIBLE ACTION) 
  
6. Acceptance of City of Buellton, California Financial Statements – June 30, 2012 

 (Staff Contact: Finance Director Muñoz) 
 

7. Resolution No. 13-11 – "A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, 
California, Adopting the Fiscal Year 2013-14 Budget" 
 (Staff Contact: Finance Director Muñoz & Interim City Manager Bierdzinski) 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT        
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, July 11, 2013 at 6:00 
p.m. 
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City Manager Review:  MPB 
Council Agenda Item No.:        1 

 

CITY OF BUELLTON 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
Regular Meeting of June 13, 2013 

City Council Chambers, 140 West Highway 246 
Buellton, California 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Judith Dale called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Council Member Holly Sierra led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

Present: Council Members Ed Andrisek, Leo Elovitz, Holly Sierra, Vice 
Mayor John Connolly and Mayor Judith Dale 

 
Staff: Interim City Manager Bierdzinski, City Attorney Ralph Hanson, 

Public Works Director Rose Hess, Finance Director Annette 
Muñoz, and City Clerk Linda Reid 

 
REORDERING OF AGENDA 

 
None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Don Landry, Buellton, requested that the City Council consider supporting the Zaca 
Station Motocross Track by sending a letter to Santa Barbara County and Mr. Landry 
explained that the Motor Cross Track provides a lot of revenue for the community. 
 
Pam Gnekow, Director of the Buellton Senior Center, thanked Interim City Manager 
Bierdzinski for effectively handling questions from the County of Santa Barbara 
regarding the Senior Center.  Ms. Gnekow provided a handout for the record from Santa 
Barbara County Human Services Commission regarding a “site visit and interview 
report” and that the Senior Center received an “outstanding rating” following the 
interview. 
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CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Minutes of May 23, 2013 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
2. List of Claims to be Approved and Ratified for Payment to Date for Fiscal Year 

2012-13 
3. Resolution No. 13-09 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, 

California, Acknowledging the Receipt of and Ordering the Filing of the Annual 
Statement of Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2013-14 with the City Council”  
 

4. Resolution No. 13-10 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, 
California, Establishing an Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 2013-14 Pursuant 
to Article XIII-B of the California Constitution”  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council approve the Consent Calendar as listed.   
 
MOTION: 
Motion by Vice Mayor Connolly, seconded by Council Member Sierra, approving the 
consent calendar as listed. 
 
VOTE: 
Motion passed by a roll call vote of 5-0. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
  

None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  
5. Resolution No. 13-07 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, 

California, Regarding the Commitments and Publishing the Report Required by 
Central Coast Water Authority Resolution Nos. 92-02 and 92-11” 

  
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council consider the approval and adoption of Resolution No. 13-07. 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
Public Works Director Hess presented the staff report. 
 
DOCUMENTS: 
Staff Report with attachment (Resolution No. 13-07) 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Mayor Dale opened the Public Hearing at 6:19 p.m.  There being no public comment, 
Mayor Dale closed the Public Hearing at 6:20 p.m. 
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MOTION: 
Motion by Council Member Andrisek, seconded by Council Member Elovitz, approving 
and adopting Resolution No. 13-07 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Buellton, California, Regarding the Commitments and Publishing the Report Required by 
Central Coast Water Authority Resolution Nos. 92-02 and 92-11” 
 
VOTE: 
Motion passed by a roll call vote of 5-0. 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Council Member Andrisek provided an oral report from the Central Coast Water 
Authority (CCWA) regarding water consumption and purchase.  Mr. Andrisek requested 
that staff prepare a proclamation for Bill Brennan’s retirement celebration at CCWA on 
June 27. 
 
Council Member Sierra announced that Muddy Madness took place on June 1 and was a 
great event. 
 

COUNCIL ITEMS 
 
 None 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
  

None 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
Council Member Sierra announced that she attended the Buellton Chamber of Commerce 
Board meeting and provided an oral report regarding the meeting. 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
6. Second Review of Fiscal Year 2013-14 Preliminary City Budget 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council review the Fiscal Year 2013-14 2nd Preliminary City Budget and 
provide direction to staff as to any desired changes, including funding for the Criterium. 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
Finance Director Munoz and Interim City Manager Bierdzinski presented the staff report. 
 
DOCUMENTS: 
Staff Report with attachments (Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-14 Preliminary City Budget) 
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SPEAKERS/DISCUSSION: 
The City Council discussed the following issues regarding the preliminary City budget: 

 Budget reserves and deficits 
 Mayor Dale provided a document for the record requesting funding for the 

Buellton Library; the Council discussed funding for the Buellton Library and a 
review of the budget mid-year for possible additional funding for the Library; the 
Council agreed to fund the Buellton Library in the amount of $9,000 by 
transferring $4,000 from the City Manager and Public Works Departments’ 
Travel and Training accounts and $5,000 that was to be used to fund the 2014 
Criterium 

 Funding request for the 2014 Criterium 
 Changing the budget format to separate Parks from Recreation 
 Recreation programs 
 Maintaining the City’s Parks 
 Golf Course maintenance 
 Year to date facility operating expenses  
 Adjusting the sewer revenue account to reflect the rate increase  

 
Ashlee Chavez, Lompoc Library Director, spoke about the funding request for the 
Buellton Library. 
 
Craig Adams, Buellton, discussed the Criterium funding request for 2014. 
 
DIRECTION: 
The City Council directed staff to bring this item back for adoption at the regular Council 
meeting scheduled for June 27, 2013. 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Interim City Manager Bierdzinski provided an informational report for the record. 
 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

City Attorney Hanson provided an informational report for the record. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Mayor Dale adjourned the regular meeting at 7:57 p.m.  The next regular meeting of the 
City Council will be held on Thursday, June 27, 2013 at 6:00 p.m.   

 
 

_________________________________ 
Judith Dale 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Reid 
City Clerk 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
 City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:      3 
 

To:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:    Kyle Abello, Recreation Coordinator 
 
Meeting date: June 27, 2013 
 
Subject: Consideration of Amended and Restated Agreement with PAWS 

Parks of Santa Ynez Valley, Inc. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
On June 26, 2008, the City and PAWS Parks of Santa Ynez Valley, Inc. (PAWS) entered 
into a Private/Public Partnership Agreement for the development of an off-leash dog park 
at Sharon Place Park.  The original agreement included a grant for the construction of the 
dog park and established responsibilities on the part of PAWS for the operation and 
landscape maintenance of the dog park and on the part of the City for maintaining the 
basic infrastructure and providing water to the site.   
 
Since that time, PAWS has developed an energetic Board of Directors and made strides 
in improving landscaping and operations at the dog park.  At the direction of Council, 
they are now working with the Parks and Recreation Commission to research possible 
surface improvements for the dog park.  
 
With the recent inclusion of PAWS in the regular budget planning cycle and several other 
proposed modifications to the Agreement, Staff has attached an Amended and Restated 
Agreement for your consideration.  Among the minor changes to the Agreement are:  
clarification of infrastructure maintenance responsibilities, adding PAWS participation in 
various City events, and changing the agreement term to one year renewal periods.   
 
Staff recommends that the Council consider approval of the Amended and Restated 
Agreement with PAWS Parks of Santa Ynez Valley, Inc. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 
This item, in itself, will have no fiscal impact to the City. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City Council consider approval of the Amended and Restated Agreement with 
PAWS Parks of Santa Ynez Valley, Inc. 
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ATTACHMENT 

 
Attachment 1 - Amended and Restated Agreement with PAWS Parks of Santa Ynez 
Valley, Inc. 
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AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT 

PAWS Parks of Santa Ynez Valley, Inc. 
and 

City of Buellton 
 

 This AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made 
and entered into effective as of the 27th day of June, 2013, by and between the CITY OF 
BUELLTON, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and PAWS Parks of Santa 
Ynez Valley, Inc., a non-profit corporation duly organized and operated under the laws of 
the State of California (“PAWS”). 

I.  RECITALS 

A.  The City owns Sharon Place Park (“Park”), generally located at the 
northeast corner of La Pita Place and Dawn Drive in the City of Buellton. 

B.  PAWS is composed of persons with an interest in developing, operating, 
and maintaining an off leash, fenced dog park (“PAWS Park”) described in Exhibit “A”, 
which is incorporated herein and made a part hereof.  

C.  On June 26, 2008, PAWS and the City entered into a Private/Public 
Partnership Agreement (the “Original Agreement”) for the development of an off-leash 
dog park at Sharon Place Park. 

 
D. On February 13, 2009, PAWS and the City entered into an Amendment 

No. 1 to the Original Agreement to increase the grant for development of the Park in an 
amount not to exceed Ninety Five Thousand Dollars ($95,000.00). 

 
E. It is the desire of the City and PAWS to again modify the terms of the 

Original Agreement to enhance public benefit, use and the utilization of PAWS Park and, 
therefore, desire to enter into this Agreement. 

 
II.  AGREEMENT 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and 
conditions contained herein, the City and PAWS agree as follows: 

A.  Purpose of Agreement 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the terms and conditions to 
enable the City and PAWS to work together to provide PAWS Park to be located in the 
Park as shown in Exhibit “A”. 

It is the further purpose of this Agreement to set forth the responsibilities 
of the parties as to the financing, construction, maintenance and use of PAWS Park. 
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1.  City Responsibilities 

A. The City shall provide a site for PAWS Park generally depicted and 
described in Exhibit “A”. 

B. The City shall provide a grant in an amount not to exceed Ninety Five 
Thousand Dollars ($95,000.00) for the development of the site as reasonably necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of this Agreement.  Development of the site shall include the 
installation of fencing, access ramps, drinking fountains, benches and other amenities and 
improvements usual to a facility of this nature.  Such grant may be made in increments 
solely determined by the City based upon need of PAWS Park.  

C. The City will appoint the City’s Recreation Coordinator as the City liaison 
to the PAWS. 

D.  The City will provide water to PAWS Park at no cost to PAWS. 

E. The City will provide construction plans and specifications for the 
proposed improvements. 

F. The City will be responsible for the maintenance of PAWS Park, including 
but not limited to, all landscaping maintenance by a licensed professional landscaper, 
repair of all installed infrastructure (ADA ramp, handrails, retaining walls, hillside 
failures, chain link gates entrances and concrete pads, benches, perimeter fencing, waste 
bag dispensers and cans, hose bibs, etc.), repair of vandalism, and removal of graffiti. 

G. The City shall remove graffiti from the Site no longer than five (5) 
working days following notice by PAWS. 

2.  PAWS Responsibilities 

A. Prior to the City’s commitment to a grant for PAWS Park, PAWS shall 
submit written plans for the operation and maintenance of PAWS Park for 
the City Council’s approval. 

B. PAWS shall have the following responsibilities under this agreement: 

1.  General Maintenance 

(a) PAWS will work with the City and City's landscaper to direct 
needed landscaping and maintenance to the grounds, be responsible, with 
the City's landscaper, for keeping PAWS Park grounds free of dog solid 
waste and litter abatement. 

(b) PAWS will report incidences of graffiti and vandalism to the 
Public Works Department of the City within 24 hours. 
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2. Repairs and Financial Responsibility 

PAWS will be responsible for all maintenance and repair of 
damage to improvements (not included in Section 1. F., above) installed 
by PAWS, including, subterranean drip lines, auto fill water bowls, etc.  
PAWS agrees to fund maintenance and repairs to irrigation drip lines, 
water bowl gravel areas, dirt path and other minor items included in the 
PAWS budget.  In case of a conflict as to responsibility, the City and 
PAWS agree to meet and determine financial responsibility. 

  3. Operation of the PAWS Park  

(a) PAWS Park maintained by PAWS shall be open to the public. 
Hours of operation of PAWS Park shall be the same as the general City 
park hours. Any change in hours shall require the consent of the City. 

(b) Special events may be held at PAWS Park subject to the 
approval of the City who may impose permit requirements with reasonable 
conditions for the conduct of any such event. 

(c)  PAWS agrees to participate with City in selected City 
sponsored community events to promote the operation and use of the 
PAWS Park. 

(d) PAWS may construct such improvements as walkways and 
planters on the property at its own expense with the prior approval of the 
City Manager or his or her designee. Said improvements shall be 
considered the property of PAWS during the term of this Agreement and 
PAWS shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of said 
improvements.  Removal of the improvements shall be the responsibility 
of the PAWS.  

(e) On termination of this Agreement, PAWS shall have the right 
to remove any improvements in a manner reasonably acceptable to the 
City Manager or his or her designee. Any improvements not removed by 
PAWS within three months’ time shall become the property of the City. 

3.  PAWS Park 

PAWS Park is subject to City established park use requirements and shall be 
available to the general public and operated under the general terms and conditions 
regarding the Park. 
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4.  Term and Termination 

This Agreement shall have a term of one (1) year commencing on the effective 
date first set forth in this Agreement.  On the annual anniversary of the Agreement, the 
term shall be automatically renewed for additional one year term without notice to City or 
PAWS. The City may terminate this Agreement at any time, without cause, upon thirty 
(30) day’s written notice to PAWS.  PAWS may terminate this Agreement at any time, 
without cause, upon thirty (30) day’s written notice to City. 

5.  Default 

If either Party is in default in the performance of any of the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party shall cause to be served upon the defaulting 
Party a written notice of the default. The defaulting Party shall have thirty (30) days after 
service upon it of said notice to cure the default by rendering satisfactory performance. In 
the event that the defaulting Party fails to cure its default within such period of time, the 
non-defaulting Party shall have the right, notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, to terminate this Agreement without further notice and without prejudice to 
any other remedy which it may be entitled at law, in equity or under this Agreement.  If 
such default by a Party arises out of causes generally considered to be force majeure, it 
shall not be considered a default. 

6.  Indemnification and Insurance 

A.  The City agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
PAWS, its governing board, its officers, agents and employees from every claim or 
demand or expense of any nature whatsoever, including but not limited to injury to or 
death of person(s) or damage to any property which arises as a result of the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the City, its officers, agents or employees in the performance of 
this Agreement. 

B.  PAWS agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
the City, its City Council members, its officers, agents, and employees from every claim 
or demand or expense of any nature whatsoever, including but not limited to injury to or 
death of person(s) or damage to any property which arises as a result of the negligence or 
willful misconduct of PAWS, its officers, agents or employees in the performance of this 
Agreement. 

7.  Notices 

Any notices to be given hereunder by either party shall be in writing and may be 
delivered personally or by mail. Mailed notices shall be sent to the address of the parties 
to be notified which appears below, but each party may change its address by written 
notice given in accordance with this paragraph. Notices delivered personally will be 
deemed communicated as of actual receipt. Mailed notices will be deemed communicated 
and received as of ten (10) calendar days following the date of mailing of the notice. 
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CITY OF BUELLTON                         City of Buellton 
Attn: City Manager 
107 W. Highway 246 
P.O. Box 1819 
Buellton, CA 93427 
 

            PAWS PARKS OF    PAWS Parks of Santa Ynez Valley, Inc. 
 SANTA YNEZ VALLEY, INC.  P.O. Box 269 
       Buellton, CA 93427 
  
8.  Entire Agreement 

This Agreement supersedes the Original Agreement, as amended, any and all 
agreements, either oral or written, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject 
matter of this Agreement, and contains all of the covenants. 

9.  Governing Law 

This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. Any legal action in which enforcement of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement is requested, or in which it is alleged that a breach of the 
Agreement has taken place, shall be filed and prosecuted in the County of Santa Barbara, 
California. 

10.  Breach of Agreement 

If either party defaults in the performance of any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement, it shall have thirty (30) days after service upon it of written notice of such 
default in which to cure the default by rendering a satisfactory performance. In the event 
that the defaulting party fails to cure its default within such period of time, the non-
defaulting party shall have the right, notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, to terminate this Agreement without further notice and without prejudice to 
any other remedy to which it may be entitled at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. 
This failure of a party to object to any default in the performance of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of either that term or condition 
or any other term or condition of this Agreement. 

11.  Binding Arbitration 

The parties agree to submit any disputes arising out of this Agreement to a 
mutually agreeable mediator. Should this process fail to resolve the dispute, the parties 
agree to submit the matter to binding arbitration, in accordance with the commercial 
arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association. 
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12.  Attorney Fees 

If any legal proceeding, including an action for declaratory relief, is brought to 
enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled 
to reasonable attorney’s fees, which shall be set by the court in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which that party 
may be entitled. 

13.  Severability 

If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in 
full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

14.  Successors and Assigns 

A.  Neither party may assign its interest in this Agreement without the 
express written consent of the other party. 

B.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the parties to this Agreement. 

15.  Employees 

A.  For purposes of this Agreement, all persons employed in the performance 
of services and functions for the City shall be deemed City employees and no City 
employee shall be considered as an employee of PAWS under the jurisdiction of PAWS, 
nor shall such City employees have any PAWS pension, civil service, or other status 
while an employee of the City. 

B.  For purposes of this Agreement, all persons employed in the performance 
of services and functions for PAWS shall be deemed PAWS employees and no PAWS 
employee shall be considered as an employee of the City under jurisdiction of the City, 
nor shall such PAWS employees have any City pension, civil service, or other status 
while an employee of PAWS. 

16.  PAWS Park Program Costs 

Except as otherwise provided, neither party shall be responsible to the other party 
for the cost of its obligations under this Agreement. 

17.  Applicable Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of California and to the extent that there is any conflict between this 
Agreement and the laws of the State of California, the laws of the State of California 
shall prevail. 
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            IN WITNESS HEREOF, PAWS and the City have executed this Agreement 
effective as of the 27th day of June, 2013. 

 

PAWS Parks of Santa Ynez Valley, Inc. 
 
 

By: ________________________________   
       Darin Biamonte 
       President   

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Michael Peterson 
Secretary  

 

 

CITY OF BUELLTON  

 

____________________________________
Judith Dale 
Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Linda Reid 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 309



Page 21 of 309

Linda
Exhibit A



CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:      4 
 

 
To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Rose Hess, Public Works Director 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 
  
Subject: Consideration of Amended Agreement with Wallace Group for 

Fats/Oils/Grease (FOG), Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 
(SSMP), and Industrial Discharge (ID) Programs Implementation 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

The City of Buellton operates and maintains over 20 miles of sewer collection system 
and a 650,000 gallon per day design capacity wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).  Both 
the collection system and WWTP are subject to regulatory requirements issued by the 
State Water Resources Control (SWRCB) and the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB).   

There are two orders and permits under the SWRCB and RWQCB that regulate the city’s 
activities:  Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) Permit Order No. 99-134 and General 
Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems (SSSWDR) Order No. 2006-
003-DWQ. 

WDR Permit Order No. 99-134 – is regulated by the RWQCB and directs the City to 
regulate its Industrial Discharges and implement Pretreatment Program Activities to 
protect our publically owned treatment works (POTW) through managing user process 
wastewater discharges. 

 SSSWDR Order No. 2006-003-DWQ – is regulated by the SWRCB and requires the 
development and implementation of the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) and 
within that, regulates the Fats/Oils/Grease (FOG) Program.   

The Wallace Group has been implementing these programs for the City since 2008, 
assisting with the creation of the SSMP, performing system and program audits, 
providing inspection and outreach services to our businesses and providing permitting 
services.  Basically, the Wallace Group has ensured that the City has been in compliance 
with the above State regulations. 
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These programs affect all industrial/commercial businesses in the city, in particular, those 
that discharge waste from manufacturing or processing goods or consumables and 
restaurants and similar facilities.    

In order to provide continuity of services to the community, staff has worked with 
Wallace Group for the Scope of Services to be performed in the next fiscal year which 
includes revisions and updates to the SSMP, preparation of Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) for various processes, continued management of the FOG Program 
including inspections, reporting and permitting, and continued management of the 
Industrial Discharge/Pretreatment Program.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

This professional consulting service, estimated at $125,600, has been included in the 
draft FY 2013/14 budget currently under review.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the amended Agreement with Wallace 
Group and authorize the Interim City Manager to execute the Agreement. 

 

ATTACHMENT 
 

Attachment 1 – Wallace Group Agreement 
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AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF BUELLTON 
AND 

WALLACE GROUP 
 
 

This AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF BUELLTON AND WALLACE GROUP ("AGREEMENT") is made and entered into this 27th 
day of June 2013, by and among the City of BUELLTON a municipal corporation ("CITY") and 
WALLACE GROUP, a California Corporation (Wallace). 

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the 

parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 
 
Subject to the provisions of SECTION 19 "TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT" of 

this AGREEMENT, the term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year from the 
date of execution of this AGREEMENT, as first shown above.  Such term may be extended 
upon written agreement of both parties to this AGREEMENT. 

 
SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
Wallace agrees to perform the services set forth in EXHIBIT "A", “SCOPE OF 

SERVICES/PROPOSAL" and made a part of this AGREEMENT. 
 

SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 
 
Wallace  shall not be compensated for any services rendered in connection with 

its performance of this AGREEMENT which are in addition to or outside of those set forth in this 
AGREEMENT or listed in EXHIBIT "A" unless such additional services are authorized in 
advance and in writing by the City Council or City Manager of CITY.  Wallace shall be 
compensated for any such additional services in the amounts and in the manner agreed to by 
the City Council or City Manager. 

 
SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

 
(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this AGREEMENT, CITY agrees to pay 

Wallace the amounts specified in EXHIBIT “A” and made a part of this AGREEMENT.  The total 
compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, shall not exceed one hundred 
twenty-five thousand six hundred DOLLARS ($125,600), unless additional compensation is 
approved in writing by the City Council or City Manager. 
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(b) Each month Wallace shall furnish to CITY an original invoice for all work 
performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail charges 
by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, equipment, supplies, sub-
consultant contracts and miscellaneous expenses.  CITY shall independently review each 
invoice submitted by the Wallace to determine whether the work performed and expenses 
incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this AGREEMENT.  In the event that no 
charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be approved and paid according to the 
terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event CITY disputes any charges or expenses, the 
original invoice shall be returned by CITY to Wallace for correction and resubmission.  

 
(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 

Wallace which are disputed by CITY, CITY will use its best efforts to cause Wallace to be paid 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of Wallace invoice. 

 
(d) Payment to Wallace for work performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall 

not he deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Wallace. 
 

SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 
 
CITY may inspect and accept or reject any of Wallace’s work under this 

AGREEMENT, either during performance or when completed.  CITY shall reject or finally accept 
Wallace’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to CITY.  CITY shall reject work by a timely 
written explanation, otherwise Wallace’s work shall be deemed to have been accepted.  CITY's 
acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work except with respect to latent defects, fraud and 
such gross mistakes as amount to fraud.  Acceptance of any of Wallace’s work by CITY shall 
not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this AGREEMENT including, but not limited to, 
sections 15 and 16, pertaining to indemnification and insurance, respectively.  

 
SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 

 
All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 

reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Wallace in the course of providing any services pursuant to this AGREEMENT 
shall become the sole property of CITY and may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by 
CITY without the permission of the Wallace.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this 
AGREEMENT, Wallace shall turn over to CITY all such original maps, models, designs, 
drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other 
documents. 
 
SECTION 7. CONSULTANTS BOOKS AND RECORDS. 

 
(a) Wallace shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or 

relating to Wallace’s performance of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT.  Wallace shall 
maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other 
documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and disbursements 
charged to CITY pursuant to this AGREEMENT.  Any and all such documents or records shall 
be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be 
sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services 
provided by Wallace pursuant to this AGREEMENT.  Any and all such documents or records 
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shall be maintained for three years from the date of execution of this AGREEMENT and to the 
extent required by laws relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 

 
(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 

section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular 
business hours, upon written request by CITY or its designated representative.  Copies of such 
documents or records shall be provided directly to the CITY for inspection, audit and copying 
when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such 
documents and records shall be made available at Wallace's address indicated for receipt of 
notices in this AGREEMENT.  

 
(c) Where CITY has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 

required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or 
termination of Wallace’s business, CITY may, by written request, require that custody of such 
documents or records be given to the requesting party and that such documents and records be 
maintained by the requesting party.  Access to such documents and records shall be granted to 
CITY, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized representatives.  
 
SECTION 8. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

 
(a) Wallace is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and 

not an officer, employee or agent of CITY. Wallace shall have no authority to bind CITY in any 
manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against CITY; 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this 
AGREEMENT or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by CITY.  

 
(b) The personnel performing the services under this AGREEMENT on behalf of 

Wallace shall at all times be under Wallace’s exclusive direction and control.  Neither CITY, nor 
any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of CITY, shall have 
control over the conduct of Wallace or any of Wallace’s officers, employees or agents, except as 
set forth in this AGREEMENT.  Wallace  shall not at any time or in any manner represent that 
Wallace or any of Wallace 's officers, employees or agents are in any manner officials, officers, 
employees or agents of CITY.  

 
(c) Neither Wallace, nor any of Wallace’s officers, employees or agents, shall 

obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to 
CITY's employees.  Wallace expressly waives any claim Wallace may have to any such rights.  

 
SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 

 
Wallace represents that it has the qualifications, experience and facilities 

necessary to properly perform the services required under this AGREEMENT in a thorough, 
competent and professional manner.  Wallace shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the 
best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services described herein.  In meeting its 
obligations under this AGREEMENT, Wallace shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted 
standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services similar to those 
required of Wallace under this AGREEMENT. City agrees to hold Wallace harmless from all 
damages, claims, expenses, and losses arising out of any reuse of the plans and specifications 
for purposes other than those described in this Agreement, unless written authorization of 
Wallace is obtained. 
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SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, PERMITS AND LICENSES. 
 
Wallace shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state 

and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of 
this AGREEMENT.  Wallace shall obtain any and all licenses, permits and authorizations 
necessary to perform the services set forth in this AGREEMENT.  Neither CITY, nor any elected 
or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of CITY, shall be liable, at law or in 
equity, as a result of any failure of Wallace to comply with this section. 

 
SECTION 11. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 
Basic Provisions. In performing the Work, Wallace agrees as follows: 
 
(1)    Wallace will not discriminate against any employee or applicant from 

employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, political 
affiliation or beliefs, sex, age, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status or pregnancy 
(as those terms are defined by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act—Government 
Code Section 12900-12996), except where such discrimination is based on a bona fide 
occupational qualification.  Wallace  will take positive action or ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, 
creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, political affiliation or beliefs, sex, age, 
physical handicap, medical condition, marital status or pregnancy (as those terms are defined 
by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act—Government Code Section 12900-12996), 
except where such discrimination is based on a bona fide occupational qualification. Such 
action shall include but not be limited to the following:  Employment upgrading, demotion or 
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms 
of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  Wallace agrees to post in 
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 
provided by CITY setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 
(2)    Wallace  will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of Wallace, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, 
political affiliation or beliefs, sex, age, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status or 
pregnancy (as those terms are defined by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act—
Government Code Section 12900-12996), except where such discrimination is based on a bona 
fide occupational qualification.   

 
SECTION 12. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 

 
Wallace hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions of the 

Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §1101, et seq. as amended, and in 
connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  Should Wallace 
so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this 
AGREEMENT, and should any liability or sanctions be imposed against CITY for such use of 
unauthorized aliens, Wallace hereby agrees to and shall reimburse CITY for the cost of all such 
liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorneys' fees, 
incurred by CITY. 
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SECTION 13. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 
 
(a) Wallace covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or 

shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the 
interests of CITY or which would in any way hinder Wallace’s performance of services under 
this AGREEMENT.  Wallace further covenants that in the performance of this AGREEMENT, no 
person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee, agent or 
subcontractor without the express written consent of the City Manager.  Wallace agrees to at all 
times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of 
CITY in the performance of this AGREEMENT.  

 
(b) CITY understands and acknowledges that Wallace is, as of the date of 

execution of this AGREEMENT, independently involved in the performance of non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Wallace is unaware of any stated 
position of CITY relative to such projects.  Any future position of CITY on such projects shall not 
be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section.  

 
SECTION 14. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 

 
(a) All information gained or work product produced by Wallace in performance 

of this AGREEMENT shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the public 
domain or already known to Wallace.  Wallace shall not release or disclose any such 
information or work product to persons or entities other than CITY without prior written 
authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required by law.  

 
(b) Wallace, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without 

prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of 
CITY, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, response to 
interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this AGREEMENT.  
Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered "voluntary" provided Wallace 
gives CITY notice of such court order or subpoena.  

 
(c) If Wallace, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Wallace, 

provides any information or work product in violation of this AGREEMENT, then CITY shall have 
the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Wallace for any damages, costs and fees, 
including attorney’s fees, caused by or incurred as a result of Wallace's conduct.  

 
(d) Wallace  shall promptly notify CITY should Wallace, its officers, employees, 

agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of 
deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery 
request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this AGREEMENT and the work 
performed thereunder.  CITY retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Wallace or be 
present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding.  Wallace agrees to cooperate fully with 
CITY and to provide CITY with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests 
provided by Wallace.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply or mean 
the right by CITY to control, direct, or rewrite said response.  

 
  

Page 30 of 309



 

SECTION 15. INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
INDEMNITY FOR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY:  When the law establishes a 

professional standard of care for Wallace’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, as 
clarified in Section 2782.8 of the Civil Code, Wallace  shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
CITY and any and all of its boards, officials, employees, and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from 
and against all losses, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees and costs to the extent same are caused in whole or in part by any negligent or wrongful 
act, error or omission of Wallace, its officers, agents, employees or subconsultants (or any entity 
or individual for which Wallace  shall bear legal liability) in the performance of professional 
services under this agreement. 

 
INDEMNITY FOR OTHER THAN PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY:  Other than in 

the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Wallace  shall 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY, and any and all of its boards, employees, officials 
and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of 
any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorney’s fees and costs, court costs, 
interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a 
consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this 
AGREEMENT by Wallace  or by any individual or entity for which Wallace  is legally liable, 
including but not limited to officers, agents, employees or subcontractors of Wallace. 

 
SECTION 16. INSURANCE. 

 
Wallace  agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of 

this AGREEMENT the insurance policies set forth in EXHIBIT “B" "INSURANCE" and made a 
part of this AGREEMENT.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by CITY as to form 
and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing 
by the City Manager.  Wallace agrees to provide CITY with copies of required policies upon 
request.  

 
SECTION 17. ASSIGNMENT. 

 
The expertise and experience of Wallace are material considerations for this 

AGREEMENT.  CITY has an interest in the qualifications of and capability of the persons and 
entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Wallace under this 
AGREEMENT.  In recognition of that interest, CONSULTANT shall not assign or transfer this 
Agreement or any portion of this AGREEMENT or the performance of any of Wallace's duties or 
obligations under this AGREEMENT without the prior written consent of the City Council.  Any 
attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute a material breach 
of this AGREEMENT entitling CITY to any and all remedies at law or in equity, including 
summary termination of this AGREEMENT.  CITY acknowledges, however, that Wallace, in the 
performance of its duties pursuant to this AGREEMENT, may utilize subcontractors. 
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SECTION 18. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 
 
Wallace shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 

continuity of Wallace's staff assigned to perform the services required under this AGREEMENT.  
Wallace shall notify CITY of any changes in Wallace's staff assigned to perform the services 
required under this AGREEMENT, prior to any such performance. 
 
SECTION 19. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

 
(a) CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, with or without cause, at any time by 

giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Wallace.  In the event such notice is given, 
Wallace shall cease immediately all work in progress.  

 
(b) Wallace may terminate this AGREEMENT at any time upon thirty- (30) day’s 

written notice of termination to CITY.  
 
(c) If either Wallace or CITY fails to perform any material obligation under this 

AGREEMENT, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Wallace, or CITY may terminate 
this AGREEMENT immediately upon written notice.  

 
(d) Upon termination of this AGREEMENT by either Wallace or CITY, all property 

belonging exclusively to CITY, which is in Wallace’s possession, shall be returned to CITY. 
Wallace shall furnish to CITY a final invoice for work performed and expenses incurred by 
Wallace, prepared as set forth in SECTION 4 of this AGREEMENT.  This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in SECTION 4 of this AGREEMENT.  

 
SECTION 20. DEFAULT. 

 
In the event that Wallace is in default under the terms of this AGREEMENT, the 

CITY shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Wallace for any work 
performed after the date of default and may terminate this AGREEMENT immediately by written 
notice to the Wallace. 

 
SECTION 21. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 

 
Wallace shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if any, 

caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the control of 
Wallace.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, 
acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of CITY, court orders, fires, floods, epidemics, 
strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term and price of this AGREEMENT 
shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 

 
SECTION 22. COOPERATION BY CITY. 

 
All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 

available to CITY as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the work as 
outlined in the EXHIBIT "A” "SCOPE OF SERVICES/PROPOSAL", shall be furnished to 
Wallace in every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue delay, the work to be performed 
under this AGREEMENT. 
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SECTION 23. NOTICES. 
 
All notices required or permitted to be given under this AGREEMENT shall be in 

writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage prepaid 
and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

 
To CITY: City of Buellton 
 Attn:  Rose Hess 
 P.O. Box 1819 
 107 W. Highway 246 
 Buellton, CA 93427 
  
To Wallace: Wallace Group 

Attn:  Steve Tanaka 
 612 Clarion Court 
 San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
  

 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 

by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United 
States Postal Service. 

 
SECTION 24. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 

 
The person or persons executing this AGREEMENT on behalf of Wallace 

represents and warrants that he/she/they has/have the authority to so execute this 
AGREEMENT and to bind Wallace to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

 
SECTION 25. BINDING EFFECT. 

 
This AGREEMENT shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 

successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

SECTION 26. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT. 
 
No amendment to or modification of this AGREEMENT shall be valid unless 

made in writing and approved by the Wallace and by the City Council.  The parties agree that 
this requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall 
be void. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and 
attached Exhibit “A”, the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT shall control. In the event of 
any conflict between the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and any attached exhibits, 
the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT will control.  

 
SECTION 27. WAIVER. 

 
Waiver by any party to this AGREEMENT of any term, condition, or covenant of 

this AGREEMENT shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  
Waiver by any party of any breach of the provisions of this AGREEMENT shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision, nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
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provision of this AGREEMENT.  Acceptance by CITY of any work or services by Wallace shall 
not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this AGREEMENT. 
 
SECTION 28. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 

 
This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to 

the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the parties, venue in state 
trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Santa Barbara.  In the event of litigation in a 
U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in Los 
Angeles. 

 
SECTION 29. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 

 
In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 

provision of this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party in such litigation or other proceeding shall 
be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any 
other relief to which it may he entitled. 

 
SECTION 30. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 
This AGREEMENT, including the attached EXHIBITS "A" and “B", is the entire, 

complete, final and exclusive expression of the parties with respect to the matters addressed 
therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or 
entered into between Wallace  and CITY prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT.  No 
statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any party 
which is not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.  No amendment to this AGREEMENT 
shall be valid and binding unless in writing duly executed by the parties or their authorized 
representatives. 

 
SECTION 31.SEVERABILITY. 

 
If a term, condition or covenant of this AGREEMENT is declared or determined 

by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this AGREEMENT shall not be affected thereby and the AGREEMENT shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to 

be executed the day and year first above written. 
 

WALLACE GROUP 
 
. 
By:                                                                                By:    
 
 
Title:                                                                    Title: 
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CITY OF BUELLTON                                                  APRROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:   
          CITY MANAGER                                                     Ralph Hanson, City Attorney 
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EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES/PROPOSAL 
 
 
 

 
[NOTE:  Scope of Services and Wallace Group Compensation is set forth in the 

letter from Wallace Group, dated May 15, 2013, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference. Total compensation shall not exceed $125,600.] 
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TRANSMITTAL 

Date: May 15, 2013 

To: Ms. Rose Hess 
City of Buellton 
PO Box 1819 
Buellton, CA 93427 

From: Heather Billing 
Senior Environmental 
Compliance Specialist 
WALLACE GROUP 
612 Clarion Court 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

Number of Pages (including cover): _ 
Originals mailed IZl Yes, D No 

Project Number: PP13-4943-915 

VIA Email and USPS 

Phone: 805 688-5200 
Fax: 

Email: roseh@cityofbuellton .com 

Phone: 805 544-4011 
Fax: 805 544-4294 

Email: heatherb@wallacegroup.us 

Subject: Proposal for Regulatory Compliance Services 

Please find attached our proposal for the above referenced project. If this proposal meets 
with your approval, please sign where indicated and return one original to our office, to 
the attention of Sybil Regan, Marketing Coordinator, which will serve as our notice-to­
proceed on your project. Formal hard copies will follow today via U.S.P.S. 

Please call me if you have any questions at 544-401 1 . 

ATIACHMENT 
PP13-4943 
Exhibit A 

WALLACE GROUP 

CIVIL AND 
TRANSPORTATION 
ENGINEERING 

CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT 

LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTURE 

MECHANICAL 
ENGINEERING 

PLANNING 

PUBLIC WORKS 
ADMINISTRATION 

SURVEYING ! 
GIS SOLUTIONS 

WATER RESOURCE 

WALLACE GROUF 

A California Corporation 

612 CLARION CT 

SAN LUIS OBISPO 

CALIFORNIA 93401 

T 805 544-4011 

F 805 544-4294 

www.wallacegroup.us 
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May 15,2013 

Rose Hess 
City of Buellton 
PO Box 1819 
Buellton, California 93427 

Subject: Proposal for Professional Services for Public Works Regulatory Compliance 

Dear Ms. Hess: 

Wallace Group appreciates the opportunity to provide you with our proposal for 
professional services for public works regulatory compliance for Fiscal Year 
2013/2014. We have enjoyed working with you and your staff this past year. As we 
have discussed Buellton has become an attractive location for the alcohol beverage 
industry in Santa Barbara County and continues to attract restaurateurs, who are 
managed in the City of Buellton's Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) and Pretreatment 
Programs. 

Based on our discussions this year, the following Scope of Services has been prepared 
for your consideration: 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

The City of Buellton (City) operates and maintains approximately twenty (20) miles of 
sewer collection system and a 1.3 million gallon per day design capacity wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP), which is designed to treat domestic type wastewater. Both 
the collection system and WWTP are subject to regulatory requirements issued by the 
State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and Central Coast Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (RWQCB). 

In 2006, SWRCB issued the General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer 
Systems (SSSWDR), Order No. 2006-003-DWQ, for collection systems over one (1) mile 
in length, which required the development and implementation of a Sewer System 
Management Plan (SSMP). The City developed its first revision of their SSMP in April 
2010. In 2012, Wallace Group and City Public Works staff audited the SSMP as required 
by the SSSWDR and determined that several sections of the SSMP require updating to 
document changes in City staff, to document operation and maintenance program 
practices, and to develop emergency and operation and maintenance procedures. The 
next step in this process is to coordinate with City staff and revise the City's April 
2010 SSMP in order to address these identified requirements and deficiencies. 

The City also initiated a Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Program in 2009 in order to 
comply with the requirements for the FOG Control Program element of the SSMP. This 
program is ongoing and as part of this proposed contract, Wallace Group will provide 
FOG Program management and implementation services for FY 2013/14. 

It is forecasted that the SSSWDR amended Monitoring and Reporting Requirements, 
Order No. WQ 2008-0002-EXEC, may be revised by the SWRCB in May 2013. If the 
SSWDR's amended MRP is revised within the timeframe of the task schedules 
identified in the following Scope of Services, the requirements for several tasks 

WALLACE GROUP® 
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PP13-4943 
City of Buellton 
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 of 10 

discussed in the Scope of Services may change, which will require an adjustment to 
the Scope of Services. 

The City's WWTP and collection system are also regulated by the RWQCB Waste 
Discharge Requirements (WDR) Permit, Order No. 99-134. This permit directs the City 
to perform specific Pretreatment Program activities to protect the publically owned 
treatment works (POTW), which includes the WWTP and the sewer collection system, 
through managing user process wastewater discharges. In order to comply with this 
requirement, Wallace Group will provide Pretreatment Program management and 
implementation services for 
FY 2013/14. 

Based on our discussions and understanding of the Project, the following Scope of 
Services has been prepared for your consideration: 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Wallace Group will provide the following services: 

Task 1.0 Public Works Regulatory Compliance Project Management and Meetings 

Task 1.1: Project Management and Coordination 
This Task includes monthly coordination of project activities, including scheduling and 
budget controls, staffing needs and coordination, Client coordination, quarterly status 
updates, and other related project management activities. 

Task 1.2: Fiscal Year 2013/14 Regulatory Compliance Kick-off Meeting 
We will coordinate and attend a kick-off meeting with key Wallace Group team 
members and City staff. We will prepare the meeting agenda and minutes for this 
meeting. This meeting will focus on scope of work, schedule, deliverables, and other 
components of regulatory compliance services for Fiscal Year 2013/14 so that the 
project direction is agreed upon by the Wallace Group team members in advance. 

Task 1.3: QA/QC 
Wallace Group team members will provide in-house quality assurance and quality 
control (QA/QC) for milestone Sewer System Management Plan and Pretreatment 
Program activities. The QAlQC will be conducted by senior or principal engineers 
within Wallace Group. 

Task 1.0 Deliverables: 
Email documentation of meetings and pertinent project coordination correspondence, 
including quarterly status updates. 

Task 2.0 Sewer System Management Plan, Revision 1.0 
Wallace Group will revise each of the eleven (11) elements of the City's SSMP, dated 
April 22, 2010, based on the findings of the 2012 SSMP Audit and as required by 
SSSWDR Section D.13(x). Wallace Group staff expects to work with City Public staff to 
revise the existing SSMP and to obtain additional materials and documentation 
necessary for these revisions. 
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Task 2.1: Agency Goals (SSSWDR D.13(i)) 
Wallace Group will work with the City to update the City's goals for operating and 
maintaining the sewer collection system. We will identify the Goals in the revised 
SSMP. 

Task 2.2: Organization (SSSWDR D.13(ii)) 
Wallace Group will revise the information required to meet the requirements of the 
Organization element. This will include an updated organizational chart, chain of 
command, and updated names and phones numbers of City staff having SSMP and/ or 
SSO response responsibilities. 

Task 2.3: Legal Authority (SSSWDR D.13(iii)) 
We will update the SSMP to include the relevant sections of the City Municipal Code. 

Task 2.4: Operation and Maintenance Program (SSSWDR D.13(iv)) 
We will update the City Operation and Maintenance (OftM) Program so that it can be 
used as a stand-alone document from the SSMP. The OaM Program will include the 
following: 

• We will create a plan, schedule and estimated cost to update City maps of the 
sewer collection system. The City maps require updating to show all sewer assets 
and appurtenances (i.e., lift stations, force mains, air/pressure relief valves, and 
applicable stormwater conveyance systems). 

• We will update the description of the City's current routine preventative and 
operation and maintenance activities, including cleaning and video inspections 
(CCTV). We will include in the SSMP all existing documentation (i.e., Lift Station 
Inspection Reports) that demonstrates the City's on-going activities. We will make 
recommendations for improvements, if necessary. 

• We will provide descriptions of the City's current collection system training 
program. We will include in the SSMP examples of existing documentation that 
demonstrates the City's on-going collection system training activities since FY 
2010/11. We will make recommendations for improvements, if necessary. 

• We will provide a summary of the City's equipment, replacement parts inventory, 
on-call contractors, parts stores, etc. that are used in the City's day-to-day 
operations and under emergency conditions. We will make recommendations for 
improvements, if necessary. 

• We will develop a plan and schedule to update the City collection system 
rehabilitation and replacement plan. We will update this section of the SSMP with 
collection system capital improvement projects conducted since FY 2010/11 and 
known future projects. 

• We will analyze the City's allocated resources to perform the day-to-day 
operations and preventative maintenance activities and make recommendations 
on means to improve daily functions, if necessary. We will make recommendations 
for staff allocations for various field operation activities, if necessary. 
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Task 2.5: Design and Performance Provisions (SSSWDR D.13(v» 
We will work with the Public Works Director/City Engineer to revise this section to 
include a referenced set of design standards, specifications, and inspection 
requirements. This may include the 1995 City of Buellton Standards, which will need 
to be signed and stamped by a Professional Engineer if the City chooses to utilize 
them moving forward. 

Task 2.6: Overflow and Emergency Response Plan (SSSWDR D.13(vi)) 
We will revise this section with a plan and schedule to update the Overflow and 
Emergency Response Plan (OERP) so that will be usable as a stand-alone document. 
This section of the SSMP will provide an overview of the current City SSO response 
activities. The stand-alone OERP will include: 

• Updated notification procedures (upon acceptance of Task 3) so appropriate City 
staff, regulatory agencies, the public, and appropriate officials are informed of all 
SSOs in a timely manner in accordance with the SWRCB SSSWDR and amended 
MRP. 

• Updated emergency operating procedures (upon acceptance of Task 3) specific to 
SSO response activities, such as SSO mitigation and containment, traffic and crowd 
control, SSO volume estimating, surface water quality monitoring, environmental 
impact monitoring, SSO records and reporting· activities, and training. 

Task 2.7: Fats, Oil, and Grease Control Program (SSSWDR D.13(vii)) 
This section will be updated to include the results of the City FOG program from 2010 
to the present. We will include an update of the effectiveness of outreach and public 
education, legal authority within the City, Wallace Group FOG permitting and 
inspections, requirements to install grease traps, identification of high FOG areas 
within the City, and development and implementation of FOG control measures. 

Task 2.8: System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SSSWDR D.13(viii)) 
The System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP) will be updated to create 
a plan and schedule to perform the wet weather Inflow and Infiltration (1/1) analysis 
recommended by the 2006 Buellton Citywide Sewer System Capacity Study. We will 
additionally update the SECAP overview to document why a capital improvement 
project plan, funding plan, and schedule is currently not needed. 

Task 2.9: Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications (SSSWDR D.13(ix» 
We will update the performance indicators to monitor the effectiveness of each SSMP 
element and recommend a management program so sections of the SSMP are revised 
annually. 

Task 2.10: Sewer System Management Plan Audit (SSSWDR D.13(x» 
We will update this section with the results of the first biannual audit and with the 
schedule and framework for ensuring the biannual requirement to audit the 
implementation and effectiveness of the SSMP. 

Task 2.11: Communication Program (SSSWDR D.13(xi)) 
We will update the City's communication program and include examples of methods 
used to engage customers and private collection systems since 2010. We will provide 
recommendations for areas of improvement, if necessary. 
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Task 2.12: Draft Sewer System Management Plan, Revision 1.0 
Wallace Group will compile the information from Tasks 2.1 through 2.11 and prepare 
the Draft Sewer System Management Plan, Revision 1.0, Operations and Maintenance 
Program, and Overflow Emergency Response Plan. We will provide the Draft to the 
City for review and comments. 

Task 2.13: Final Sewer System Management Plan, Revision 1.0 
We will address comments from the City, make changes as requested, and prepare a 
Final Draft. The Final Draft will then be presented for re-certification to the City 
Council by the Public Works Director/City Engineer. Following the City Council re­
certification and approval, we will make final changes and provide the City with the 
SSMP, Revision 1.0. 

Task 2.14: Training 
Wallace Group will provide the City management and utility worker staff with training 
on the SWRCB SSSWDR and MRP, SSMP, Revision 1.0, and OERP. 

Task 2.0 Deliverables: 
1. Draft SSMP, Revision 1.0 - Two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic PDF copy 
2. Draft Final SSMP, Revision 1.0 - One (1) hard copy and one (1) electronic PDF 

copy 
3. SSMP, Revision 1.0 - Two (2) hard copy and one (1) electronic PDF copy 
4. Draft Operations and Maintenance Program - Two (2) hard copies and one (1) 

electronic PDF copy 
5. Draft Final Operations and Maintenance Program - One (1) hard copy and one 

(1) electronic PDF copy 
6. Final Operations and Maintenance Program - Two (2) hard copies and one (1) 

electronic PDF copy 
7. Draft OERP - Two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic PDF copy 
8. Draft Final OERP - One (1) hard copy and one (1) electronic PDF copy 
9. Final OERP - Two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic PDF copy 

Task 2.0 Schedule: 
The estimated schedule for the project is outlined in the table below. The schedule is 
subject to change. 

Task Name Responsible Locations 
Party/Duration 

1. SSMP Revision Kick-Off Wallace Group Staff and City Public Works Office 
Meeting City PW Staff/three (3) 

hours - when 
2. Revise SSMP Wallace Group Staff and City Public Works Office 

City PW Staff/four (4) to and Wallace Group Office 
ten (10) busi ness days -
when 

3. Issue Draft SSMP, Wallace Group Staff: ten Wallace Group Office 
Revision 1.0 (10) weeks from date of 

Kick-off Meeting 
4. Receive comments, Turnaround for City PW Wallace Group Office 

resolve, and issue Staff comments - three (3) 
SSMP, Revision 1.0 weeks. 
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Wallace Group Staff -
three (3) weeks after all 
comments are received. 

Task 3.0 Development of Collection System Standard Operating Procedures 

Wallace Group will work with City Public Works and Collection System Operations and 
Maintenance Staff to develop standard operating procedures (SOPs) required by the 
SWRCB SSSWDR. City staff will be required to be available approximately six (6) hours 
per day, each day Wallace Group staff are on site for the development of SOPs. 
Procedures are required to address the following areas: 

Task 3.1: Sanitary Sewer Overflow Emergency Operating Procedures 
We will work to create the first revision of the following sanitary sewer overflow (SSO) 
procedures: 

1. SSO Regulatory and Reporting Requirements 
2. SSO Response Documentation 
3. SSO Traffic and Crowd Control 
4. SSO Volume Estimation 
5. SSO Cleanup 
6. SSO Water Quality Monitoring 
7. SSO Santa Ynez River Closure 
8. SSO Ecological and Human Health Impact Assessment 
9. SSO Records Requirements 
10. SSO Training Requirements 

Task 3.2: Sewer System Operations and Maintenance Procedures 
We will work to create the first revision of the following operation and maintenance 
procedures: 

1. Preventative Maintenance Program 
2. Lift Station Operations and Maintenance 
3. Annual and High Maintenance Area Sewer Collection System Cleaning and 

Reporting 
4. Annual Map/GIS Updates 
5. Underground Service Alert (USA) Marking 
6. Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Program 
7. Routine Traffic and Crowd Control 
8. Sewer Connection Requests 
9. Collection System Training Requirements 

Task 3.3: Management Procedures 
We will work with the City to create the following management procedures which are 
required by the General Provisions or section D.13 of the SSS WDR: 

1. SSSWDR Order Tracking and Training 
2. Customer Complaint/Customer Contact Form 

WALLACE GROUP 

Page 43 of 309



PP13-4943 
City of Buellton 
May 14,2013 
Page 7 of 10 

3. Sewer Rate Structurel Accounting Audits 

Task 3.0 Deliverables: 
Wallace Group will produce individual SOPs for each of the areas described above. 

Task 3.0 Schedule: 
A schedule for development of SOPs will depend on the level of effort requested by 
the City. The following estimate schedule is for the development of the twenty-two 
(22) SOPs listed above and is subject to change: 

Task Name Responsible Locations 
Party IDuration 

1. SOP Kick-Off Meeting Wallace Group Staff and City Public Works Office 
City Public Works 
Staff 1 two (2) hours- when 

2. SOP Development Wallace Group and City City Public Works Office 
Public Works Staff 1 six (6) and Seaside District Sewer 
weeks -when Service Area 

3. Issue Draft SOPs Wallace Group Wallace Group Office 
4. Receive comments, Turnaround for City PW Wallace Group Office 

resolve, and issue final Staff comments - three (3) 
SOPs to City weeks. 

Wallace Group Staff- three 
(3) weeks after all 
comments are received. 

Task 4.0 Management of Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Program FY 2013/14 

Implementation and management of the City FOG Program by Wallace Group since 
2009 has been instrumental in the City maintaining a SSO rate of zero (0) to one (1) 
SSOs in a calendar year. 

The FOG Program is an element of the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) whose 
primary purpose is to inform and direct FSEs to manage their FOG to prevent and 
reduce Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs). 

Task 4.1: FOG Program Management 
Wallace Group will continue to perform FOG permitting, semiannual inspections, and 
re-inspections for the City at its Food Service Establishments (FSEs) for Fiscal Year 
2013 / 14. The FOG Program will include the following: 

1. One - one (1) hour meeting to determine goals for the FY 2013-14 FOG Program. 
2. A semiannual inspection of approximately forty (40) FSEs. 
3. Performance of re-inspections when non-compliant conditions are identified. 
4. Implementation of enforcement response with the City Public Works Director for 

FSEs who remain noncompliant. 
5. Annual permit renewal of FSEs enrolled in the FOG Program. 
6. Education and permitting of new FSEs that open for business in FY 2013-14 and 

removal from the FOG Program of those FSEs that have closed. 
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7. Issuance of monthly reports documenting FOG program status. 

Task 4.0 Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies of all inspection reports (PDF format) 
• Electronic copies of all permit applications and permits issued (PDF format) 
• Monthly reporting of FOG program status (PDF format) 
• Electronic copies of updated outreach materials provided to FSEs as applicable 

(PDF format) 
• Electronic copies of updated outreach materials for residential FOG education 

(PDF format) 

Task 4.0 Schedule: 
Upon receipt of the signed proposal, Wallace Group will schedule the FY 2013/14 FOG 
Program meeting after July 1, 2013 and schedule the next round of FOG inspections. 

Task 5.0 Management of Pretreatment Program FY 2013/14 

The City Pretreatment Program is a requirement of the Central Coast RWQCB WDR 
Permit, Order No. 99-134, which requi res the City to conduct specified Pretreatment 
Program activities. 

The purpose of the City Pretreatment Program is to work with existing and new 
businesses in the City to manage their discharge process wastewater in order to 
protect the POTW from harmful discharges. 

Implementation and management of the City Pretreatment Program by Wallace Group 
since 2009 has assisted the City in meeting its effluent discharge limits at the W'NTP. 

Task 5.1: Pretreatment Program Management: 
Wallace Group will continue to perform Pretreatment Program Industrial User (IU) 
permitting, annual inspections and re-inspections for the City for its identified IUs for 
FY 2013 / 2014 by performing the tasks below: 

1. One, two (2) hour meeting to determine goals for the FY 2013/14 Pretreatment 
Program. 

2. An annual inspection of approximately fifteen (15) IUs. 
3. Performance of re-inspections when non-compliant conditions are identified. 
4. Implementation of enforcement response with the City Public Works Director for 

IUs who remain noncompliant. 
5. Permit renewal of IUs enrolled in the Pretreatment Program. 
6. Education and permitting of new IUs that open for business in FY 2013/14, and 

removal from the Pretreatment Program of those IUs that have closed. 
7. Issuance of quarterly reports documenting Pretreatment Program status. 

Task 5.0 Deliverables: 
• Electronic copies of all Industrial Wastewater Discharge (IWD) inspection reports 

(PDF format) 
• Electronic copies of all issued IWD permit applications and permits (PDF format) 
• Electronic copies of all received IU Monitoring Reports (PDF format) 
• Quarterly reporting of Pretreatment Program status (PDF format) 
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• Electronic copies of updated outreach materials provided to Industrial Users as 
applicable (PDF format) 

• Electronic copies of updated outreach materials for Industrial User education as 
applicable (PDF format) 

Task 5.0 Schedule: 
Upon receipt of the signed proposal, Wallace Group will schedule the FY 2013/14 
Pretreatment Program meeting after July 1, 2013 and schedule the next round of 
Pretreatment inspections. 

TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT 

• Collection system maps 
• Collection system maintenance schedule 
• Collection system work orders 
• City staff training records 

ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following services may also benefit your project. Wallace Group can provide these 
services, directly or through sub-consultants, however, they are not included in the 
current Scope of Services or estimate of fees: 

• Revisions to the City Municipal Code 
• GIS database and maps 
• Survey 
• Hydraulic study 
• Local limits study 
• Public education television and radio ads 
• California Integrated Water Quality Information System (CIWQS) Reporting 

PROJECT FEES 

The project fees are shown allocated by task to indicate our expected distribution of 
work. However, the task fee allocations are not individual contract limits. 

Wallace Group will perform the services denoted in Tasks One through Five of the 
proposed Scope of Services on a time and materials basis. For budgeting purposes, our 
preliminary estimate is that over the next 12 months, our fees will be $5,000 to 
$20,000 per month with a total not to exceed $125,600 based upon the following 
breakdown: 

Task 1.0 Public Works Regulatory Compliance Project Management and Meetings 
$9,400 

Task 2.0 Sewer System Management Plan, Revision 1.0 
$37,400 

Task 3.0 Development of Collection System Standard Operating Procedures 
$28,900 
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Task 4.0 Management of Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Program FY 2013/14 
$19,600 

Task 5.0 Management of Pretreatment Program FY 2013/14 
$25,700 

These services will be invoiced monthly on an accrued basis in accordance with the 
attached Schedule of Fees (Exhibit A). Reimbursables are included in the time and 
materials estimated fee amounts stated above (mileage and copies, $4,600). 

At your request, additional services to the Scope of Services will be performed by 
Wallace Group following the signature of our Contract Amendment or the initiation of 
a new contract. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

In order to convey a clear understanding of the matters related to our mutual 
responsibilities regarding this proposal, the City of Buellton Agreement is considered a 
part of our proposal agreement. Wallace Group is requesting modifications be made to 
the City of Buellton Agreement, as detailed in the client Contract and Insurance 
Review Memorandum dated May 14, 2013. 

Upon mutual agreement to the City of Buellton Agreement, and if this proposal meets 
with your approval, please sign where indicated and return one original to our office 
and/or prepare a Purchase Order, which will serve as our notice-to-proceed. 

We want to thank you for this opportunity to present our proposal for professional 
services. If you would like to discuss this proposal in greater detail, please feel free to 
Heather Billing, or Bill Callahan. 

Sincerely, 

-T omas K. Zehnder, PE 
Principal 
612 Clarion Court 
San Luis Obispo 
California 93401 
T 805 544-4011 
F 805 544-4294 
www.wallacegroup.us 

Attachments 
sr: PP13-4943, 200903 
Exhibit A 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS ACCEPTED: 

Signature 

Printed Name 

Title 

Date 

THIS PROPOSAL IS VALID FOR 60 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS DOCUMENT. 
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Public Works Administration Services: 

"Exhibit A" 
Schedule of Fees 

Personnel Rates 

I " III ..................................................... S 87" 27 

28 
Public Works Administrator I-ill......................... ... ............. 28 - 38 

Senior ........... . ..................................... S 132 

Senior ............................................... 51 

Senior 51 - 59 

Senior Environmental 51 - 59 

Administrative Services: 

Office Assistant. .. ....... ......................... . .. ................ .... S 45 

Administrative Assistant I - V ........................................... $ 67 - S 83 

Financial I - II .................................................. S 87-

Senior Financial 28 

Additional Professional Services: 

Fees for 
rate of 

witness court appearances, or will be billed at the 

Direct 
Reimbursement of direct expenses incurred in connection with the scope of work will be 
invoiced to the client. A of 15% may be added to the direct expenses listed below. 
Direct expenses but are not limited to the 

travel expenses 

sub-consultants 

Interest 
Invoices are submitted on an accrued cost basis in accordance with this Fee Schedule. A 
finance of 1.5% per month (18% per will be assessed on all balances that are 

due. 

reserves the to revise our Schedule of Fees on a semi-annual 
wage rates or as the State establishes rate 

overtime on a will be billed at 1.3 times the normal 
rate. 

Personnel Classifications: 

and also to 
As authorized 

Wallace may find it necessary to add new classifications to our 
Schedule of Fees. 

Wallace per mile. 
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EXHIBIT "B" 

INSURANCE 

 
 A. Insurance Requirements.  Wallace shall provide and maintain insurance, 
acceptable to the City Manager or City Council, in full force and effect throughout the 
term of this AGREEMENT, against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property 
which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by 
Wallace, its agents, representatives or employees.  Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Wallace shall provide 
the following scope and limits of insurance: 
 
  1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 
broad as: 
 
   (1) Insurance Services Office form Commercial General Liability 
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 0001). 
 
   (2) Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/87) 
covering Automobile Liability, including code 1 "any auto" and endorsement CA 0025, or 
equivalent forms subject to the written approval of the City. 
 
   (3) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the 
Labor Code of State of California and Employer's Liability insurance and covering all 
persons providing services on behalf of the Wallace and all risks to such persons under 
this AGREEMENT. 
 
   (4) Errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to the 
Wallace's profession. 
 
  2. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Wallace shall maintain limits of 
insurance no less than: 
 
   (1) General Liability: $1,000,000 general aggregate for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage. 
 
   (2) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury and property damage. 
 
   (3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability: Workers' 
Compensation as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and Employers 
Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident. 
 
   (4) Errors and omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
 B. Other Provisions.  Insurance policies required by this AGREEMENT
 shall contain the following provisions:  
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  1. All Policies.  Each insurance policy required by this paragraph 5 
shall be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by 
the insurer or either party to this AGREEMENT, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after 30 days' prior written notice by Certified mail, return receipt requested, has been 
given to the CITY FINANCE DIRECTOR. 
 
  2. General Liability Accident -- Mobile Liability Rates. 
 
    (1) CITY and its respective elected and appointed officers, 
officials, and employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as 
respects: liability arising out of activities Wallace performs; products and completed 
operations of Wallace; premises owned, occupied or used by CONSULTANT; or 
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Wallace.  The coverage shall contain 
no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, and their respective 
elected and appointed officers, officials, or employees. 
 
   (2) Wallace's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance 
with respect to CITY, and its respective elected and appointed, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY, and its 
respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers, shall apply 
in excess of, and not contribute with, Wallace 's insurance. 
 
   (3) Wallace's insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer's liability. 
 
   (4) Any failure to comply with the reporting or other provisions 
of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to 
CITY, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or 
volunteers. 
 
  3. Workers' Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage.  
Unless the City Manager otherwise agrees in writing, the insurer shall agree to waive all 
rights of subrogation against CITY, and its respective elected and appointed officers, 
officials, employees and agents for losses arising from work performed by Wallace. 
 
 C. Other Requirements.  Wallace agrees to deposit with CITY, at or before 
the effective date of this contract, certificates of insurance necessary to satisfy CITY that 
the insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with.  The City Attorney 
may require that Wallace furnish CITY with copies of original endorsements effecting 
coverage required by this Section.  The certificates and endorsements are to be signed 
by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  CITY reserves the 
right to inspect complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 
 
  1. Wallace shall furnish certificates and endorsements from each 
subcontractor identical to those CONSULTANT provides. 
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  2. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by CITY.  At the option of CITY, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects CITY or its respective elected or 
appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers or the Wallace  shall procure a 
bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, 
defense expenses and claims. 
 
  3. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall 
not be construed to limit Wallace's liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification 
provisions and requirements of this AGREEMENT. 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:      5 
               

  
To: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
  
From:    Marc Bierdzinski, Interim City Manager 
 
Date: June 27, 2013 
 
Subject: Consideration of Contract with the Kosmont Company for 

Economic Development Services 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

Attachment 1 is the draft contract with the Kosmont Company for economic 
development services. The “Revised Proposal” from the Kosmont Company (May 28, 
2013) was previously sent to the City Council and is included as part of Attachment 1. 
 
The Economic Development Task Force (EDTF) reviewed the “Revised Proposal” at 
their June 123, 2013, meeting and recommends that the City enter into the contract. The 
EDTF had the following comments on the “Revised Proposal:”     
 

 Add a provision to the contract to allow for the extension of the contract to further 
the implementation program after the main work program is complete (has been 
added to contract) 

 Is 24 hours enough to complete task 7? 
 Will the market analysis possibly stop a business from coming to town (such as a 

business that is planning to come to town but is shown to be oversaturated)? 
 Kosmont Company needs to stay in touch with stakeholders throughout the 

process    
 
Kosmont Company has been sent these comments and will address all of them as part of 
their work product. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The City Council has authorized $60,000 for this service in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
Budget. 
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Kosmont Company Contract                Page 2 June 27, 2013 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Interim City Manager to execute a 
contract for economic development services with the Kosmont Company in accordance 
with Attachment 1. 

 
ATTACHMENT 
 
 Attachment 1 – Contract with Kosmont Company 
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AGREEMENT FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF BUELLTON 
AND 

KOSMONT COMPANY 
 
 

This AGREEMENT FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF BUELLTON AND KOSMONT COMPANY ("AGREEMENT"), is made and entered 
into this 27th day of June 2013, by and among the CITY OF BUELLTON a municipal 
corporation ("CITY") and KOSMONT COMPANY (“CONSULTANT"). 

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the 

parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 
 
Subject to the provisions of SECTION 19 "TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT" of 

this AGREEMENT, the term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of July 1, 2013, through 
June 30, 2014.  Such term may be extended upon written agreement of both parties to this 
AGREEMENT. 

 
SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
CONSULTANT agrees to perform the services set forth in EXHIBIT "A", “SCOPE 

OF SERVICES" and made a part of this AGREEMENT. 
 

SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 
 
CONSULTANT shall not be compensated for any services rendered in 

connection with its performance of this AGREEMENT which are in addition to or outside of 
those set forth in this AGREEMENT or listed in EXHIBIT "A" unless such additional services are 
authorized in advance and in writing by the City Council or City Manager of CITY. 
CONSULTANT shall be compensated for any such additional services in the amounts and in the 
manner agreed to by the City Council or City Manager. 

 
SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

 
(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this AGREEMENT, CITY agrees to pay 

CONSULTANT the amounts specified in EXHIBIT “A” and made a part of this AGREEMENT.   
 
(b) Each month CONSULTANT shall furnish to CITY an original invoice for all 

work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail 
charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, equipment, 
supplies, sub-consultant contracts and miscellaneous expenses.  CITY shall independently 
review each invoice submitted by the CONSULTANT to determine whether the work performed 
and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this AGREEMENT.  In the event 
that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be approved and paid according to 
the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event CITY disputes any charges or expenses, the 
original invoice shall be returned by CITY to CONSULTANT for correction and resubmission.  

 

Page 56 of 309



Page 2 
 

(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
CONSULTANT which are disputed by CITY, CITY will use its best efforts to cause 
CONSULTANT to be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of CONSULTANT invoice. 

 
(d) Payment to CONSULTANT for work performed pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not he deemed to waive any defects in work performed by CONSULTANT. 
 

SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 
 
CITY may inspect and accept or reject any of CONSULTANT’s work under this 

AGREEMENT, either during performance or when completed.  CITY shall reject or finally accept 
CONSULTANT’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to CITY. CITY shall reject work by a 
timely written explanation, otherwise CONSULTANT’s work shall be deemed to have been 
accepted.  CITY's acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work except with respect to latent 
defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as amount to fraud.  Acceptance of any of 
CONSULTANT’s  work by CITY shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this 
AGREEMENT including, but not limited to, sections 15 and 16, pertaining to indemnification and 
insurance, respectively.  

 
SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 

 
All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 

reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by CONSULTANT in the course of providing any services pursuant to this 
AGREEMENT shall become the sole property of CITY and may be used, reused or otherwise 
disposed of by CITY without the permission of the CONSULTANT.  Upon completion, expiration 
or termination of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT  shall turn over to CITY all such original 
maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer 
files, files and other documents. 
 
SECTION 7. CONSULTANTS BOOKS AND RECORDS. 

 
(a) CONSULTANT shall maintain any and all documents and records 

demonstrating or relating to CONSULTANT's performance of services pursuant to this 
AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, 
vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, 
services, expenditures and disbursements charged to CITY pursuant to this AGREEMENT.  Any 
and all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an accurate 
evaluation of the services provided by CONSULTANT pursuant to this AGREEMENT.  Any and 
all such documents or records shall be maintained for three years from the date of execution of 
this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by laws relating to audits of public agencies and 
their expenditures. 

 
(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 

section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular 
business hours, upon written request by CITY or its designated representative.  Copies of such 
documents or records shall be provided directly to the CITY for inspection, audit and copying 
when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such 
documents and records shall be made available at CONSULTANT's address indicated for 
receipt of notices in this AGREEMENT.  
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(c) Where CITY has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 

required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or 
termination of CONSULTANT's business, CITY may, by written request, require that custody of 
such documents or records be given to the requesting party and that such documents and 
records be maintained by the requesting party.  Access to such documents and records shall be 
granted to CITY, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized representatives.  
 
SECTION 8. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

 
 (a) CONSULTANT is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 

contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of CITY. CONSULTANT shall have no 
authority to bind CITY in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on 
behalf of or against CITY; whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly 
conferred under this AGREEMENT or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by CITY.  

 
(b) The personnel performing the services under this AGREEMENT on behalf of 

CONSULTANT shall at all times be under CONSULTANT's exclusive direction and control.  
Neither CITY, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of 
CITY, shall have control over the conduct of CONSULTANT  or any of CONSULTANT's officers, 
employees or agents, except as set forth in this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall not at any 
time or in any manner represent that CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT's officers, 
employees or agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of CITY.  

 
(c) Neither CONSULTANT), CONSULTANT's officers, employees or agents, 

shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise 
accrue to CITY's employees.  CONSULTANT expressly waives any claim CONSULTANT may 
have to any such rights.  

 
SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  

 
CONSULTANT represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience 

and facilities necessary to properly perform the services required under this AGREEMENT in a 
thorough, competent and professional manner.  CONSULTANT shall at all times faithfully, 
competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services described 
herein.  In meeting its obligations under this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT  shall employ, at a 
minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing 
services similar to those required of CONSULTANT  under this AGREEMENT. 

 
 

SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, PERMITS AND LICENSES.  
 
CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 

federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during 
the term of this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall obtain any and all licenses, permits and 
authorizations necessary to perform the services set forth in this AGREEMENT.  Neither CITY, 
nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of CITY, shall be 
liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with this section. 

 
SECTION 11. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
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Basic Provisions.  In performing the Work, CONSULTANT agrees as follows: 
 
(1)  CONSULTANT  will not discriminate against any employee or applicant from 

employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, political 
affiliation or beliefs, sex, age, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status or pregnancy 
(as those terms are defined by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act—Government 
Code Section 12900-12996), except where such discrimination is based on a bona fide 
occupational qualification.  CONSULTANT  will take positive action or ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, 
creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sexual orientation, political affiliation or beliefs, sex, age, 
physical handicap, medical condition, marital status or pregnancy (as those terms are defined 
by the California Fair Employment and Housing Act—Government Code Section 12900-12996), 
except where such discrimination is based on a bona fide occupational qualification. Such 
action shall include but not be limited to the following:  Employment upgrading, demotion or 
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms 
of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  CONSULTANT agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to 
be provided by CITY setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 
(2)    CONSULTANT  will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees 

placed by or on behalf of CONSULTANT,  state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to race creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
sexual orientation, political affiliation or beliefs, sex, age, physical handicap, medical condition, 
marital status or pregnancy (as those terms are defined by the California Fair Employment and 
Housing Act—Government Code Section 12900-12996), except where such discrimination is 
based on a bona fide occupational qualification.   

 
SECTION 12. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 

 
CONSULTANT hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions 

of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §1101, et seq. as amended, and in 
connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  Should  
CONSULTANT so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services 
covered by this AGREEMENT, and should any liability or sanctions be imposed against CITY 
for such use of unauthorized aliens, CONSULTANT hereby agrees to and shall reimburse CITY 
for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including 
attorneys' fees, incurred by CITY. 

 
SECTION 13. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 

 
(a) CONSULTANT  covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its 

firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner 
with the interests of CITY or which would in any way hinder CONSULTANT's performance of 
services under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT further covenants that in the performance of 
this AGREEMENT, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, 
employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the City Manager.  
CONSULTANT agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of any 
conflicts of interest with the interests of CITY in the performance of this AGREEMENT.  

 
(b) CITY understands and acknowledges that CONSULTANT is, as of the date of 

execution of this AGREEMENT, independently involved in the performance of non-related 
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services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  CONSULTANT is unaware of any 
stated position of CITY relative to such projects.  Any future position of CITY on such projects 
shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section.  

 
SECTION 14. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 

 
(a) All information gained or work product produced by CONSULTANT in 

performance of this AGREEMENT shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in 
the public domain or already known to CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT shall not release or 
disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than CITY without 
prior written authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required by law.  

 
(b) CONSULTANT, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, 

without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City 
Attorney of CITY, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, 
response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this 
AGREEMENT.  Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered "voluntary" 
provided CONSULTANT gives CITY notice of such court order or subpoena.  

 
(c) If CONSULTANT, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 

CONSULTANT, provides any information or work product in violation of this AGREEMENT, then 
CITY shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from CONSULTANT for any 
damages, costs and fees, including attorneys fees, caused by or incurred as a result of 
CONSULTANT's conduct.  

 
(d) CONSULTANT  shall promptly notify CITY should CONSULTANT, its officers, 

employees, agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, 
notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other 
discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this AGREEMENT and the 
work performed thereunder.  CITY retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent 
CONSULTANT or be present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding.  CONSULTANT 
agrees to cooperate fully with CITY and to provide CITY with the opportunity to review any 
response to discovery requests provided by CONSULTANT.  However, this right to review any 
such response does not imply or mean the right by CITY to control, direct, or rewrite said 
response.  

 
SECTION 15. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
INDEMNITY FOR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY:  When the law establishes a 

professional standard of care for CONSULTANT’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, CONSULTANT  shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY and any and all of it’s 
boards, officials, employees, and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from and against all losses, 
liabilities, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees and costs to the extent same 
are caused in whole or in part by any negligent or wrongful act, error or omission of 
CONSULTANT, its officers, agents, employees or subconsultants (or any entity or individual for 
which CONSULTANT  shall bear legal liability) in the performance of professional services 
under this agreement. 

 
INDEMNITY FOR OTHER THAN PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY:  Other than in 

the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT  
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY, and any and all of its boards, employees, 
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officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, 
arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses 
or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorneys fees and costs, 
court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are 
a consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this 
AGREEMENT by CONSULTANT  or by any individual or entity for which CONSULTANT  is 
legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees or subcontractors of 
CONSULTANT. 

 
SECTION 16. INSURANCE. 

 
CONSULTANT  agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the 

term of this AGREEMENT the insurance policies set forth in EXHIBIT “B" "INSURANCE" and 
made a part of this AGREEMENT.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by CITY 
as to form and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved 
in writing by the City Manager.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide CITY with copies of required 
policies upon request.  

 
SECTION 17. ASSIGNMENT. 

 
The expertise and experience of CONSULTANT are material considerations for 

this AGREEMENT.  CITY has an interest in the qualifications of and capability of the persons 
and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon CONSULTANT under this 
AGREEMENT.  In recognition of that interest, CONSULTANT shall not assign or transfer this 
Agreement or any portion of this AGREEMENT or the performance of any of CONSULTANT's 
duties or obligations under this AGREEMENT without the prior written consent of the City 
Council.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute a 
material breach of this AGREEMENT entitling CITY to any and all remedies at law or in equity, 
including summary termination of this AGREEMENT.  CITY acknowledges, however, that 
CONSULTANT, in the performance of its duties pursuant to this AGREEMENT, may utilize 
subcontractors. 

 
SECTION 18. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 

 
CONSULTANT shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 

continuity of CONSULTANT's staff assigned to perform the services required under this 
AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall notify CITY of any changes in CONSULTANT's staff 
assigned to perform the services required under this AGREEMENT, prior to any such 
performance. 

 
SECTION 19. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

 
(a) CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, with or without cause, at any time by 

giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to CONSULTANT.  In the event such notice 
is given, CONSULTANT shall cease immediately all work in progress.  

 
(b) CONSULTANT may terminate this AGREEMENT at any time upon thirty- (30) 

days written notice of termination to CITY.  
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(c) If either CONSULTANT  or CITY fail to perform any material obligation under 
this AGREEMENT, then, in addition to any other remedies, either CONSULTANT, or CITY may 
terminate this AGREEMENT immediately upon written notice.  

 
(d) Upon termination of this AGREEMENT by either CONSULTANT or CITY, all 

property belonging exclusively to CITY, which is in CONSULTANT’s possession, shall be 
returned to CITY. CONSULTANT shall furnish to CITY a final invoice for work performed and 
expenses incurred by CONSULTANT, prepared as set forth in SECTION 4 of this 
AGREEMENT.  This final invoice shall be reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in 
SECTION 4 of this AGREEMENT.  

 
SECTION 20. DEFAULT. 

 
In the event that CONSULTANT is in default under the terms of this 

AGREEMENT, the CITY shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating 
CONSULTANT for any work performed after the date of default and may terminate this 
AGREEMENT immediately by written notice to the CONSULTANT. 

 
SECTION 21. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 

 
CONSULTANT  shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if 

any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the control of 
CONSULTANT.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of the public 
enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of CITY, court orders, fires, floods, 
epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term and price of this 
AGREEMENT shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 

 
SECTION 22. COOPERATION BY CITY. 

 
All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 

available to CITY as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the work as 
outlined in the EXHIBIT "A” "SCOPE OF SERVICES", shall be furnished to CONSULTANT in 
every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue delay, the work to be performed under this 
AGREEMENT. 
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SECTION 23. NOTICES. 

 
All notices required or permitted to be given under this AGREEMENT shall be in 

writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by fax or certified mail, postage prepaid and 
return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

 
To CITY: City of Buellton 
 Attn: Marc Bierdzinski   
 P.O. Box 1819 
 107 W. Highway 246 
 Buellton, CA 93427 
  
To: Larry J. Kosmont 

Kosmont Company  
 825 S. Figueroa Street, 35th Floor  
 Los Angeles, CA 90017 
   

 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 

by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United 
States Postal Service. 

 
SECTION 24. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 

 
The person or persons executing this AGREEMENT on behalf of CONSULTANT 

represents and warrants that he/she/they has/have the authority to so execute this 
AGREEMENT and to bind CONSULTANT to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

 
SECTION 25. BINDING EFFECT. 

 
This AGREEMENT shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 

successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

SECTION 26. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT. 
 
No amendment to or modification of this AGREEMENT shall be valid unless 

made in writing and approved by the CONSULTANT and by the City Council.  The parties agree 
that this requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver 
shall be void. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT 
and attached Exhibit “A”, the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT shall control. In the 
event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and any attached 
exhibits, the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT will control.  

 
SECTION 27. WAIVER. 

 
Waiver by any party to this AGREEMENT of any term, condition, or covenant of 

this AGREEMENT shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  
Waiver by any party of any breach of the provisions of this AGREEMENT shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision, nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
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provision of this AGREEMENT.  Acceptance by CITY of any work or services by CONSULTANT 
shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this AGREEMENT. 
 
SECTION 28. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 

 
This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to 

the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the parties, venue in state 
trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Santa Barbara.  In the event of litigation in a 
U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of California, in Los 
Angeles. 

 
SECTION 29. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 

 
In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 

provision of this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party in such litigation or other proceeding shall 
be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any 
other relief to which it may he entitled. 

 
SECTION 30. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 
This AGREEMENT, including the attached EXHIBITS "A" and “B", is the entire, 

complete, final and exclusive expression of the parties with respect to the matters addressed 
therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or 
entered into between CONSULTANT  and CITY prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT.  No 
statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any party 
which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.  No amendment to this AGREEMENT 
shall be valid and binding unless in writing duly executed by the parties or their authorized 
representatives. 

 
SECTION 31.  SEVERABILITY. 

 
If a term, condition or covenant of this AGREEMENT is declared or determined 

by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this AGREEMENT shall not be affected thereby and the AGREEMENT shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to 
be executed the day and year first above written. 
 
 
KOSMONT COMPANY 
 
 
By:  _____________________________________ 
 
Title: ____________________________________ 
 
 
CITY OF BUELLTON                                                  APRROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:   
                CITY MANAGER                                                Ralph D. Hanson, City Attorney 
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EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
The CONSULTANT shall perform economic development services as specified in the 
attached “Revised Proposal” dated May 28, 2013. 
 
The not-to-exceed cost shall be $60,000 as noted in the “Revised Proposal” dated May 
28, 2013. 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
Economic Development Services 

Page 67 of 309



 
 

1 
 

May 28, 2013 

Mr. Marc Bierdzinski 
Planning Director 
City of Buellton - Planning Dept. 
P.O. Box 1819 
Buellton, CA 93427 
 
RE:  Request for Proposals for Economic Development Services  
 

Dear Mr. Bierdzinski: 
 
Kosmont & Associates, Inc., doing business as Kosmont Companies (“Kosmont” or  
“Consultant”), is pleased to present our qualifications for Economic Development Services for 
the City of Buellton, California (“City”). It is our understanding that the City of Buellton seeks a 
consultant to assist and advise on economic development activities that involve attracting and 
retaining businesses, including but not limited to, establishing best practices and procedures, 
effectively pursuing retail tenants, marketing strategies and programs, and providing 
redevelopment dissolution strategies as may be relevant. 
 
Kosmont Companies, a certified Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), is a full service local 
government, economics and real estate advisory firm with 25+ year track record of working with 
cities and public agencies on economic development strategies and real estate projects that 
have led to successful outcomes. Our public and private sector experience, and in-depth 
expertise in multiple areas such as economic development, real estate development, project 
funding, business costs/incentives and land use / zoning make us the ideal firm to provide the 
City with the required economic development services.  
 
Kosmont is joined in this effort by Platinum PR, a renowned woman-owned public relations firm 
serving municipalities with city-wide marketing, business attraction and outreach programs, 
including the cities of Sierra Madre, Montebello, Pomona, South El Monte, and South Gate. 
Platinum PR Solutions, a frequent collaborator with Kosmont Companies, will provide expert 
help with public relations and media communications. 
 
Since 1986, Kosmont has performed a myriad of similar assignments for hundreds of California 
cities such as South Gate, Redondo Beach, Stanton, Placentia, Redlands, Norco and San 
Jacinto. Currently, we are also helping our clients evaluate alternatives to funding economic 
development without redevelopment.   
 
Kosmont Companies recently served as the Interim City Administrator for Montebello, and our 
staff includes former City Managers as well as Directors of Economic Development, Community 
Development, Redevelopment, and management services for various other local municipalities.  

The Kosmont team understands the needs of the private sector as well. In 1994, I founded the 
Kosmont-Rose Institute Cost of Doing Business Survey which has been the national standard 
for businesses to compare costs among cities when consider a move or an expansion.  
Kosmont also helped establish the first Los Angeles Business Team under Mayor Richard 
Riordan, designed to provide citywide business attraction and retention services. Further we are 

865 South Figueroa Street    35th Floor   Los Angeles   CA   90017   ph 213.417.3300   fx 213.417.3311   www.kosmont.com 
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frequently retained by private sector investment funds, developers and retailers to assist in due 
diligence and financial analysis of properties and projects. These assignments provide Kosmont 
with significant insight in our retail recruitment and business attraction efforts on behalf of our 
city clients. 

The Kosmont Team, if selected, will provide the City with expert knowledge and economic 
development strategies to attract businesses, generate jobs and promote economic growth in 
the absence of redevelopment agencies.  
 
We are available to discuss further at your convenience. 
 
Yours truly, 

  
Larry J. Kosmont, CRE® 
President & CEO 
 
 
  

865 South Figueroa Street    35th Floor   Los Angeles   CA   90017   ph 213.417.3300   fx 213.417.3311   www.kosmont.com 
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Project Team 
Mr. Larry Kosmont will be the contact with primary responsibility for this project. Key staff will not 
be changed during the course of the project following the submittal of this proposal. Staffing for 
this engagement may consist of a combination of the following personnel. 

Larry J. Kosmont, CRE, is President and CEO of Kosmont Companies.  

Mr. Kosmont is a nationally-recognized real estate and economic 
development advisor to public agencies and private organizations. He is the 
founder and Chief Executive of Kosmont Companies as well as the managing 
partner of the Renaissance Community Fund, a real estate development 
company which specializes in suburban infill projects. Mr. Kosmont's 36-year 
career encompasses negotiations, development, and management of real 
estate transactions exceeding $10 Billion. He has an extensive track record 
across all phases of real estate investment, development and management 
as well as a unique insight into the economic, administrative, and political 
aspects of local government decision making. Mr. Kosmont has assisted 
hundreds of local government agencies in project and policy decisions 
ranging from large-scale economic development to site-specific real estate 
strategies and projects.  From 1975 to 1986, Mr. Kosmont served in the roles 
of City Manager, Director of Community Development, and Redevelopment 
Director for the Southern California cities of Santa Monica, Seal Beach, Bell 
Gardens, and Burbank.  He is also a board member of the following state and 
local organizations: 

• California Redevelopment Association (CRA) 
• California Association for Local Economic Development (CALED) 
• USC Lusk Center for Real Estate 

  

Susan Perry, Esq., is a Partner with Kosmont Companies.  With nearly 20 

years of experience in real estate transactions, land use and planning, Ms. 
Perry manages complex assignments involving asset due diligence, 
entitlements and public approvals on behalf of a broad range of private sector 
clients. Ms. Perry is Kosmont Companies' principal project liaison to private 
sector corporations, public agencies, developers, lenders, non-profits and 
REITs.  Ms. Perry is an attorney and a member of both the State Bar of 
California and the American Bar Association and a registered Municipal 
Advisor with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). She has 
served as President of the Southern California Development Forum and 
remains on SCDF's Advisory Board of Directors. 
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C. Wil Soholt, Senior Vice President at Kosmont Companies, functions as 

the firm’s financial and investment strategist for public-private deals. Prior to 
joining Kosmont Companies, Mr. Soholt managed more than 25 
redevelopment projects with an aggregate project cost of $140 million. Mr. 
Soholt's analytical capabilities extend to economic and geographic modeling, 
feasibility modeling, acquisition strategies, demographic projections, and data 
mining.  Mr. Soholt has a talent for consensus building, creative problem 
solving, and identifying opportunities to capture hidden value.  Mr. Soholt 
holds a Master of Business Administration from Pepperdine University and a 
Bachelor of Science in Urban Planning and Real Estate Development from 
the University of Southern California.  He is an instructor in Real Estate 
Development Finance for the California Association of Local Economic 
Development (CALED).  

  

Kenneth K. Hira serves as Senior Vice President for Kosmont 

Companies. An expert in retail development and strategies for retail 
attraction, Mr. Hira has nearly 20 years of varied experience in virtually every 
aspect of real estate financing, downtown revitalization, acquisition, 
entitlement, development, asset management and disposition. Mr. Hira's 
expertise is in identifying retail tenants and negotiating retail and mixed-use 
projects that can revitalize communities and assist in economic 
development/tax generation programs.  

A former Executive Vice President of the Irvine-based mixed-use developer, 
Pacific Century Commercial, Mr. Hira managed a portfolio of over $100 
million of retail sites, while operating the commercial division of the company. 
Prior to this, as a Managing Director of Acquisitions for Westrust and a Vice 
President of Development at Lewis Retail Centers, he evaluated and 
underwrote hundreds of ac`res of land, successfully captured and negotiated 
anchor tenant commitments creating $60 million of value in ground-up 
development and redevelopment, and was responsible for 800,000 square 
feet of retail entitlement, design and development. As Vice President of GMS 
Realty, Mr. Hira entitled one million square feet of retail development 
projects, as well as led the acquisition of 24 neighborhood and community 
shopping centers, totaling 3.3 million square feet and valued at $375 million, 
and organized a $287 million recapitalization of the company. 

Mr. Hira holds a Bachelor degree in Economics and Business from UCLA, 
and is an active volunteer leader of the International Council of Shopping 
Centers. He serves as the ICSC Southern California State Director, while 
previously serving as the ICSC Program Committee Chair and Alliance Co-
Chair, advocating public-private partnerships. Mr. Hira is a registered 
Municipal Advisor with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). 
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Dan Massiello is a Senior Vice President – Public Finance with Kosmont 

Companies. Massiello brings over 20 years of professional experience in the 
Public Finance industry to Kosmont Companies.  Mr. Massiello started his 
career with an east coast financial advisory firm, and has been an investment 
banker in CA for 13 years.  Mr. Massiello has structured and brought to 
market over $4 billion of new money and refunding transactions to market for 
Cities, Redevelopment Agencies, School and Community College Districts 
and Special Districts.  Successfully completed transactions include General 
Fund Financings (Certificates of Participation), Tax Increment, General 
Obligation, Installment Purchase, Lease Revenue, Revenue, Special Tax, 
and Sales Tax supported financings.  A significant portion of these 
transactions involved unrated and challenging credits, which have garnered 
Mr. Massiello the ability to engineer well-structured and marketable financing 
vehicles that consistently meet his clients’ financing goals and objectives. 

Mr. Massiello earned his BS in Management/Finance from the State 
University of New York-Binghamton and held Series 24, 7, and 63 FINRA 
Licenses while employed by a Broker/Deal (currently inactive). 

 

Mr. Chris Jicha is a Senior Consultant with Kosmont Companies.  He 

brings a wealth of understanding both municipalities and real estate markets 
with an exceptional understanding of inland California cities.  Mr. Jicha’s 
expertise ranges from building and guiding economic development 
departments and programs to business development. His 12 years of 
experience as a businessman and entrepreneur along with 6 years 
experience with a County municipality creates a unique blend of experience 
to serve his clients. Mr. Jicha has been involved in 7 business acquisitions 
and relocations as an entrepreneur and provided site selection, incentives, 
workforce development and project entitlement & permitting services to large 
corporations and businesses.  

Currently, Mr. Jicha focuses on providing real estate and development 
advisory services including highest & best use studies, market analysis, retail 
demand studies, and financial analysis/valuation and implementation 
strategies for municipalities in Southern California. 

 

Ryan Aubry, LEED Green Associate, Senior Vice President with Kosmont 

Companies, has over ten years experience in the detailed analysis of infill 
development. He has worked with various governmental organizations on 
planning and development issues relating to infill development, as well as 
with private developers. He has worked closely with the City of Los Angeles 
Planning Department, the County of Los Angeles Planning Department, and 
the Los Angeles Community Redevelopment Agency. Recently he served as 
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a project manager for a development firm focusing on workforce housing in 
the City of Los Angeles, where he was involved in the development of nine 
infill condominium and town home projects as well as assisting with 
acquisition strategies. As a real estate consultant, Mr. Aubry has been 
involved in the underwriting of many property types including multifamily 
apartments, retail malls, urban hotels, and infill residential development. He is 
adept in using Geographic Information Systems (GIS) for the analysis of 
transit oriented development and other project types. He holds a Master's in 
Real Estate Development from the University of Southern California, as well 
as a Masters degree in Geography from the University of California Santa 
Barbara. Mr. Aubry is a member of the Urban Land Institute. He is also a 
registered Municipal Advisor with the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC). 

    

Joseph Dieguez is a Vice President with Kosmont Companies, serving 

clients primarily through market and financial analyses, project due diligence, 
government management services and marketing efforts.  Prior to joining 
Kosmont Companies, Mr. Dieguez served as a senior analyst at a real estate 
investment, development and finance firm and as an analyst at a financial 
services management consulting firm, responsible for industry, market, 
portfolio and property-level research and analysis, negotiations and 
transaction execution support.  Mr. Dieguez was previously an assistant 
project manager at a construction management firm, where he assisted with 
RFQ/P development and project implementation. Mr. Dieguez graduated with 
a Bachelors of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and is a Real Estate Salesperson 
licensed by the State of California Department of Real Estate. 

 

Matt Goulet serves as the firm’s business development manager and 

principal writer for economic and real estate studies. In addition, he manages 
the clients’ land use planning and entitlement processing for real estate 
projects in various communities throughout California. Mr. Goulet has more 
than 15 years of experience working with industries that form the backbone of 
the Southern California economy including aerospace, manufacturing, theme 
parks and motion pictures.  Mr. Goulet has worked with Kosmont Companies 
in a variety of consulting roles since 2006, providing his expertise in 
aggregating disparate information into finished reports and in developing 
strategies for some of Kosmont’s most complex client assignments.  

Prior to joining Kosmont Companies as Vice President, Mr. Goulet worked on 
a variety of land use matters that included entitlement strategies,  political 
outreach, and securing land use approvals for several major projects.  Since 
2008, he has served as the board-level CFO and Vice President of 1010 
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Development Corporation, a non-profit affordable housing developer.  Mr. 
Goulet holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering from the 
University of Maryland, an MBA from California State University Northridge, 
and a Professional Certificate in Real Estate Investments from UCLA. He 
also holds an FE/EIT certification in Mechanical Engineering from the 
Maryland Board of Professional Engineers and has served as a docent 
providing architectural tours for the Los Angeles Conservancy. 

 

Josh Kreger is a Project Analyst with Kosmont Companies where he 

focuses on real estate, market studies, land use, economics research and 
analysis, and marketing activities.  Prior to joining Kosmont Companies, Mr. 
Kreger worked  for the  Los Angeles Department of City Planning where he 
researched and analyzed zoning code processes and procedures and 
worked on staff reports related to CRA dissolution, code compliance and 
RFPs.  Prior to the City of LA, Mr. Kreger worked as a real estate agent in 
downtown San Diego specializing in residential properties. 

Mr. Kreger’s background includes experience in analyzing complex issues, 
negotiation, and market analysis.  Mr. Kreger holds a Juris Doctor from the 
University of San Diego and a Bachelor of Arts in Sociology from the 
University of Maryland.  He is a licensed Real Estate Salesperson, California 
Department of Real Estate. 

 

Key Project Personnel 

Staff Member Title     
Estimated Percentage 

Allotted to Project 

Larry J. Kosmont, CRE President & CEO 5 - 7% 

Susan Perry, Esq. Partner, Senior Vice President 5 - 7% 

Wil Soholt Senior Vice President 5 -15% 

Ken Hira Senior Vice President 10 - 20% 

Ryan Aubry Senior Vice President 10 - 20% 

Joseph Dieguez Vice President 25 - 30% 

Chris Jicha Senior Consultant 5 - 15% 

Josh Kreger Project Analyst 10 - 20% 
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ABOUT THE PLATINUM PR TEAM 
Platinum PR, a 100% woman-owned business provides innovative approaches to strategizing 
and communicating with City Hall, stakeholders and communities. We work with municipalities, 
civic groups, public agencies, department heads and chambers of commerce to help them 
succeed in delivering a powerful message.  
 
Joining us will be the professional staff of Avant-Garde, a 100% woman-owned business, 
certified minority business enterprise, women business enterprise, disadvantaged 
business enterprise, small business enterprise (MBE, WBE, DBE, SBE), and Community 
Based Enterprise (CBE).   

Together we understand the many ways that a single project may affect multiple layers of 
government as well as the desired economic growth and development. We use and leverage 
this information by looking at every angle of a program and/or project to determine the overall 
impact and how best to design and implement outreach and marketing programs that best 
produce optimum results.  With our team of experts in marketing, public relations, community 
outreach, compliance management, grant writing and funding identification and administration, 
our team is committed to creating a working relationship that becomes a seamless extension of 
Kosmont Companies and City of Buellton staff. 

Community Relations 
 
Our Community Relations Specialists can assist all members of the community who need help 
in gaining access to and use of various County/City/Agency and community services and 
resources. We can develop a Community Relations and Participation Program to serve as a 
catalyst for community change and problem solving, insuring maximum community participation 
by empowering citizens to access community resources and services, and by ensuring cultural 
sensitivity throughout the community. Our bi-lingual staff can help establish partnerships that 
enable neighborhood-based organizations to work together to revitalize the economy, generate 
jobs, and rebuild healthy communities.   
 
Media Relations and Communication 

Our Media Relations and Communications Specialists can manage the City of Buellton’s 
communications and media relations activities, produce internal and external publications, 
develop public awareness and involvement campaigns, oversee content on the City’s website 
and manage local government channels. We work with all departments, councils, committee 
and Boards to provide proactive, useful information to citizens.  Our Communications Specialist 
can act as the primary point of contact for news media, organizations and the general public 
seeking information about City programs, policies, procedures, statistics, research and services. 
We assist on all public affairs and strategic communications matters and serves as a liaison 
between departments, communities and agencies on public information matters. The Platinum 
PR Team ensures the right message is delivered using the right means of communication. 

 

PLATINUM PR Team Profile 
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Relevant Project Experience 
 

South Gate – Economic Development & Real Estate Advisory Services 

Kosmont has been under the retainer with the City of South Gate since 2003, and currently 
serves as the real estate, financial and economic development advisor to the City and 
Redevelopment Commission on multiple real estate projects and sites, including the following: 

Former Los Angeles Community College District/ Ameron Site Real Estate Advisory: On 
the City’s behalf, Kosmont conducted the negotiations for a 30+ acre regional lifestyle 
shopping center. As part of the process, Kosmont developed the RFQ and helped the City 
select a development team and negotiate the Purchase and Sale Agreement. Kosmont 
directed the City’s acquisition of the property from the Los Angeles Community College 
District and re-sold the property to the private sector developer on the same day in a back-to-
back escrow. Project design and leasing is currently being negotiated. Additionally, the 
Kosmont and the City are currently negotiating with the developer various public benefit fees 
and is evaluating the potential bonding capacity available through tax increment financing. 

“azalea” Retail Project (former “Gateway”/ “El Portal”): This project is a 600,000 square 
feet 30+ acre regional Promotional and Entertainment Retail Center. Kosmont Companies 
currently leads public private negotiations on behalf of the City. In addition, Kosmont 
Companies has developed the developer RFQ and helped the city select a development team 
and negotiate development agreements. Additionally, Kosmont and the City negotiated 
alternative designs and deal structure points, as well as evaluated potential bonding capacity 
available through tax increment and other public financing structures. Kosmont is leading the 
City’s efforts to utilize Recovery Zone Bonds, a newly available public financing program 
pursuant to the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). Kosmont Companies also 
prepared an Urban Decay Analysis for this project evaluated the local demand for the various 
types of retail within the proposed project, compared that demand to the available retail 
amenities within the City and surrounding communities, and estimated the impacts this 
proposed project might have on local retailers. 

California Senior Plaza Real Estate Advisory: Kosmont assisted the City in working through 
a series of complex real estate workouts that resulted from a prior corrupt City administration. 
Kosmont acted as the City and the Court’s real estate specialist, and sold the California 
Senior Plaza project through a court process, resulting in payoff of liens and return of monies 
that had been previously lost by the City. Kosmont Realty Corporation acted as the Broker of 
Record for this 65 unit affordable senior’s project. 

Hollydale Plaza Real Estate Advisory: Similar to California Senior Plaza above, Kosmont 
negotiated a workout and sale of a property that was partially built, and conducted the 
financial and valuation analysis that is the basis for buyout transaction which resolved 
underlying liens and recover monies for the Redevelopment Agency. The site is a 1.5-acre 
infill site that is currently under contract for an affordable, mixed use project. 
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Village at South Gate Economic Study: This is a 6-acre parcel adjacent to the Los Angeles 
Freeway. Kosmont is in the process of developing a workout strategy for the site in order to 
recover Redevelopment Agency funds that were squandered as part of an act of corruption by 
the prior City administration. Kosmont conducted a highest and best use analysis, and has 
supported the negotiation of an interim lease. 
 

 
Redondo Beach – Economic Development & Real Estate Advisory Services 

Redondo Beach – Business Development: The City of Redondo Beach retained Kosmont 
to assist in the development of a Business Plan for the City’s pier and harbor area. The area is 
in need of revitalization and cohesive strategies to encourage and foster development by 
leveraging public and private resources. The Business Plan was adopted by the City in 2010, 
and Kosmont’s recommendations and strategies are now being implemented to promote and 
accelerate revitalization of the area. 
 
Redondo Beach – Marine Real Estate Services: Kosmont acted as City’s Financial Advisor 
for the transaction structure and financing of a two hotel, 340 room project on Marine Ave and 
the 405 Freeway. The transaction closed as a $48.5 Million financing in the form of a Lease 
Leaseback and Site Specific Tax Revenue pledge.  
 
Redondo Beach – Waterfront Revitalization: Kosmont was retained by the Harbor Division 
of the City of Redondo Beach to develop and execute an Asset Management Plan, which 
included a series of policies for the management and redevelopment of the leaseholds on the 
150 acres that comprise the Redondo Beach Pier and surrounding waterfront district. 
Kosmont developed strategies for encouraging business investment and assessed with 
determination of optimum use and tenant mix to achieve revitalization goals. Kosmont recently 
completed negotiations for the Shade Hotel (Zislis Group), which is proposed luxury boutique 
hospitality facility on land owned by the City pursuant to a ground lease. Kosmont is currently 
retained to establish the highest and best use of the five properties under City control which 
involve the negotiation of multiple lease, financial analysis, coordination of the RFQ processes 
for underdeveloped properties and general transactional support as pertaining to hotel, office, 
retail, restaurant and visitor serving amenities.  Transactions executed in 2012 included two 
lease-leaseback financing structures totaling approximately $11 million (~105% financing and 
positive cash flow) and two property acquisitions totaling approximately $10.5 million.  

 
 
W Hotel 

Kosmont was retained by HEI Hotels to assist in the identification, evaluation, and potential 
procurement of public subsidies and/or other financing assistance related to the development 
of a mixed-use hotel, condominium, nightclub, and restaurant located in Hollywood, California. 
Kosmont identified a source of equity for the Hotel utilizing an EB-5 investment program 
structure for certain sections of the Hotel facilities. 

 

Macerich – Mall of Victor Valley: Retail Implementation & Tenant Enhancement 
Kosmont was retained by Macerich to provide real estate advisory services related to its Mall 
of Victor Valley. The Mall is approx. 550,000 square feet with a vacant Gottschalks 
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department store and a temporarily filled vacant Mervyn’s building.  The City of Victorville 
meanwhile, where the Mall is located, was facing declining sales tax revenues as a result of 
the underperforming retail space.  Kosmont assisted Macerich in the evaluation of a public-
private partnership with the City of Victorville and the exploration of government financing 
solutions for a potentially distressed asset.  Kosmont evaluated & negotiated a "win-win" 
public-private transaction that allowed major retailer attraction/retention for Macerich, sales tax 
preservation for the City, and job generation for the community.  A Site Specific Tax Revenue 
(SSTR) sharing arrangement was employed as part of a Development Agreement between 
Macerich and the City.  As a result, a new Macy's department store was introduced, an 
existing JCPenney was relocated into a larger space, exterior mall improvements were 
implemented, and the regional mall was revitalized as an economic driver for the region. 
 
 

City of Norco – Real Estate & Economic Development Advisor Services    

Kosmont was retained as the City’s real estate and financial advisor on a variety of economic 
development projects. Kosmont completed a hospitality demand analysis for the City of Norco 
to assist the City in its process of establishing a hospitality overlay zone.  The intention of 
creating the hospitality zone within the City was to designate an area where hotels, 
restaurants, and other tourist serving amenities might be located. In order to properly market 
and attract these tourist serving amenities to the hospitality zone, Kosmont worked with the 
City in evaluating the potential demand for such amenities.  Additionally, Kosmont assisted the 
City in estimating the potential future demand should certain tourist attracting amenities be 
developed within the City. 
 
The City purchased a deed-restricted 122-acre site for $5 million known locally as 
“Silverlakes”, but it could not capitalize the land investment into a public park without some 
private investment.  In response, Kosmont Companies initiated an extensive RFP process on 
behalf of the City of the Site.  At the end of an exhaustive search, Kosmont recommended 
Belstarr, an experienced operator of equestrian, soccer and recreational facilities to enter into 
a long-term ground lease with the City.  Belstarr was then responsible for financing $30 million 
of improvement costs and to construct, operate and manage the facility (in addition to 
providing public programs).  Lease payments to the City included ground rent, CPI increases 
and repayment to the City for $6 million in public improvements.  Belstarr is now developing a 
world-class sports and performance event facility that is expected to attract millions of visitors.  
Furthermore, the City will own a world-class facility at the expiration of the ground lease.  An 
initial phase of the project is expected to open in 2013 with the second and final phase to 
open in 2014. 
 
 

Santa Clarita RDA – Retail Analysis and Recruitment  
Kosmont was retained by the Santa Clarita Redevelopment Agency to assist with 
redevelopment services including the evaluation of downtown revitalization opportunities in 
Old Town Newhall on Main Street to be anchored by a new library. Kosmont was retained to 
market Agency-owned block redevelopment project to retailers and developers, market at 
International Council of Shopping Centers conferences, research financing solutions for the 
Project and a potential parking structure, provide an Implementation Strategy and an 
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Approach presentation. Kosmont is also assisting with the Sierra Gateway mixed-use Project 
feasibility analysis and developer negotiations. 

 

San Jacinto – Economic Development Services  

Kosmont was retained by the City of San Jacinto to assist with various retail economic 
development services, including but not limited to the structuring and implementation of 
business attraction programs, pursuit of project funding from various public and private 
sources evaluation of current tourism programs and strategic advisory and implementation 
assistance related to enhancements to such programs and marketing and branding efforts.  
Kosmont is also identifying potential financing sources which may include taxable/tax-exempt 
bonds, lease/leasebacks, redevelopment funds, Infrastructure Financing District, EB-5 
immigrant investor funds, grants and guarantee sources (e.g. EPA, EDA, HUD, DOT, DOE), 
and other specialized economic development funding sources as part of their services. 

 

City of Diamond Bar – Real Estate & Economic Development Advisory Services 
Kosmont was originally retained by the City to write a Comprehensive Economic Development 
Strategy, was subsequently retained by the City to execute that strategy, and served the City 
as its real estate advisor for approximately five (5) years. Kosmont assisted the City with 
negotiations with a residential developer on the subject of City impact fees and the 
appropriate level of fees to charge.  It also provided pro forma analyses, and advice on project 
processing and zoning matters.  Kosmont completed financial pro formas and negotiation of 
fees for a Target Center on Diamond Bar Boulevard which is now open and operating 

 

Placentia – Real Estate & Economic Development Advisory Services 

Kosmont is retained by the City of Placentia for a variety of economic development and real 
estate advisory services, including project/developer negotiations, public-private transaction 
structuring, project due diligence, proforma analyses and fiscal impact, highest-and-best-use, 
tax and other economic analyses 

 
 
City of Goleta – Economic Development Strategic Plan 

Kosmont was retained by the City of Goleta to prepare an Economic Development Strategic 
Plan (EDSP). The objective of the Plan was to help the City better understand existing 
conditions (strengths, weakness, opportunities, and threats), guide future economic decisions 
and actions, and develop realistic and feasible programs for the future. The EDSP was locally 
based and preserved and enhanced the academic and “incubator” environment based upon 
proximity to the University of California, Santa Barbara. The plan was oriented to help City’s 
long-term preservation and enhancement of the tax base. 
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Montebello – Interim City Administrator & Financial Turnaround Implementation 
Kosmont was retained by the City of Montebello as the Interim City Administrator and 
Financial Turnaround Specialist. Kosmont's extensive services provided include operational 
and fiscal stabilization, long-term financial strategy advisory, media relations and marketing 
outreach and day-to-day city management duties.  Under the guidance of Kosmont, the City 
has adopted, for the first time in its history, a five-year financial plan tied to cash flows and a 
balanced budget for the 2011 fiscal year.  Other efforts included the active shopping of the 
financial marketplace for the placement of tax and revenue anticipation note (TRAN) financing 
to overcome short-term cash flow hurdles. 
 

 
City of Carson – Economic Development Strategy  

Kosmont Companies assisted Watt Communities prepare a developer response for a RFP to 
develop 9.57 acre property in the City of Carson. The RFP was issues by the City’s 
Redevelopment Agency. The Agency was seeking a qualified developer to deliver a mixed-
use residential and retail project. Kosmont offered guidance on potential prevailing wage and 
green building issues. 

 
 

RRM – LANI West Boulevard: Economic Development & Financial Advisory Services 

Kosmont was retained by the Los Angeles Neighborhood Initiative (LANI) to assist with market 
analysis, economic development strategies, retail opportunity assessment and identification of 
viable funding sources in connection with its West Boulevard Community Linkages and 
Revitalization TOD Project. The purpose of the Project was to craft a strategy document 
outlining how the neighborhood could be revitalized following the opening of the planned 
Metro Crenshaw Line light rail station. The process relied on extensive input from community 
members. The Project study area is in the cities of Los Angeles and Inglewood. 
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Scope of Work 

 
Task 1: Economic & Demographic Profile 

Kosmont will prepare an Economic and Demographic Profile, illustrating existing and future 
projected trends in population and household social and economic characteristics, including 
incomes, race/ethnicity, housing preferences, educational attainment, unemployment, 
employment by industry and occupation, commute patterns, employed resident place of work, 
resident/employee concentrations, and other metrics.  Kosmont will utilize the City's Economic 
Development Element of the General Plan and other relevant goals and policies, the 2008 City 
CALED Study, meetings with City staff, the economic development task force, City Council 
members, the Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau, Santa Ynez Valley Tourism 
Business Improvement District, other relevant stakeholder groups, the 2012 Public Vision Plan, 
U.S. Census Bureau, U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, California Employment Development 
Department, California Retail Survey, ESRI, broker-provided market data (e.g. vacancy, lease 
rates), and other sources. 
 
 
Task 2: Market Demand Analysis 

Pursuant to direction from City Staff and in alignment with goals and objectives expressed in 
previous studies, Kosmont will evaluate the market demand for various relevant development 
types (e.g. retail, tourism / recreation / entertainment, office, industrial, residential, etc.) within 
the City.  Analyses will include retail sales leakage/surplus analysis and retailer void evaluation 
by retail category, employment projections by industry category (e.g. for office/industrial space 
users), and resident household growth projections.  Kosmont will evaluate existing supply 
conditions, such as existing retail offerings and tourism / recreation / entertainment amenities. 
 
 
Task 3: SWOT Analysis 

Based on results obtained in Tasks 1 and 2, Kosmont will prepare in collaboration with City and 
City-recommended stakeholders a Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) 
Analysis. Kosmont will present analysis and results from Tasks 1 and 2, and incorporate 
feedback into SWOT analysis. 
 
 
Task 4: Economic Development Implementation Plan 

Based on Tasks 1 through 3, Kosmont will prepare an Economic Development Implementation 
Plan (“Implementation Plan”) levering strengths and focusing on opportunities identified in the 
SWOT Analysis.  Kosmont will recommend a road map of short-term and longer-term goals, 
strategies, and key action items for implementation.  Goals will include existing (retail) tax base 
retention and enhancement, business retention and development, and promotion of long-term 
fiscal stability.  Kosmont will identify potential economic incentives, funding sources, and/or 
financing structures in alignment with potential implementation steps, such as, but not limited to, 
site specific tax revenue pledges, tourism districts, (taxable/tax-exempt) bonds or notes, lease 
or lease/leaseback financing, grants, and/or EB-5 Immigrant investment. Kosmont will identify 
possible economic incentives and zoning strategies for project development. 
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Task 5: Financing & Incentives Strategy 

Kosmont will work in collaboration with City staff to prepare a strategy for the formation and 
implementation of an entity devoted to business and retail attraction and job creation, serving in 
essence as a type of Economic Development Corporation (“EDC”).  The proposed EDC, acting 
as an extension of the City, would incentivize businesses based on measurable positive metrics, 
such as job creation and fiscal revenue generation.  The EDC could be authorized to perform 
activities such as acquire, manage, and dispose of real property, obtain financial assistance 
from public and private sources, issues debt, enter into joint powers agreements (“JPA”) with 
other public agencies, offer financial assistance to developers, and/or other tasks in connection 
with the promotion of economic development within the City. 
 
 
Task 6: Present Plan to the Economic Development Task Force and City Council 
Upon review by City staff, Kosmont will present the Implementation Plan to the Economic 
Development Task Force and then to the City Council (two meetings total). 
 
 
Task 7: Initial Implementation of the Implementation Plan 

As a firm focused on strategy and project implementation, Kosmont would assist in the initial 
implementation of the Economic Development Implementation Plan.  Kosmont staff includes 
International Council of Shopping Centers (ICSC) Southern California State Director and other 
active industry leaders, which uniquely enables the firm to assist City in retail, hospitality, 
recreation, and other industry recruitment efforts and related tasks.  Kosmont’s experience with 
tourism and other special districts and other alternative economic incentives and financing 
mechanisms empowers the firm to assist the City in promoting public-private transactions with 
active private sector constituents. 
 
 
Deliverables 
Consultant will provide electronic copies (in PPT and PDF) of the Economic and Demographic 
Profile, Market Demand Analysis, SWOT Analysis, Economic Development Implementation 
Plan, and Financing & Incentives Strategy.  Consultant will also provide hard copies as 
requested by City on a case-by-case basis. 
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Fee Adjustment Method 
Adjustments in compensation during the contract period will require approval of both Kosmont 
and the City in advance. 

 
Insurance 
 
Kosmont carries all the requisite insurances in the amounts requested by City, and will provide 
all requested insurance certificates and name the City as additional insured, if selected for the 
assignment.  
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Estimated Project Schedule 
 
Project schedule is estimated within the ranges: 
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Estimated Budget 
 

Budget is estimated within the ranges below.  Task budgets may be re-allocated between tasks 
and personnel categories as deemed appropriate by Consultant in order to adequately provide 
services to City. 
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Professional Fees 
 

Services as described herein will be invoiced monthly at Consultant’s standard billing rates, as 
shown on the 2013 Public Agency Fee Schedule below, plus reimbursement for out-of-pocket 
expenses such as travel and mileage, professional printing, conference calls, and delivery 
charges for messenger and overnight packages at actual cost. Consultant will also include in 
each invoice an administrative services fee to cover in-house copy, fax, telephone and postage 
costs equal to four percent (4.0%) of Consultant’s monthly professional service fees incurred. 
Whenever practical, materials will be produced in electronic format for distribution/review in lieu 
of hard copy formats.  Any unpaid invoices after 30 days shall accrue interest at the rate of 10% 
per annum. 
 
Kosmont Companies 
2013 Public Agency Fee Schedule 
 
President & CEO $295.00/hour  
 
Partner/Senior Vice President/Senior Consultant $225.00/hour  
 
Vice President/Associate $185.00/hour  
 
Project Analyst / Project Manager $150.00/hour  
 
GIS Mapping/Graphics Service/Research $ 95.00/hour  
 
Clerical Support $ 60.00/hour  
 
  
• Additional Expenses 

In addition to professional services (labor) fees: 
1) An administrative fee for in-house copy, fax, phone and postage costs will be charged, 

which will be computed at four percent (4.0 %) of monthly Kosmont Companies 
professional service fees incurred; plus 

2) Out-of-pocket expenditures, such as travel and mileage, professional printing, and 
delivery charges for messenger and overnight packages will be charged at cost. 

 
• Charges for Court/Deposition/Expert Witness-Related Appearances 

Court-related (non-preparation) activities, such as court appearances, depositions, 
mediation, arbitration, dispute resolution and other expert witness activities, will be charged 
at a court rate of 1.5 times scheduled rates, with a 4-hour minimum. 

 
 
Rates shall remain in effect until December 31, 2013 
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EXHIBIT "B" 

INSURANCE 

 
 A. Insurance Requirements.  CONSULTANT shall provide and maintain 
insurance, acceptable to the City Manager or City Council, in full force and effect 
throughout the term of this AGREEMENT, against claims for injuries to persons or 
damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
work hereunder by CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives or employees.  Insurance 
is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  
CONSULTANT shall provide the following scope and limits of insurance: 
 
  1. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 
broad as: 
 
   (1) Insurance Services Office form Commercial General Liability 
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 0001). 
 
   (2) Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/87) 
covering Automobile Liability, including code 1 "any auto" and endorsement CA 0025, or 
equivalent forms subject to the written approval of the City. 
 
   (3) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the 
Labor Code of State of California and Employer's Liability insurance and covering all 
persons providing services on behalf of the CONSULTANT and all risks to such persons 
under this AGREEMENT. 
 
   (4) Errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to the 
CONSULTANT's profession. 
 
  2. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  CONSULTANT shall maintain limits 
of insurance no less than: 
 
   (1) General Liability: $1,000,000 general aggregate for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage. 
 
   (2) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury and property damage. 
 
   (3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability: Workers' 
Compensation as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and Employers 
Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident. 
 
   (4) Errors and omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
 B. Other Provisions.  Insurance policies required by this AGREEMENT
 shall contain the following provisions:  
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  1. All Policies.  Each insurance policy required by this paragraph 5 
shall be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by 
the insurer or either party to this AGREEMENT, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after 30 days' prior written notice by Certified mail, return receipt requested, has been 
given to the CITY FINANCE DIRECTOR. 
 
  2. General Liability Accident -- Mobile Liability Rates. 
 
    (1) CITY and its respective elected and appointed officers, 
officials, and employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds as 
respects: liability arising out of activities CONSULTANT performs; products and 
completed operations of CONSULTANT; premises owned, occupied or used by 
CONSULTANT; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by CONSULTANT.  
The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to 
CITY, and their respective elected and appointed officers, officials, or employees. 
 
   (2) CONSULTANT's insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance with respect to CITY, and its respective elected and appointed, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
CITY, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or 
volunteers, shall apply in excess of, and not contribute with, CONSULTANT's insurance. 
 
   (3) CONSULTANT's insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits 
of the insurer's liability. 
 
   (4) Any failure to comply with the reporting or other provisions 
of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to 
CITY, and its respective elected and appointed officers, officials, employees or 
volunteers. 
 
  3. Workers' Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coveraqe.  
Unless the City Manager otherwise agrees in writing, the insurer shall agree to waive all 
rights of subrogation against CITY, and its respective elected and appointed officers, 
officials, employees and agents for losses arising from work performed by 
CONSULTANT. 
 
 C. Other Requirements.  CONSULTANT  agrees to deposit with CITY, at or 
before the effective date of this contract, certificates of insurance necessary to satisfy 
CITY that the insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with.  The City 
Attorney may require that CONSULTANT furnish CITY with copies of original 
endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section.  The certificates and 
endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage 
on its behalf.  CITY reserves the right to inspect complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, at any time. 
 
  1. CONSULTANT shall furnish certificates and endorsements from 
each subcontractor identical to those CONSULTANT provides. 
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  2. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 
approved by CITY.  At the option of CITY, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects CITY or its respective elected or 
appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers or the CONSULTANT  shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, defense expenses and claims. 
 
  3. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall 
not be construed to limit CONSULTANT's liability hereunder nor to fulfill the 
indemnification provisions and requirements of this AGREEMENT. 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:      6 
 
To:                             The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:                         Annette Muñoz, Finance Director 
 
Meeting Date:           June 27, 2013 
 
Subject:                     Acceptance of City of Buellton, California Financial Statements –  
                                  June 30, 2012 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
At the end of each fiscal year an independent audit of the City’s financial records is 
required.  The audit for Fiscal Year 2011-12 has been completed by the firm of JJACPA, 
Inc., Certified Public Accountants and is presented here for your review and acceptance.  
 
The last two years the audit was brought to Council in January and February.  For fiscal 
year 2011-12 additional reporting was required by the State due to the dissolution of the 
Buellton Redevelopment Agency.  Additional audits were also required by the 
Department of Finance and the State for the city’s finance director. Those are the reasons 
the presentation of the audit has been delayed this year. 
 
Joe Arch, President/CEO of JJACPA, Inc. will be presenting the audited financials to the 
Council.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 
There is no fiscal impact to the City as a result of the approval of the financial statements. 
The cost of the preparation of the City’s Fiscal Year 2011-12 Audit is $22,000.00 and is 
included in the FY 2012-13 Budget. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City Council review and accept the City of Buellton, California Financial 
Statements - June 30, 2012. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Governing Board Letter 6-18-13 
Attachment 2 - City of Buellton, California Financial Statements - June 30, 2012. 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
 

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE AND 
COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED MATTERS 

 
JUNE 30, 2012 
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7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 • phone (925) 556-6200 • fax: (510) 217-5930 
www.jjacpa.com 

 

 
 
  June 18, 2013 
 
 
 
City Council 
City of Buellton 
Buellton, California 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Buellton (City) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated June 10, 2013. Professional standards 
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

 
Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (and when applicable, 
Government Auditing Standards) 
 
As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2012, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that 
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of 
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such 
internal control. 

 
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you. 
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Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 
 
Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents 
containing the City’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial information 
identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to corroborate such 
other information. 
 
Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a 
material misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such 
information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner 
of its presentation, appearing in the financial statements. 
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  
 
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 
you. 

 
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices  
 
Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary 
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the City is included in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in 
significant accounting policies or their application during June 30, 2012. No matters have come to 
our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the 
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant 
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. 
 
Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge 
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from 
management’s current judgments. 

 
The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are useful lives of capital 
assets (“useful lives”). 

 
Management’s estimate of the useful lives is based on experience with and observation of capital 
assets, by category (e.g. infrastructure) as well as industry standards, when applicable (i.e. 
buildings). We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Financial Statement Disclosures  

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the 
City’s financial statements relate to commitments and contingencies. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance 
of the audit. 
 
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 
 
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and 
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all identified 
misstatements.  
 
In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit 
procedures. None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and 
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial 
statements taken as a whole or applicable opinion units. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, which could be significant to the City’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such 
disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in a separate 
letter dated June 18, 2013. 
 
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no 
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 
 
Other Significant Findings or Issues 
 
In the normal course of our professional association with the City, we generally discuss a variety of 
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and 
regulatory conditions affecting the City, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks 
of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the 
entity’s auditors. 
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Communication of Internal Control Related Matters 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Buellton as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2012, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) 
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. 

 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of 
Buellton and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
  
 
 
 
 
  Very truly yours, 
 

]ÉáxÑ{ ] TÜv{?VcT 
 
  JOSEPH J ARCH, CPA 
  President/CEO 
  JJACPA, INC 
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CITY OF BUELLTON, CALIFORNIA 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  
 

JUNE 30, 2012 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Annette Munoz 
Finance Director 
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7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 ● phone (925) 556-6200 ● fax: (510) 217-5930 
www.jjacpa.com 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
of the City of Buellton 
Buellton, California 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Buellton, 
California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit.  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2012, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 10, 
2013, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 
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To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
of the City of Buellton 
Buellton, California 
Page 2  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3–16 and 29–
30 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section is presented for 
the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

 

       ]]TVcT? \ÇvA 
June 10, 2013                      JJACPA, Inc. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

3 
 

This section provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of 
Buellton (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. It should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The assets of the City of Buellton exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year by $40,966,460 (net assets). Of this amount, $16,150,788 (unrestricted net assets) may be 
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 
 The Government's total net assets increased by $633,919. This increase is attributable to an 

increase of $773,019 in the City's total assets and an increase of ($139,100) in total liabilities. 
 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Buellton's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $13,219,995 an increase of $332,279  in comparison with 
the prior fiscal year. Approximately 84 percent of this total amount, $11,056,477 is available 
for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

 
 At the end of the current fiscal year, there was an unassigned fund balance for the general fund 

of $11,334,055.    
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OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
This Annual Financial Report is in two major parts: 
 

1) Introductory section, which includes general information; 
 

2) Financial section, which includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this part), 
the Basic Financial Statements, which include the Government-wide and the Fund 
Financial Statements along with the notes to these financial statements, and Combining and 
Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules. 

 
The Basic Financial Statements 
 
The Basic Financial Statements are comprised of the Government-wide Financial Statements and the 
Fund Financial Statements; these two sets of financial statements provide two different views of the 
City’s financial activities and financial position. 
 
The Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The Government-wide Financial Statements provide a broad overview of the City’s activities as a 
whole and comprise the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Net 
Assets provides information about the financial position of the City as a whole, including all its capital 
assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that used by corporations. The 
Statement of Activities provides information about all the City’s revenues and all its expenses, also on 
the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or expenses of each the City’s 
programs. The Statement of Activities explains in detail the change in Net Assets for the year. 
 
All of the City’s activities are grouped into Governmental Activities and Business-type activities, as 
explained below. All the amounts in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are 
separated into Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities in order to provide a summary of 
these two activities of the City as a whole. 
 

♦ Governmental activities – All of the City’s basic services are considered to be 
governmental activities, including general government, community development, culture 
and leisure, public safety, and public works. These services are supported by general City 
revenues such as taxes and by specific program revenues such as developer fees. The City’s 
governmental activities include the activities of a separately legal entity, the former 
Buellton Redevelopment Agency (RDA) because the City was financially accountable for 
this entity. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 109 of 309



City of Buellton, California 
Basic Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued 
 

 

5 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued 
 
The Government-wide Financial Statements, Continued 
 

♦ Business-type activities – All the City’s enterprise activities are reported here, including 
Water and Wastewater. Unlike governmental services, these services are supported by 
charges paid by users based on the amount of the service they use. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of 
the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the 
Government-wide Financial Statements, Governmental Fund Financial Statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of the Governmental Fund Financial Statements is narrower than that of the 
Government-wide Financial Statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the Government-
wide Financial Statement. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
government’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about each of the City’s 
most significant funds, called major funds. The concept of major funds, and the determination of which 
are major funds, was established by GASB Statement No. 34 and replaces the concept of combining 
like funds and presenting them as one total.  Instead, each major fund is presented individually, with all 
non-major funds summarized and presented only in a single column. Subordinate schedules present the 
detail of these non-major funds. Major funds present the major activities of the City for the year, and 
may change from year to year as a result of changes in the pattern of the City’s activities. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued 
 

Fund Financial Statements, Continued 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City’s major funds are as follows: 
 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS: 
 General Fund 
 Former Redevelopment Agency Community Development Special Revenue Fund 

 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: 
 Water Enterprise Fund 
 Wastewater Enterprise Fund 

 

Proprietary funds. The City maintains Enterprise-type proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the Government-wide Financial 
Statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for Water and Wastewater operations. 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the Government-wide Financial Statements, 
only in more detail.  
 
Fiduciary funds. The City maintains two private-purpose trust funds and one agency fiduciary fund. 
The agency funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Since agency funds are custodial in nature, (i.e. assets equal liabilities), they do not 
involve the measurement of results of operations. Private-purpose trust funds are not reflected in the 
government-wide financial statements for this reason.  
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can 
be found on pages 40–71 of this report.  
 
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are 
presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund 
statements can be found on pages 76–95 of this report. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. 
 

In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $40,966,460 as of June 30, 2012.  
 
The Summary of Net Assets as of June 30, 2012, and 2011, follows: 
 

Govern- Business- Govern- Business-

mental type mental type

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Current and other assets 11,590,482$          5,443,195$        17,033,677$          13,533,929$          5,794,383$      19,328,312$           

Noncurrent assets 19,479,661            5,563,438          25,043,099            16,445,038            5,530,407        21,975,445             

Total assets 31,070,143            11,006,633        42,076,776            29,978,967            11,324,790      41,303,757             

Current and other liabilities 301,810                 194,597             496,407                 501,328                 72,516             573,844                  

Noncurrent liabilities 501,505                 112,404             613,909                 279,650                 117,722           397,372                  

Total liabilities 803,315                 307,001             1,110,316              780,978                 190,238           971,216                  

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets 17,403,453            5,563,438          22,966,891            16,445,038            5,530,407        21,975,445             

Restricted 1,848,781              -                        1,848,781              4,282,496              -                       4,282,496               

Unrestricted 11,014,594            5,136,194          16,150,788            8,470,455              5,604,145        14,074,600             

Total net assets 30,266,828$          10,699,632$      40,966,460$          29,197,989$          11,134,552$    40,332,541$           

Summary of Net Assets

20112012

 

Restricted net assets decreased by $2,433,715 due to the reclassification of previously restricted 
balances that have now been determined to be unrestricted.   
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
The change in net assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, and 2011, follows: 
 

Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental type mental type

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Revenues:
Program revenues:  

Charges for services 199,041$               1,986,776$          2,185,817$             475,404$                1,960,196$       2,435,600$             
Grants and contributions:

Operating 1,225,407              462                      1,225,869               356,627                  -                        356,627                  
Capital -                            34,720                 34,720                    182,490                  114,575            297,065                  

General revenues:
Secured and unsecured

property taxes 1,479,869              -                           1,479,869               1,718,074               -                        1,718,074               
Sales and use tax 1,611,788              -                           1,611,788               1,552,752               -                        1,552,752               
Other taxes 1,826,202              -                           1,826,202               1,813,950               -                        1,813,950               
Investment income 468,543                 14,519                 483,062                  127,128                  23,774              150,902                  
Other income -                            -                           -                              5,917                      23,140              29,057                    

Total revenues 6,810,850              2,036,477            8,847,327               6,232,342               2,121,685         8,354,027               

Expenses:
Governmental activities:  

General government 1,484,345              -                           1,484,345               1,040,330               -                        1,040,330               
Community development 1,131,764              -                           1,131,764               1,804,188               -                        1,804,188               
Culture and leisure 621,570                 -                           621,570                  819,223                  -                        819,223                  
Public safety 1,350,473              -                           1,350,473               947,844                  -                        947,844                  
Public works 862,578                 -                           862,578                  638,904                  -                        638,904                  
Depreciation - unallocated -                            -                           -                              737,978                  -                        737,978                  

Business-type activities: -                              
Water -                            1,699,457            1,699,457               -                              1,623,335         1,623,335               
Sewer -                            771,940               771,940                  -                              842,378            842,378                  

Total expenses 5,450,730              2,471,397            7,922,127               5,988,467               2,465,713         8,454,180               

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
expenses before transfers 1,360,120              (434,920)              925,200                  243,875                  (344,028)           (100,153)                 

Transfers -                            -                           -                              -                              
Extraordinary item (291,281)               -                           (291,281)                 -                              -                        -                              

Change in net assets 1,068,839              (434,920)              633,919                  243,875                  (344,028)           (100,153)                 

Net assets:
Beginning of year 29,197,989            11,134,552          40,332,541             28,954,114             11,478,580       40,432,694             
End of year 30,266,828$          10,699,632$        40,966,460$           29,197,989$           11,134,552$     40,332,541$           

Changes in Net Assets

20112012
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Revenues 
 
The City’s total revenues for governmental and business-type activities were $8,847,327 for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012. Approximately 49% of the City’s key revenues are generated from three 
major sources.  
 
The following discusses variances in key revenues from the prior fiscal year: 
 

1. Sales and Use Taxes – The change in sales and use tax was mainly due to increased 
consumer spending as the economy slowly recovers.   

 
2. Secured and Unsecured Property Taxes – Annual receipts decreased by 14%, due to a 

continued decline in property values and foreclosures throughout the state. 
 

3. Grants and Contributions – Governmental Activities Operating – The increase in 
Governmental operating grants and contributions was mainly due to street, road, and 
community enhancement operating grants.   
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Expenses 
 
Governmental and business-type activity expenses of the City for the year totaled $7,922,127.           
Governmental activity expenses totaled $5,450,730 or 69% of total expenses. Business-type activities 
incurred $2,471,397 of expenses during the fiscal year. General government expenses represented 27% 
of total governmental activities expenses and include City Council, City Manager, City Clerk, City 
Attorney, Non-departmental and Finance. Charges for services and other fees partially offset the cost 
of this category. 
 
 Public safety expenses represented 25% of total governmental activities expenses. Revenues from 
fines and grants partially offset the cost of this category. 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
The following table shows the cost of each of the City’s major programs and the net cost of the 
programs.  Net cost is the total cost less fees and other direct revenue generated by the activities. The 
net cost reflects the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of the programs. 
The total cost of services and the net cost of services for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, and 
2011, are as follows: 
 

Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services

General government 1,484,345$     1,430,694$     1,040,330$     947,712$          
Community development 1,131,764       1,131,764       947,844          786,990            
Culture and leisure 621,570          561,784          638,904          483,588            
Public safety 1,350,473       1,183,919       1,804,188       1,737,572         
Public works 862,578          (281,879)        819,223          280,106            
Depreciation -unallocated -                      -                      737,978          737,978            

Total 5,450,730$     4,026,282$     5,988,467$     4,973,946$       

2012 2011
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Revenues by source for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, and 2011, are as follows: 
 

Charges for services
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Operating grants
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Secured and unsecured 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the City’s net assets by $434,920. The 
City has two business-type activities:  Water and Wastewater. Water accounts for 69%, and 
Wastewater accounts for 31% of total business-type activity revenue. The expenses and program 
revenues for the business-type activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, and 2011, are as 
follows: 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
The revenues by source for the business-type activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, and 
2011, are as follows:  
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
The City of Buellton uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City government, 
reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Buellton's governmental funds is to provide 
information on near term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the City of Buellton's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund 
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the 
end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Buellton's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $13,219,995, an increase of $332,279 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. 
Approximately 84 percent of this total amount ($11,056,477) constitutes unassigned fund balance, 
which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is 
nonspendable or restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already 
been committed 1) to cover a note receivable for the Housing Fund ($200,000), 2) to fund amounts 
prepaid for the following fiscal year ($114,737) for the General Fund and 3) for a variety of other 
restricted purposes ($1,848,781).  
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Buellton. The total fund balance in the 
general fund was $11,448,792.  
 
The fund balance of the City of Buellton's general fund increased by $915,681 during the current fiscal 
year. Key factors in this growth are as follows: 
 
• A net increase in general fund revenues of $724,964. 
 
Proprietary funds. The City of Buellton's proprietary funds provide the same type of information 
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net assets of the water fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $3,204,873 and those 
for the wastewater fund amounted to $1,931,321. The total change in unrestricted net assets for both 
funds were ($349,209) and ($118,742), respectively.  
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
During the fiscal year, there were no changes in appropriations between the original and final budgets. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The City of Buellton's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of June 30, 2012, amounts to $22,966,891 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, equipment and infrastructure. The total 
increase in the City's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $991,446. Of the total 
increase, governmental activities showed an increase of $958,415, resulting from an increase in net 
depreciable capital assets. Accumulated depreciation decreased to adjust the balances of the remaining 
assets, total asset valuations did not change. Business-type activities increased by $33,031, due to an 
increase in net depreciable capital assets.  

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Nondepreciable -Land 1,536,248$        1,536,248$        247,691$           247,691$           1,783,939$        1,783,939$        
Buildings and improvements 4,221,448          8,346,414          574,387             -                        4,795,835          8,346,414          
Equipment 385,766             392,039             582,952             557,499             968,718             949,538             
Infrastructure 15,815,655        16,183,515        10,729,454        10,968,077        26,545,109        27,151,592        

Total Depreciable Capital Assets 20,422,869        24,921,968        11,886,793        11,525,576        32,309,662        36,447,544        
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 4,555,664          10,013,178        6,571,046          6,242,860          11,126,710        16,256,038        
Net Depreciable Capital Assets 15,867,205        14,908,790        5,315,747          5,282,716          21,182,952        20,191,506        

Net Capital Assets 17,403,453$      16,445,038$     5,563,438$       5,530,407$       22,966,891$      21,975,445$     

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 
 
More detail of the capital assets and current activity can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements on Pages 46 and 47 for significant accounting policies and Note 5 on Page 57 for other 
capital asset information. 
 
Debt Administration 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Buellton had no long-term debt outstanding. The City 
has no general obligation or revenue bonds. 

Economic Outlook 

 The unemployment rate for the City of Buellton is currently 5.8 percent, which is an increase from 
a rate of 6.3 percent a year ago. This compares favorably to the unemployment rate of 8.0 percent 
for Santa Barbara County (the county where Buellton is located), the State of California's average 
unemployment rate of 10.6 percent and the national average unemployment rate of 8.2 percent. 
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Economic Outlook, continued 

 The City increased water and wastewater meter rates beginning June 1, 2011 and will continue 
approximately every six months over a four year period. The last meter rate increase is scheduled 
for January 2015. All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Buellton's budget 
for the 2011-12 fiscal year. 
 

NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS 
 
The adopted budget for all City funds for the new fiscal year of 2012-2013 was $6,849,034 and is 
summarized as follows: 
 

Amount Percentage
FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12 Change Change

General fund 4,172,865$       3,948,016$       224,849$          5.4%                
Special revenue funds 2,676,169         2,629,149         47,020              1.8%                

Total budget 6,849,034$      6,577,165$      271,869$         7.1%               

 
 
 

1. General Fund – Shows an increase of $224,849 or approximately 5.4%. The increase is the 
result of operation and personnel increases and reallocations. 

 
2. Special Revenue Funds – Show an increase of $47,020 or approximately 1.8%. The increase is 

the result of operation and personnel increases and reallocations. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the City’s finances. If you have any questions about this report, need additional 
financial information, or would like to obtain component unit financial statements, contact Annette 
Munoz, Finance Director, 107 West Highway 246, Buellton, CA 93427, or visit the City’s web page at 
www.cityofbuellton.com. 
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2012

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 4,708,722$            4,322,079$             9,030,801$            
Restricted cash and investments 6,142,856             -                            6,142,856             
Receivables:

Taxes receivable 144,885                -                            144,885                
Accounts receivable 464,951                200,631                 665,582                
Interest receivable 14,331                  3,286                     17,617                  

Inventory -                           10,280                   10,280                  
Internal balances -                           -                            -                           
Prepaid items 114,737                906,919                 1,021,656             

Total current assets 11,590,482           5,443,195              17,033,677           
Noncurrent assets:

Notes receivable 200,000                -                            200,000                
Advances to fiduciary activities 1,876,208             -                            1,876,208             
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 1,536,248             247,691                 1,783,939             
Depreciable 15,867,205           5,315,747              21,182,952           
Total noncurrent assets 19,479,661           5,563,438              25,043,099           

Total assets 31,070,143           11,006,633           42,076,776           

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 189,460                170,080                 359,540                
Accrued wages 111,600                -                            111,600                
Deposits payable 750                       24,517                   25,267                  

Total current liabilities 301,810                194,597                 496,407                
Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims liabilities 82,690                  -                            82,690                  
Compensated absences 56,396                  23,904                   80,300                  
Net OPEB obligation 362,419                88,500                   450,919                
Total noncurrent liabilities 501,505                112,404                 613,909                

Total liabilities 803,315                307,001                 1,110,316             

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets  17,403,453           5,563,438              22,966,891           
Restricted:

Streets and roads 1,341,645             -                            1,341,645             
Housing 451,255                -                            451,255                
Maintenance 55,881                  -                            55,881                  

Unrestricted 11,014,594           5,136,194              16,150,788           

Total net assets 30,266,828           10,699,632           40,966,460           
Total liabilities and net assets 31,070,143$           11,006,633$           42,076,776$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government 1,484,345$         1,712$                51,939$               -$                        
Community development  1,131,764           -                         -                          -                         
Culture and leisure 621,570              59,786 -                          -                         
Public safety 1,350,473           48,678 117,876 -                         
Public works 862,578              88,865 1,055,592 -                         

Total governmental activities  5,450,730           199,041             1,225,407           -                         
Business-type activities:

Water 1,699,457           1,388,813          462                     34,720               
Wastewater 771,940              597,963             -                          -                         

Total business-type activities 2,471,397           1,986,776          462                     34,720               

Total primary government 7,922,127$         2,185,817$         1,225,869$          34,720$              

General revenues:
     Taxes:

Secured and unsecured property taxes
Sales and use tax
Other taxes

Investment income
Total general revenues

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Extraordinary item:
Loss on dissolution of redevelopment agency

Change in net assets

Net assets:
Beginning of year
Net assets - Ending

Program Revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals

(1,430,694)$         -$                         (1,430,694)$        
(1,131,764)           -                           (1,131,764)          

(561,784)              -                           (561,784)             
(1,183,919)           -                           (1,183,919)          

281,879               -                           281,879              

(4,026,282)           -                           (4,026,282)          

-                           (275,462)              (275,462)             
-                           (173,977)              (173,977)             
-                           (449,439)              (449,439)             

(4,026,282)           (449,439)              (4,475,721)          

1,479,869            -                           1,479,869           
1,611,788            -                           1,611,788           
1,826,202            -                           1,826,202           

468,543               14,519                 483,062              
5,386,402            14,519                 5,400,921           

-                           -                           -                          
5,386,402            14,519                 5,400,921           

(291,281)              -                           (291,281)             

1,068,839            (434,920)              633,919              

29,197,989          11,134,552          40,332,541          
30,266,828$        10,699,632$        40,966,460$       

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets
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Fund

Governmental Funds:

General Fund

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Description

Primary operating fund of the City; accounts for all activities 
except those legally or administratively required to be accounted 
for in other funds.

MAJOR FUNDS

Former Redevelopment Agency Community 
Development Fund

This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, 
and the payment of, operations and related costs in the 
Redevelopment Agency.
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City of Buellton, California
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2012

Former
Redevelopment

Agency
Community Nonmajor

General Development Governmental
Fund Special Revenue Funds Totals

ASSETS

Cash and investments 2,958,590$         -$                        1,750,132$          4,708,722$         
Restricted cash and investments 6,142,856           -                         -                          6,142,856           
Receivables:

Taxes 144,885              -                         -                          144,885              
Accounts 356,603              -                         108,348              464,951              
Interest 5,660                  -                         8,671                  14,331                
Loans/Notes receivable -                          -                         200,000              200,000              

Due from other funds 272,450              -                         192                     272,642              
Prepaid items 114,737              -                         -                          114,737              
Advances to Successor Agency private 

purpose trust fund 1,876,208           -                         -                          1,876,208           

Total assets 11,871,989$       -$                        2,067,343$          13,939,332$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 165,962$            -$                        23,498$               189,460$            
Accrued wages 111,600              -                         -                          111,600              
Deposits payable 750 -                         -                          750                     
Due to other funds -                          -                         272,642              272,642              
Deferred revenue 144,885              -                         -                          144,885              

Total liabilities 423,197              -                         296,140              719,337              

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Prepaid items 114,737              -                         -                          114,737              
Notes receivable -                          -                         200,000              200,000              

Restricted: -                          -                         1,848,781           1,848,781           
Unassigned (deficit): 11,334,055         -                         (277,578)             11,056,477         

Total fund balances 11,448,792         -                         1,771,203           13,219,995         

Total liabilities and fund balances 11,871,989$       -$                        2,067,343$          13,939,332$       

Major Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2012

Total fund balances - total governmental funds 13,219,995$     

17,403,453     

Claims liabilities (82,690)$           
Compensated absences (56,396)            
Net OPEB obligation (362,419)          (501,505)         

Long-term receivables are not available to pay current period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds:

Taxes receivable 144,885          

Internal services funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.  The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are:  

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Compensated absences -                      

Net assets of governmental activities 30,266,828$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are
different because:

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance
sheet.
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City of Buellton, California
Reconciliation of Fund Basis Balance Sheet to Government-wide Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Activities

June 30, 2012

Governmental 
Funds Changes Statement of

Balance Sheet Reclassifications in GAAP Net Assets
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments 4,708,722$         -$                        -$                         4,708,722$             
Restricted cash and investments 6,142,856          6,142,856              
Receivables:

Taxes receivable 144,885             -                         -                           144,885                 
Accounts receivable 464,951             -                         -                           464,951                 
Interest receivable 14,331               -                         -                           14,331                   
Notes receivable 200,000             -                         -                           200,000                 

Advances to private purpose trust/fiduciary activities 1,876,208          -                         -                           1,876,208              
Internal balances -                         -                         -                           -                             
Prepaid items 114,737             -                         -                           114,737                 
Due from other funds 272,642             (272,642)            -                           -                             

Total current assets 13,939,332          (272,642)              -                           13,666,690              
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net:
Nondepreciable -                         -                         1,536,248 1,536,248              
Depreciable -                         -                         15,867,205 15,867,205            
Total noncurrent assets -                           -                           17,403,453          17,403,453              

Total assets 13,939,332$        (272,642)$            17,403,453$        31,070,143$            
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 189,460$            -$                        -$                         189,460$                
Accrued wages 111,600             -                         -                           111,600                 
Deposits payable 750                    -                         -                           750                        
Due to other funds 272,642             (272,642)            -                           -                             
Deferred/Unearned revenue 144,885               -                           (144,885)              -                               
Advances from other funds -                         -                         -                           -                             

Total current liabilities 719,337               (272,642)              (144,885)              301,810                   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims liabilities -                         -                         82,690                 82,690                   
Compensated absences -                         -                         56,396 56,396                   
Net OPEB obligation -                           -                           362,419 362,419                   

Total noncurrent liabilities -                           -                           501,505               501,505                   

Total liabilities 719,337               (272,642)              356,620               803,315                   
FUND BALANCES/NET ASSETS

Fund balances:
Nonspendable

Prepaid items 114,737               (114,737)              -                           -                               
Advances receivable 200,000             (200,000)            -                           -                             

Restricted
Streets and roads 1,341,645          (1,341,645)         -                           -                             
Housing 451,255             (451,255)            -                           -                             
Maintenance 55,881               (55,881)              -                           -                             

Unassigned (deficit) 11,056,477        (11,056,477)       -                           -                             
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets  -                         -                         17,403,453          17,403,453            
Restricted -                         1,848,781          -                           1,848,781              
Unrestricted -                         11,371,214        (356,620)              11,014,594            

Total fund balances/ net assets 13,219,995          -                           17,046,833          30,266,828              

Total liabilities and net assets 13,939,332$        (272,642)$            17,403,453$        31,070,143$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Former
Redevelopment

Agency
Community Other

General Development Governmental
Fund Special Revenue Funds Totals

REVENUES:
Taxes 4,495,371$      422,488$         -$                      4,917,859$      
Licenses, permits, and fees 85,777            -                      -                       85,777            
Intergovernmental 169,815          -                      1,060,792        1,230,607       
Fines and forfeitures 49,223            -                      -                       49,223            
Use of money and property 494,568          174 30,766             525,508          
Other 1,876              -                      -                       1,876              

Total revenues 5,296,630       422,662          1,091,558        6,810,850       

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 1,046,267       -                      -                       1,046,267       
Community development 988,241          -                      143,523           1,131,764       
Culture and leisure 608,804          -                      -                       608,804          
Public safety 1,350,473       -                      -                       1,350,473       
Public works 325,693 -                      334,822           660,515          

Capital outlay 61,471            -                      1,327,996        1,389,467       

Total expenditures 4,380,949       -                      1,806,341        6,187,290       

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 915,681          422,662          (714,783)          623,560          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Extraordinary gain (loss) on the dissolution of 
redevelopment -                        1,256,535         (1,547,816)        (291,281)           

Total other financing sources (uses) -                      1,256,535       (1,547,816)       (291,281)         

Net change in fund balances 915,681          1,679,197       (2,262,599)       332,279          

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 10,533,111 (1,679,197)      4,033,802        12,887,716     

End of year 11,448,792$    -$                     1,771,203$       13,219,995$    

Major Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Reconciliation of Fund Basis Statements to Government-wide Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Capital

Asset Claims/ Government-

Fund Based Compensated (Additions)/ OPEB wide

Functions/Programs Totals Absences Depreciation Retirements Obligation Totals

Governmental activities:

General government 1,046,267$    2,027$        22,911$         193,312$       219,828$    1,484,345$    

Community development 1,131,764      -                  -                     -                     -                  1,131,764      

Culture and leisure 608,804         -                  12,766           -                     -                  621,570         

Public safety 1,350,473      -                  -                     -                     -                  1,350,473      

Public works 660,515         -                  202,063         -                     -                  862,578         

Capital outlay 1,389,467      -                  -                     (1,389,467)     -                  -                     

Total governmental activities 6,187,290$    2,027$        237,740$       (1,196,155)$   219,828$    5,450,730$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 332,279$       

Capital asset purchases capitalized 1,196,155$     
Capital asset retirements -                     
Depreciation expense (237,740)        958,415        

Change in claim liabilities (82,690)        
Change in compensated absences (2,027)          

Net OPEB obligation (137,138)        (137,138)      

Change in net assets of governmental activities 1,068,839$    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of
the assets:

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Certain employee benefit obligations are recorded on a pay-as-you-go basis in the
governmental funds, but are accrued as liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - 

Budget to Actual - General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes 3,673,451$  3,673,451$ 4,495,371$      821,920$          
Licenses, permits, and fees 4,000 4,000 85,777 81,777              
Intergovernmental 165,000 165,000 169,815 4,815                
Fines and forfeitures 31,700 31,700 49,223 17,523              
Use of money and property 64,315 64,315 494,568 430,253            
Other 10,000 10,000 1,876 (8,124)              

Total revenues 3,948,466    3,948,466  5,296,630       1,348,164         

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 939,602 939,602 1,046,267       (106,665)          
Community development 1,043,964 1,043,964 988,241 55,723              
Culture and leisure 789,744 789,744 608,804 180,940            
Public safety 1,855,592 1,855,592 1,350,473 505,119            
Public works 361,351 361,351 325,693 35,658              

Capital outlay 80,200 80,200 61,471 18,729              

Total expenditures 5,070,453    5,070,453  4,380,949       689,504            

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (1,121,987)   (1,121,987) 915,681          2,037,668         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Extraordinary gain (loss) on the dissolution 
of redevelopment -                   -                   -                        -                       
Transfers in -                  -                 -                      -                      
Transfers out -                  -                 -                      -                      

Total other financing sources (uses) -                  -                 -                      -                      

Net change in fund balances (1,121,987)   (1,121,987) 915,681          2,037,668         

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 10,533,111  10,533,111 10,533,111     -                      

End of year 9,411,124$  9,411,124$ 11,448,792$    2,037,668$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance w/Final
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

600,000$     600,000$     422,488$     (177,512)$       
-                   -                   -                   -                      
-                   -                   -                   -                      
-                   -                   -                   -                      

15,000         15,000         174              (14,826)           
-                   -                   -                   -                      

615,000       615,000       422,662       (192,338)         

-                   -                   -                   -                      
110,000       110,000       -                   110,000           

-                   -                   -                   -                      
-                   -                   -                   -                      
-                   -                   -                   -                      
-                   -                   -                   -                      

110,000       110,000       -                   110,000           

505,000       505,000       422,662       (82,338)           

-                   -                   1,256,535    1,256,535         
-                   -                   -                   -                      
-                   -                   -                   -                      

-                   -                   1,256,535    1,256,535        

505,000       505,000       1,679,197    1,174,197        

(1,679,197)   (1,679,197)   (1,679,197)   -                      

(1,174,197)$ (1,174,197)$ -$                 1,174,197$      

Former Redevelopment Agency
Community Development Fund

Budgeted Amounts
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Fund

MAJOR FUNDS:

Water Fund

Wastewater Fund

Accounts for revenues and expenses associated with the 
administration and coordination of stormwater drainage activities 
in conjunction with the County of Santa Barbara transferred to 
Special Revenue because of discontinuance of the user fee.

Accounts for all activities associated with the operation and 
maintenance of providing solid waste services.

Description

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2012

Water Wastewater
Fund Fund Totals

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments 2,380,188$       1,941,891$       4,322,079$       
Receivables:

Accounts 137,697 62,934 200,631            
Interest 1,604 1,682 3,286                

Inventory 10,280 -                        10,280              
Prepaid items 888,953 17,966 906,919            

Total current assets 3,418,722         2,024,473         5,443,195         
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net
Buildings and improvements 822,078 -                        822,078            
Equipment 259,309 323,643 582,952            
Infrastructure 5,407,275 5,322,179 10,729,454       
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,451,041) (3,120,005) (6,571,046)        

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 3,037,621         2,525,817         5,563,438         
Total noncurrent assets 3,037,621         2,525,817         5,563,438         
Total assets 6,456,343$       4,550,290$       11,006,633$     

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 133,130$          36,950$            170,080$          
Deposits 24,517 -                        24,517              

Total current liabilities 157,647            36,950              194,597            
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 11,952 11,952 23,904              
OPEB payable 44,250 44,250 88,500              

Total noncurrent liabilities 56,202 56,202 112,404            
Total liabilities 213,849            93,152              307,001            

Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets  3,037,621         2,525,817         5,563,438         
Unrestricted 3,204,873 1,931,321 5,136,194         

Total net assets 6,242,494         4,457,138         10,699,632       

Total liabilities and net assets 6,456,343$       4,550,290$       11,006,633$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012

 
Water Wastewater
Fund Fund Totals

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 1,388,813$       597,963$          1,986,776$       
Other operating revenues 462 -                        462                   

Total operating revenues 1,389,275         597,963            1,987,238         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services 246,420 245,595 492,015            
Operations and maintenance 1,298,940 352,256 1,651,196         
Depreciation 154,097 174,089 328,186            

Total operating expenses 1,699,457         771,940            2,471,397         

OPERATING LOSS (310,182)           (173,977)           (484,159)           

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Interest revenue 7,458 7,061 14,519              

Total non-operating revenues, net 7,458                7,061                14,519              

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS AND 
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions 34,720 -                        34,720              

Total capital contributions 34,720              -                        34,720              

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (268,004)           (166,916)           (434,920)           

NET ASSETS:
Beginning of year 6,510,498 4,624,054 11,134,552       

End of year 6,242,494$       4,457,138$       10,699,632$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Water Wastewater
Fund Fund Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received (refunds paid) from (to) customers/users for services provided 1,403,455$    601,472$        2,004,927$   
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,149,657)    (339,446)         (1,489,103)   
Cash payments to employees for services (249,079)       (248,254)         (497,333)      

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,719            13,772            18,491         

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Due to/from other funds 221,882        (514,465)         (292,583)      

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities 221,882        (514,465)         (292,583)      

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grants received 34,720          -                     34,720         
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (235,302)       (125,915)         (361,217)      

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (200,582)       (125,915)         (326,497)      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income received 8,051            7,636              15,687         

Net cash provided by investing activities 8,051            7,636              15,687         

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 34,070          (618,972)         (584,902)      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year 2,346,118     2,560,863       4,906,981    

End of year 2,380,188$    1,941,891$     4,322,079$   

Reconciliation of income from operations to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (310,182)$      (173,977)$       (484,159)$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

  to net cash provided by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in current assets:

Accounts receivable 14,575          3,509              18,084         
Inventory (4,139)           -                     (4,139)          
Prepaid items 42,523          1,233              43,756         

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:           
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities           110,899        11,577            122,476       
Deposits payable          (395)              -                     (395)             
Compensated absences         (2,659)           (2,659)             (5,318)          
OPEB payable             -                    -                     -                   

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,719$            13,772$          18,491$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2012

Successor Agency
Private Purpose Deposits

Trust Funds Agency Fund Totals
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 1,885,046$    143,242$        2,028,288$    
Receivables:

Accounts 91,926          -                     91,926          
Interest 1,313            -                     1,313            

Prepaids 3,866            -                     3,866            
Total current assets 1,982,151     143,242         2,125,393     

Noncurrent Assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 345,683        -                     345,683        

Total noncurrent Assets: 345,683        -                     345,683        

Total assets 2,327,834$    143,242$        2,471,076$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 280,650$       -$                    280,650$       
Refundable deposits -                    143,242         143,242        

Total current liabilities: 280,650        143,242         423,892        
Noncurrent liabilities:

Advances from Governmental Activities 1,876,208     -                     1,876,208     
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,876,208     -                     1,876,208     
Total liabilities 2,156,858     143,242$        2,300,100     

Net Assets (Deficit)
Net assets held in trust for
Redevelopment Dissolution 170,976        170,976        

Total liabilities and net assets 2,327,834$    2,471,076$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Private Purpose Trust Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Successor
Agency

Private Purpose
Trust Fund

ADDITIONS:

Property taxes 94,926$             
Investment earnings 1,466                 
Net assets received upon dissolution of redevelopment agency 291,281             

Total additions: 387,673             

DEDUCTIONS:

Community development 216,697             

Total deductions: 216,697             

CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 170,976             

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year -                       
End of year 170,976$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The basic financial statements of the City of Buellton, California (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) is the accepted standard setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant 
of the City’s accounting policies are described below. 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The City of Buellton (City) was incorporated in 1992, under the laws and regulations of the State of 
California (State).  The City operates under a City Council/Manager form of government and provides 
the following services: public safety (Police and Fire), highways and streets, water service, wastewater, 
public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administration. 
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental 
accounting and financial reporting.  On June 15, 1987, GASB issued a codification of the existing 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The City 
applies all GASB pronouncements to its activities. 
 
In addition, the City applies all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and 
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins 
(ARB) issued after November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. The more significant of these accounting policies are described below and, where 
appropriate, subsequent pronouncements will be referenced. 
 
The City was incorporated under the General Laws of the State of California and enjoys all the rights 
and privileges pertaining to such “General Law” cities. The City uses the City Council/Manager form 
of government. The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government, the City; (b) 
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and (c) other organizations 
for which the primary government is not accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
 
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations for 
which the primary government’s exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to 
be misleading or incomplete. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity, Continued 
 
The following is a brief review of the component units included in the accompanying basic financial 
statements of the City: 
 

Former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Buellton (RDA) was established in fiscal year 
1992-93 pursuant to the State of California Health and Safety Codes, Section 33000, entitled 
“Community Redevelopment Law.” Its purpose is to prepare and carry out plans for the 
improvement, rehabilitation, and redevelopment of blighted areas within the territorial limits of 
the City. In fiscal year 2011-12, due to dissolution of all redevelopment agencies by the State, 
all redevelopment activities were transferred to a Successor Agency reported in private purpose 
trust funds. 
 

The City is the primary government unit. Component units are those entities which are financially 
accountable to the primary government, either because the City appoints a voting majority of the 
component unit’s board, or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a 
financial burden on the City. The RDA has been accounted for as a “blended” component unit of the 
City. Despite being legally separate, these entities are so intertwined with the City that they are, in 
substance, part of the City’s operations. Accordingly, the balances and transactions of these 
component units are reported within the funds of the City’s special revenue and capital project funds. 
 
The following specific criteria were used in determining that the RDA was a blended component unit: 
 

• The members of the City Council also acted as the governing body of the RDA. 
 
• The RDA was managed by employees of the City. A portion of the employee’s salary and 

overhead expenses that work with Redevelopment was charged to the RDA each year. 
 
• The City and RDA were financially interdependent. The City made loans to the RDA to 

use for redevelopment purposes. Property tax revenues of the RDA were used to repay 
the loans to the City. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as 
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon 
the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
 
Government–Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government–wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of 
Activities and Changes in Net Assets. These statements present summaries of governmental and 
business-type activities for the City, the primary government, accompanied by a total column. 
Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these statements. 
 
These government-wide financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets and liabilities, including 
capital assets and related infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the 
accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets. 
 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned 
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. 
 
Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories: 
 

• Charges for services 
• Operating grants and contributions 
• Capital grants and contributions 

 
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund 
activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Assets have been 
eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-
type activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government 
column. Transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated.  
The following interfund activities have been eliminated: 
 

• Due to/from other funds 
• Advances to/from other funds 
• Transfers in/out 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 
 
Government–Wide Financial Statements, Continued 
 
The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all National Council on 
Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statements and Interpretations currently in effect) as well as the 
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, to the business-type activities, 
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) 
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) of the committee on Accounting Procedure. The 
City applies all applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, to 
proprietary funds, except those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds 
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net 
assets as presented in these statements to the net assets presented in the government-wide financial 
statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the applicable criteria. The following were 
the City’s major governmental funds: 
 

• The General Fund - Accounts for all general revenues of the city not specifically levied 
or collected for other City funds and the related expenditures. The General Fund accounts 
for all financial resources of a governmental unit which are not accounted for in other 
funds. 

 
• Former Redevelopment Agency Community Development Fund – This fund is used to 

account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, operations and related 
costs in the Redevelopment Agency. 

 
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial resources” 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and 
current liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances present increases (revenue and other financing sources) and decreases 
(expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable 
and available to finance expenditures of the current period. 
 
Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except those revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 
days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated 
as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
taxes. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements, Continued 
 
Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the “measurable” and “available” 
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the government 
receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to 
incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are 
met or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the deferred revenue is removed from 
the balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 
 
Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is 
provided to explain the differences between the two methods of measurement focus. 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Change in Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds. The City 
has determined that all its enterprise funds are major funds. The following were the City’s major 
enterprise funds: 
 

• The Water Fund - This fund was established as a separate fund to account for the 
operation of the City's water utility. It is a self-supporting activity that provides services 
on a user-charge basis to residents and businesses located in the City. 
 

• The Wastewater Fund - This fund was established as a separate fund to account for the 
operation of the City's wastewater utility. It is a self-supporting activity that provides 
services on a user-charge basis to residents and businesses located in the City. 

 
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are 
included on the Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are 
recognized in the period in which a liability is incurred. 
 
Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary 
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as nonoperating revenues. Operating expenses 
are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are 
reported as nonoperating expenses. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 

 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 
 
Private Purpose Trust Funds 
 

Private Purpose Trust Funds account for resources held for other individuals or entities in a manner 
similar to private enterprise. 
 
Agency Funds 
 
Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of 
results of operations.  
 
The fiduciary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
C. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
 
The City pools its available cash for investment purposes. The City’s cash and cash equivalents are 
considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturity of 
three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are combined with 
investments and displayed as Cash and Investments. For purposes of the statement of cash flows of the 
proprietary fund types, cash and cash equivalents include all investments, as the City operates an 
internal cash management pool which maintains the general characteristics of a demand deposit 
account. 
 
Disclosure requirements for Deposits and Investment Risks were made in the following areas: 
 

• Interest Rate Risk 
• Credit Risk 

 Overall 
 Custodial Credit Risk 
 Concentrations of Credit Risk
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued 
 
In addition, other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and 
investments, highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end, and other disclosures. 
 
Highly liquid market investments with maturities of one year or less at time of purchase are stated at 
amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is used as fair value for 
those securities for which market quotations are readily available. 
 
The City participates in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), an investment pool managed by 
the State of California. LAIF has invested a portion of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the 
State of California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities are subject to market risk as a result of changes in interest rates. 
 
D. Restricted Cash and Investments 
 
Certain restricted cash and investments are held by fiscal agents for the redemption of bonded debt and 
for acquisition and construction of capital projects. Cash and investments are also restricted for 
deposits held for others within the enterprise funds. 
 
E. Inventories 
 
The City accounts for inventories using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories consist primarily of 
supplies and are carried at cost. Governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when 
consumed rather than when purchased. 
 
F. Capital Assets 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost was not 
available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.  
City policy is to capitalize all capital assets with costs exceeding a minimum threshold of $2,000 and 
with useful lives exceeding one year. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated 
useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 
 Structures and Improvements 50 years 
 Machinery and Equipment 3-15 years 
 Infrastructure 15-100 years 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
F. Capital Assets, Continued 
 
The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets 
include streets, wastewater, park lands, and buildings. Each major infrastructure system can be divided 
into subsystems. For example, the street system can be subdivided into pavement, curb and gutters, 
sidewalks, medians, streetlights, landscaping, and land. These subsystems were not delineated in the 
basic financial statements. The appropriate operating department maintains information regarding the 
subsystems. 
 
Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the business-type and 
proprietary funds as part of the asset cost. 
 
For all infrastructure systems, the City elected to use the Basic Approach defined by GASB Statement 
No. 34, which requires all infrastructures be reported at historical cost and be depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives. 
 
G. Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
Long-term debt and other financial obligations are reported as liabilities in the appropriate activities.  
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or 
discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present long-term debt. Consequently, long-term 
debt is shown as a reconciling item in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to 
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. 
 
Governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during 
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources. Premiums 
received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance 
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements use the same principles as those used in the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
H. Compensated Absences 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
For governmental and business-type activities, compensated absences are recorded as incurred and the 
related expenses and liabilities are reported in the appropriate activity. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
In compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16, the City has 
established a liability for accrued vacation in relevant funds. For governmental type funds, the current 
liability appears in the respective funds. All vacation paid is accrued when incurred in the government-
wide and proprietary funds financial statements. This liabilityis set up for the current employees at the 
current rates of pay. Each fiscal year, an adjustment to the liability is made based on pay rate changes 
and adjustments for the current portion. The General Fund is primarily responsible for the repayment 
of the governmental portion of compensated absences. 
 
Accumulated employee sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the City. The City's 
policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits do not 
vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for 
calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires. 
 
I. Net Assets and Fund Equity 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net assets are classified in the following categories: 
 

Invested in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of the assets. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 

I. Net Assets and Fund Equity, Continued 
 

Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued 
 
Restricted Net Assets – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, 
or laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Net Assets – This amount is all net assets that do not meet the definition of “invested in capital 
assets” or “restricted net assets.” 
 

Fund Financial Statements 
 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.  Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the 
government-wide statements. The classifications for governmental funds are defined as follows for the 
City: 

 
Nonspendable Fund Balance –  

 

 Assets that will never convert to cash (prepaid items, inventory). 
 Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (long-term 

notes or loans receivable). 
 Resources that must be maintained intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements 

(the principal of an endowment). 
  

Restricted Fund Balance – 
 

 Resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions imposed by parties 
altogether outside the government (Creditors, Grantors, Contributors and Other 
Governments). 

 Resources that are subject to limitations imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation (Gas Tax). 

 
Committed Fund Balance – 

 

 Self imposed limitations set in place prior to the end of the period. (Encumbrances, 
economic contingencies and uncertainties) 

 Limitation at the highest level of decision-making (Council) that requires formal action at 
the same level to remove. 

 
Assigned Fund Balance –  

 

 Amounts in excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed fund balance in funds 
other than the general fund automatically are reported as assigned fund balance. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 

I. Net Assets and Fund Equity, Continued 
 

Fund Financial Statements, Continued 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance – 
 

 Residual net resources 
 Total fund balance in the general fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted, committed 

and assigned fund balance (surplus). 
 Excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed fund balance over total fund balance 

(deficit). 
 
J. Property Taxes 
 
California Constitution Article XIII A, limits the combined property tax rate to one percent of a 
property's assessed valuation. Additional taxes may be imposed with voter approval. Assessed value is 
calculated at one hundred percent of a property's fair value, as defined by Article XIII A, and may be 
increased no more than two percent per year unless a change in ownership occurs. The State 
Legislature has determined the method of distributing the one percent tax levy among the various 
taxing jurisdictions. 
 
Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have been levied, and collected 
within sixty days of fiscal year end. Property taxes are billed and collected as follows: 
 
  

 Secured Unsecured 
Valuation/Lien Dates January 1 January 1 
Levy Dates July1 August 1 
Due Dates November 1 (50%)  
 February 1 (50%)  
Delinquency Dates December 10 (Nov.) August 31 
 April 10 (Feb)  

 
The City adopted an alternative method of property tax distribution (the "Teeter Plan"). Under this 
method, the City receives 100% of its secured property tax levied in exchange for foregoing any 
interest and penalties collected on delinquent taxes. The City receives payments as a series of advances 
made by the County throughout the fiscal year. The secured property tax levy is recognized as revenue 
upon receipt including the final payment, which generally is received within 60 days after the fiscal 
year end. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
K. Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. In 
addition, estimates affect the reported amount of expenses. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates and assumptions. 
 

L. Reclassifications 
 
Certain amounts have been reclassified to provide for comparables results on a year to year basis. 
 
M. Interfund Balances/Internal Balances 
 
Advances to and advances from other funds represent interfund loans in the fund financial statements.  
Advances between funds are offset by a fund liability or by deferred revenue in the applicable 
governmental funds to indicate that they are not expendable available financial resources. Any unpaid 
interest due to lack of funds in the borrowing fund increases the principal owed and is reported in the 
lending fund as deferred revenue. 
 

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to and due from other funds. These 
are generally repaid within the following fiscal year. 
 

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements as “internal balances.” 
 

N. Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Assets 
 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are 
available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net assets first. 
 
O.   Budgetary Accounting 
 
The City followed these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 
 

 Public hearings are conducted to obtain public comments. The City Council annually 
adopts the budget for the ensuing fiscal year prior to July 1st. 

 

 The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgetary amounts within a Department; 
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any Department must be 
approved by the City Council. 

 

 Legally adopted budgets and formal budgetary integration is employed as a management 
control device during the year for all funds.  

 

 All Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 
 
O.   Budgetary Accounting, continued 
 

 Budgeted revenue amounts represent the original budget modified by adjustments 
authorized during the year. Budgeted expenditure amounts represent original 
appropriations adjusted for supplemental appropriations during the year which were 
contingent upon new or additional revenue sources and reappropriated amounts for prior 
year encumbrances. The City Manager may amend the budgeted amounts within 
departmental expenditure classifications. Appropriation revisions made during the year 
ended June 30, 2012, were not significant. 

 
Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year and then are rebudgeted for the coming year. Under 
Article XIIIB of the California Constitution (the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative), the City is 
restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from the proceeds of taxes, and if proceeds of 
taxes exceed allowed appropriations, the excess must either be refunded to the State Controller, 
returned to the taxpayers through revised tax rates or revised fees schedules, or an excess in one year 
may be offset against a deficit in the following year. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, based on 
the calculations by City Management, proceeds of taxes did not exceed the appropriations limit. 
Budgeted appropriations for the various governmental funds become effective each July 1. The City 
Council may amend the budget during the fiscal year. The legal level of budgetary control has been 
established at the fund level. Appropriations generally lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent 
they have not been expended or encumbered. 
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
At June 30, 2012, the City’s pooled cash and investments, classified by maturity, consisted of the 
following stated at fair market value: 
 

Fair
< 1 1 to 2 > 2 Deposits Market Value

Cash equivalents and investments pooled
Pooled cash, at fair value:

Cash in bank -$                      -$                      -$                      489,687$           489,687$           
Petty cash -                        -                        -                        550                    550                    

Total pooled items -                        -                        -                        490,237             490,237             

Pooled investments, at fair value
Interest obligations
FNMA - STEP  1% $250, 000 par value -                        -                        250,801             -                        250,801             
State Bank of India - Negotiable CD -                        125,818             -                        -                        125,818             
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1.2% - 1.85% 
$2,232,000 par -                        -                        2,240,115          -                        2,240,115          
FNMA Notes 1.125%-2.125% $1,000,000 par 1,002,998          1,002,998          
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 13,091,976        -                        -                        -                        13,091,976        

Total pooled investments - interest obligations 13,091,976        125,818             3,493,914          -                        16,711,708        
Total cash equivalents and investments pooled 13,091,976$     125,818$          3,493,914$       490,237$           17,201,945$     

Amounts reported in:
Governmental activities 4,708,722$        
Governmental activities - restricted 6,142,856          
Business-type activities 4,322,079          
Fiduciary activities 2,028,288          

Total 17,201,945$     

Maturities (in years)

 
 

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (in years)

US Agency Securities 1,253,799$             5
Certificates of Deposit 2,365,933               5
Local Agency Investment Fund 13,091,976             0.25

Total fair value 16,711,708$           

Portfolio weighted average maturity 3.42
 

 
California statutes authorize cities to invest idle or surplus funds in a variety of credit instruments as 
provided for in the California Government Code, Section 53600, Chapter 4 – Financial Affairs. The 
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California 
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate 
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. During the year ended June 30, 2012, the City’s 
permissible investments included the following instruments: 
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued 
 

Maximum Maximum
Percentage of Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maximum Maturity Portfolio One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 15% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund. N/A None None

 
Interest rate risk – In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposures to declines 
in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to not exceed 5 years. 
As of June 30, 2012, the weighted average maturity was 3.42 years. 
 
Credit risk – It is the City’s policy that medium-term notes, with a final maturity not exceeding five 
years from the date of purchase, must have a rating of “AAAm” or “AAAm-G” or better by the 
StandaRD & Poor’s Corporation.  The LAIF, administered by the State of California, has a separate 
investment policy, governed by Government Code Sections 16480-16481.2, that provides credit 
standards for its investments. 
 
Concentration of credit risk – The City’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in any 
one issuer that is in excess of five percent of the government’s total investments. The investments 
made by the City Treasurer are limited to those allowable under State statutes as incorporated into the 
City’s Investment Policy, which is accepted annually by the City Council. There were no 
concentrations in any one issuer for the year. 
 
The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) which has invested 0.76% of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities.  LAIF's investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the 
State of California collateralizing these investments.  In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to changes in interest rates. 
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued 
 
Custodial credit risk – deposits. For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s Investment Policy addresses custodial credit risk, 
which follows the Government Code. As of June 30, 2012, the City had a balance of $222,484 in the 
pool exposed to custodial credit risk because they exceeded the $250,000 Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation’s insurance limits.  The uninsured bank balance is collateralized by the pledging financial 
institutions at 110% of the deposits, in accordance with the State of California Government Code. 
 
Custodial credit risk – investments. For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside counterparty. For the investments maintained by the City, no 
security was uninsured or unregistered or held by a brokerage firm which is also the counterparty for 
the security. 
 
At June 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $489,687 and the balances in 
financial institutions was $483,941. Of the balance in financial institutions, $250,000 was covered by 
federal depository insurance and $233,941 was collateralized as required by State law (Government 
Code Section 53630), by the pledging financial institution with assets held in a common pool for the 
City and other governmental agencies, but not in the name of the City. As of June 30, 2012, the City’s 
investments were held by the City’s custodial agent, but not in the City’s name, and were insured up to 
specified limits by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) and supplemental private 
insurance up to a limit of $150 million. 
 
Investment in LAIF: LAIF is stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The LAIF is a 
special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments.  
The total fair value amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF is $60,612,199,285 of which the 
City had a balance of $13,091,976, which approximated market value and was managed by the State 
Treasurer. Of the total invested, 99.24% was invested in non-derivative financial products and 0.76% 
in structured notes and asset-backed securities. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has 
oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute. 
The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the 
entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 
amortized cost basis. 
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  
 
Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2012: 
 

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Activities Total

Current:
Taxes receivable 144,885$      -$                  -$                   144,885$       
Accounts receivable 464,951        200,631       91,926         757,508         
Interest receivable 14,331          3,286           1,313           18,930           

Total current 624,167        203,917       93,239         921,323         

Noncurrent:
Notes receivable 200,000        -                   -                    200,000         

Total noncurrent 200,000        -                   -                    200,000         

Total receivables 824,167$      203,917$      93,239$        1,121,323$    
 

 
These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in receivables: 
 
 Other Governments 12.9% 
 Individuals/Businesses 85.4% 
 Financial 1.7% 
 
Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 25%) with any single individual, 
business, or agency. 
 
4. LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
The City extended a loan in the amount of $200,000 on September 13, 1998 to Horizon Homes 
Association, LP. The annual rate is 3% of outstanding principal per annum. Interest payments are due 
monthly, and the remaining principal is due on September 13, 2013. The principal balance of the note 
at June 30, 2012, was $200,000. 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

Governmental activities:
Nondepreciable assets:

Land 1,536,248$      -$                    -$                     1,536,248$      
Total nondepreciable assets 1,536,248        -                     -                      1,536,248        

Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvements 8,346,414        -                     (4,124,966)     4,221,448        
Equipment 392,039           -                     (6,273)             385,766           
Infrastructure 16,183,515      -                     (367,860)        15,815,655       

Total depreciable assets 24,921,968      -                     (4,499,099)     20,422,869       
Total 26,458,216      -                     (4,499,099)     21,959,117       

Accumulated depreciation:
Total accumulated depreciation (10,013,178)    (237,740)        5,695,254       (4,555,664)       

Net depreciable assets 14,908,790      (237,740)        1,196,155       15,867,205       

Total net capital assets 16,445,038$    (237,740)$       1,196,155$      17,403,453$     

 
 

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

Business-type activities:
Nondepreciable assets:

Land 247,691$         -$                    -$                     247,691$          
Total nondepreciable assets 247,691           -                     -                      247,691            

Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvements -                      574,387          -                      574,387            
Equipment 557,499           25,453            -                      582,952            
Infrastructure 10,968,077      -                     (238,623)        10,729,454        

Total depreciable assets 11,525,576      599,840          (238,623)        11,886,793        
Total 11,773,267      599,840          (238,623)        12,134,484        

Accumulated depreciation: .
Total accumulated depreciation (6,242,860)      (328,186)        -                      (6,571,046)         

Net depreciable assets 5,282,716        271,654          (238,623)        5,315,747          

Total net capital assets 5,530,407$       271,654$          (238,623)$        5,563,438$        
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued 
 
Depreciation Allocations 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to function and programs based on their usage of the related assets. 
The amounts allocated to each function or programs were as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities:
General government 22,911$                      
Culture and leisure 12,766                       
Public works 202,063                     

Total depreciation expense governmental activities 237,740$                    

Business-type Activities:
Water 154,097$                    
Wastewater 174,089                     

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 328,186$                    
 

 
 
6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30, 2012: 
 

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Activities Total

Accounts payable 189,460$        170,080$        280,650$        640,190$        
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 111,600          -                     -                     111,600          
Deposits payable 750                 24,517            -                     25,267            
Refundable deposits and accruals -                     -                     143,242          143,242          

Total 301,810$        194,597$        423,892$        920,299$        

 
 
These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in payables: 
 
 Vendors    12.1% 
 Employees  87.9% 
 
Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 25%) with any single vendor or 
employee. 
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7. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Changes in Noncurrent Liabilities 
 
Noncurrent liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012 One Year

Governmental Activities:
Claims liabilities -$               82,690$     -$               82,690$     -$               
Compensated absences 54,369       2,027         -                 56,396       -                 
Net OPEB Obligation 225,281     137,138     -                 362,419     -                 

Total Governmental Activities: 279,650$   221,855$   -$               501,505$   -$               

Business-type activities:
Compensated absences 29,222$     -$               (5,318)$      23,904$     -$               
Net OPEB Obligation 88,500       -                 -                 88,500       -                 

Total Business-type Activities: 117,722$   -$               (5,318)$      112,404$   -$               

 
 

Compensated Absences 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 identifies certain items that should be 
accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by the employees but only to the extent it is probable 
that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through cash payments conditioned 
on the employee's termination or retirement. 
 
City employees accumulate earned but unused benefits which can be converted to cash at termination 
of employment. The non-current portion of these vested benefits at June 30, 2012, total $56,396 for 
governmental activities and $23,904 for business-type activities. 
 
Claims liabilities 
 
The City has recorded a liability for potential claims in excess of amounts covered by the insurance 
pool. See Note 10 for further discussion on the City’s risk management activities. 
 
Net OPEB Obligation 
 
A net OPEB Obligation is the cumulative difference between annual OPEB cost and an employer’s 
contribution to a plan.  At June 30, 2012, the City had a net OPEB Obligation of $450,919. See Note 
12 for further discussion on OPEB. 
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8. NET ASSETS/ FUND BALANCES 
 

Net Assets 
 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

Invested in capital assets 17,403,453$    5,563,438$      22,966,891$    
Restricted 1,848,781        -                  1,848,781        
Unrestricted 11,014,594      5,136,194        16,150,788      

Total 30,266,828$    10,699,632$    40,966,460$    

 
 
 Restricted balances are for the same purposes as fund balance restrictions because external 

restriction requirements are the same. See descriptions of the restrictions below 
 

Fund Balance 
 
Nonspendable, Restricted, and Unassigned (deficit) fund balance consisted of the following at June 30, 
2012: 

Nonspendable:
Prepaid items 114,737$          
Notes receivable 200,000            

Total nonspendable 314,737$          

Restricted for:
Streets and roads 1,341,645$       
Housing 451,255            
Maintenance 55,881              

Total restricted 1,848,781$       

Unassigned (deficit):
General Fund 11,334,055$     
Nonmajor governmental funds (277,578)          

Total unassigned (deficit) 11,056,477$     

Total fund balances 13,219,995$    
 

 
The following describe the purpose of each nonspendable, restriction and unassigned used by the 
City: 
 
Nonspendable 
 

Prepaid items - used to segregate that portion of fund balance to indicate that prepaid amounts 
do not represent available, spendable resources even though they are components of assets. 
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8. NET ASSETS/ FUND BALANCES, Continued 
 

Notes receivable – used to indicate that the long-term note receivable is unavailable for 
current financials, spendable resources. 

 
Restricted 
 

Streets and Roads – represents amounts restricted for streets and roads maintenance as 
provided by Highways and Streets Regulations and Local Measures. 
 
Housing – includes amounts set aside to increase the number of affordable housing units as 
provided by affordable housing regulations. 

 
Maintenance – includes amounts set aside for maintenance of City facilities. 

 
There were no Deficit net assets balances at June 30, 2012. 
 
Deficit fund balances consisted of the following at June 30, 2012: 
 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:  
 

Traffic Mitigation Funds - ($157,705), the deficit will be resolved through collection of future 
funding. 

 
Transportation Planning - ($119,873), the deficit will be resolved through future grants. 

 
Excess of Expenditures and Transfers Over Appropriations:  Expenditures and transfers exceeded 
appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2012, for the following funds: 
 

Total Excess
Expenditures Expenditures

Final Budget and Transfers Over Appropriations
Governmental Activities
Non-major Funds:        
 Special Revenue Funds:        

Gas Tax  511,728$                1,072,066$             (560,338)$                  
Measure D 130,000                 133,109                 (3,109)                        
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Due to and due from other funds consisted of the following as of June 30, 2012: 
 

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds

Governmental Activities
Major Funds:  

General Fund  272,450$              -$                         
Total Major Funds  272,450                -                           

Non-major Funds:  
Traffic Mitigation Fund  -                           157,717                
Meaure D Fund  192                       -                           
Transportation Planning Fund  114,925                

Total Non-major Funds  192                       272,642                
Total Governmental Activities  272,642                272,642                

Total  272,642$             272,642$              

 
 

Due to and from balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and 
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 
 
Advances receivable and payable constitute long-term borrowing between funds. Each advance carries 
a stated interest rate and has scheduled debt service payments. Interfund advances receivable and 
payable balances at June 30, 2012, are as follows: 
 
An advance in the amount of $1,876,208 was made from the General Fund to the Successor Agency 
Non-Housing Private Purpose Trust Fund as a result of the dissolution of redevelopment agencies in 
the State of California.
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement 
 
The City of Buellton is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Authority). The 
Authority is composed of 122 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers 
agreement pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authority is to 
arrange and administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or 
reinsurance, and to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. The 
California JPIA began covering claims of its members in 1978. Each member government has an 
elected official as its representative on the Board of Directors. The Board operates through a nine 
member Executive Committee. 
 
Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority 
 

Amount Coverage Provider Payment Source
General and Automobile Liability Claims:

$0 - $30,000 Charged directly to the City's primary deposit City funds
30,001 - 750,000 Pooled based on the City's share of losses under $30,000 City funds
750,001 - 5,000,000 Pooled based on payroll Authority
5,000,001 - 10,000,000 Paid under reinsurance policies Authority
10,000,001 - 50,000,000 Covered through purchase of excess insurance policies Authority

Workers' Compensation Claims:
$0 - $50,000 Charged directly to City's primary deposit City funds
50,001 - 100,000 Pooled based on the member's share of losses under $50,000 City funds
100,001 - 2,000,000 Pooled based on payroll Authority
2,000,001 - 4,000,000 Covered through purchase of excess insurance policies Authority
4,000,001 - 10,000,000 Covered through purchase of excess insurance policies Authority

 

Purchased Insurance 
 

Environmental Insurance – The City of Buellton participates in the pollution legal liability and 
remediation legal liability insurance which is available through the Authority. The policy covers 
sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the City of 
Buellton. Coverage is on a claims-made basis. There is a $50,000 deductible.  
 

Property Insurance – The City of Buellton participates in the all-risk property protection program of 
the Authority. This insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. City of 
Buellton property is currently insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the 
City of Buellton to the Authority. City of Buellton property currently has all-risk property insurance 
protection in the amount of $12,802,732. There is a $5,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-
emergency vehicle insurance which has a $1,000 deductible. Premiums for the coverage are paid 
annually and are not subject to retroactive adjustments. 
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT, Continued 
 

Earthquake and Flood Insurance – The City of Buellton purchases earthquake and flood insurance on 
a portion of its property. The earthquake insurance is part of the property protection insurance program 
of the Authority. City of Buellton property currently has earthquake protection in the amount of 
$6,262,385. There is a deductible of 5% per unit of value with a minimum deductible of $100,000. 
Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retroactive adjustments. 
 

Crime Insurance – The City of Buellton purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of 
$1,000,000 with a $2,500 deductible. The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority. 
Premiums are paid annually and are not subject to retroactive adjustments. 
 

Adequacy of Protection 
 

During the past three fiscal (claims) years, none of the above programs of protection have had 
settlements or judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There have been no significant 
reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage from coverage in the prior fiscal year. 
 

Current Year Claim Payments 
Beginning of Claims and Changes for Current and End of Year
Year Liability  in Estimates Prior Years Liability

2011-2012 -$                115,380$             (32,690)$         82,690$      

 
11. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 

Plan Description 
 

The City of Buellton’s defined benefit pension plan, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), 
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries. PERS is part of the Public Agency portion of the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System, (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer plan administered by 
CalPERS, which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public 
employers within the State of California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements 
are established by State statutes with the Public Employees' Retirement Law. The City selects optional 
benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through 
local ordinance (other local methods). CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial 
report. Copies of the CalPERS' annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive 
Office – 400 P Street - Sacramento, CA 95814. 
 

Funding Policy 
 

The City contributes the employee and employer shares for the Miscellaneous Plan. The City of 
Buellton is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the 
benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the 
CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for the fiscal year 
2011/2012 was 12.216% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are  
established by the State statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended 
by CaIPERS. The City of Buellton's contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal years ending  
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11. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM, Continued 
 

Funding Policy, continued 
 
June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, were $142,413, $124,757, and $123,515, respectively, and equal 100% 
of the required contributions for each fiscal year. 
 

12. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS  
 

Plan Description 
 

Medical coverage is provided through CalPERS under the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital 
Care Act (PEMHCA), also referred to as PERS Health. The City contributes up to $800 per month on 
behalf of each active employee and covered dependents. The employee is responsible for excess, if any 
of the total PEMHCA premium over $800 per month. 
 

The City offers the same medical plans to its retirees as to its active employees, with the general 
exception that upon reaching age 65 and becoming eligible for Medicare, the retiree must join one of 
the Medicare Supplement coverage's offered under PEMHCA. 
 

Employees become eligible to retire and receive City-paid healthcare benefits upon attainment of age 
50 and 5 years of covered PERS service, or by attaining qualifying disability retirement status. The 
City's contribution on behalf of retirees is the same as for active employees - 1'00% of PEMHCA 
premium for retiree and covered dependents, but not to exceed $800 per month. Benefits continue for 
the lifetime of the retiree with survivor benefits extended to surviving spouses. 
 

Membership of the plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2012 
 

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits          8  
Current staff receiving benefits          0   
Other participants not yet fully eligible for 
benefits        18  

Total       26 
 

 

The City pays a 0.43% of premium administrative fee on behalf of employees and retirees. 
 

Funding Policy  
 

As required by GASB Statement No. 45, an actuary will determine the City's Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC) at least once every two fiscal years. The ARC is calculated in accordance with 
certain parameters, and includes (I) the Normal Cost for one year, and (2) a component for 
amortization of the total unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAL) over a period not to exceed 30 
years. GASB Statement No. 45 does not require pre-funding of OPEB benefits. Therefore, the City's 
funding policy is to continue to pay healthcare premiums for retirees as they fall due. The City has 
elected not to establish an irrevocable trust at this time. The City Council reserves the authority to 
review and amend this funding policy from time to time, in order to ensure that the funding policy 
continues to best suit the circumstances of the City. 
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12. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS, Continued  
 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution (ARC) of the employer. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
 

The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB Cost for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's Net OPEB 
obligation: 
 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 192,373$       
Interest on net OPEB Obligation 15,689           
Adjustment to annual required contribution (20,412)          
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 187,650$       
Employer contributions made (50,512)           
Increase (Decrease) in net OPEB obligation 137,138$        
Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 313,781        
Net OPEB Obligation - end of year 450,919$       

 
 
 

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2012 and the two preceding years were as follows: 
 

Fiscal Percentage of 
Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 
6/30/10 $192,373 17% $160,278
6/30/11 200,387 23% 313,781
6/30/12 187,650 27% 450,919

 
 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 

The funded status of the plan as June 30, 2012, the Plan’s most recent actuarial valuation date, was as 
follows: 
 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 1,862,711$        
Actuarial value of Plan assets -                         
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 1,862,711$        
Funded ratio (actuarial value of Plan assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active Plan participants) 1,164,087$        
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 160.0%
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12. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS, Continued  
 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of expected benefit payments 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent 
with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 

The plan's most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2012. In that valuation, the 
Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Cost Method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4 percent 
investment rate (net of administrative expense) and an annual health care cost trend rate of 8 percent to 
better reflect expectations of average premium increases over the next several years. The City's 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over 
30 years. The remaining amortization period as of July 1, 2012, was 30 years. 
 
13. SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY 
 
On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 (“the Bill”) that 
provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action 
impacted the reporting entity of the City of Buellton that previously had reported a redevelopment 
agency within the reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit. 
 
The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of 
local government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until they are 
distributed to other units of state and local government. On June 4, 2012, the City Council elected to 
become the Successor Agency for the former redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill as part 
of City resolution number 12-02. 
 
After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of 
California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the control of a 
newly established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in 
existence at the date of dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were 
subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments). 
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13. SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY, Continued 
 

In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary 
to pay the estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former 
redevelopment agency until all enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been 
paid in full and all assets have been liquidated. 
 
The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of any transfers 
of assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011. 
If the public body that received such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the 
expenditure or encumbrance of those assets, the State Controller is required to order the available 
assets to be transferred to the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill. 
 
Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the former 
redevelopment agency due to the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the successor 
agency trust under the requirements of the Bill. The City’s position on this issue is not a position of 
settled law and there is considerable legal uncertainty regarding this issue. It is reasonably possible 
that a legal determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would 
resolve this issue unfavorably to the City. 
 
In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme Court on 
December 29, 2011) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased 
to operate as a legal entity as of February 1, 2012. Prior to that date, the final seven months of the 
activity of the redevelopment agency continued to be reported in the governmental funds of the City 
included in the fund financial statements as Former Redevelopment Agency Community Development 
Fund. 
 
After the date of dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are 
reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City. The 
transfer of the assets and liabilities of the former redevelopment agency as of February 1, 2012 
(effectively the same date as January 31, 2012) from governmental funds of the City to fiduciary funds 
was reported in the governmental funds as an extraordinary loss (or gain) in the governmental fund 
financial statements. The receipt of these assets and liabilities as of January 31, 2012 was reported in 
the private-purpose trust fund as an extraordinary gain (or loss). 
 
Because of the different measurement focus of the governmental funds (current financial resources 
measurement focus) and the measurement focus of the trust funds (economic resources measurement 
focus), the extraordinary loss (gain) recognized in the governmental funds was not the same amount as 
the extraordinary gain (loss) that was recognized in the fiduciary fund financial statements. 
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13. SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY, Continued 
 

The difference between the extraordinary loss recognized in the fund financial statements and the 
extraordinary gain recognized in the fiduciary fund financial statements is reconciled as follows: 
 
 

Total extraordinary loss reported in governmental funds – increase to net assets 
of the Successor Agency Trust Fund  
  

 
 $291,281 

No adjustments for change to accounting basis  
  
Net increase to net assets of the Successor Agency Trust Fund as a result of 
initial transfers (equal to amount of extraordinary loss reported in the 
government-wide financial statements of the City) 
 

 
 
$291,281  

 

 
Investment in Land and Building Held for Resale – consists of a commercial condominium 
purchased by the Former Redevelopment Agency for the Visitor’s Bureau headquarters. The purchase 
cost was $345,683 and represents the value received for disposition by the Successor Agency. 
 
 
14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 
The City is a party to claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. The City’s 
management and legal council are of the opinion that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from these 
claims will not have material adverse impact on the financial position of the City. The City participates 
in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to program 
compliance audits by the grantors. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by 
the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, 
to be immaterial. 
 
15. JOINT OPERATING AGREEMENTS 

 
Water operations – The Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) is a Joint Power Authority authorized 
to finance, develop, operate, and maintain the Mission Hills and Santa Ynez extension to the Coastal 
Branch Phase II Extension of the California aqueduct of the State water project. Each member has 
entered into a water supply agreement with the Authority to pay their proportionate share of the project 
costs from local water revenues. These costs are reported in the Water Fund as operations and 
maintenance. 
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16. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession 
Arrangements.” The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues 
related to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-public 
partnership. The implementation of this Statement did not have an effect on these financial statements. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus.” The objective of 
this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity. The 
requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting 
requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis—for State and Local Governments, were amended to better meet user needs and to address 
reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those Statements. The City will implement 
this Statement in fiscal year 2012-13. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 789 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.” The objective of 
this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and 
financial reporting guidance that is included in FASB and AICPA pronouncements issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The 
implementation of this Statement did not have an effect on these financial statements. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.” This Statement provides financial reporting 
guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 
4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined those elements as a consumption of net 
assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets 
by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. Previous financial 
reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are 
distinct from assets and liabilities. The City will implement this Statement in Fiscal year 2012-13. 

 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 64, “Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting 
Termination Provisions.” The objective of this Statement is to clarify whether an effective hedging 
relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap counterparty’s credit 
support provider. This Statement sets forth criteria that establish when the effective hedging 
relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. The implementation of this 
Statement did not have an effect on these financial statements. 
 
The GASB has issued Statement No. 65, “Item Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.” This 
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows 
of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities. The City will implement this Statement in Fiscal year 
2012-13. 
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16. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, Continued 
 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 66, “Technical Corrections – 2012”. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting 
entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, 
Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The implementation of this Statement did not have an effect on 
these financial statements. 
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Fund Type

Housing Fund

Traffic Mitigation Fund

Gas Tax Fund

Measure A Fund

Measure D Fund

Local Transportation Fund

Transportation Planning Fund

Former Redevelopment Agency

Low & Moderate Fund

Former Redevelopment

 Agency Capital Projects Fund

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Description

Accounts for funds used to maintain the City's supply of 
affordable housing.

Accounts for funds received and expended for street 
maintenance as defined in the Streets and Highway Code.

Accounts for traffic congestion relief funds received for street 
purposes.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures used for local 
transportation projects.

Accounts for funds used in the planning for transportation 
projects.

Accounts for tax increment revenues received and expended 
for low/moderate income housing purposes. 

Accounts for tax increment revenues received and expended 
for Redevelopment capital projects.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of Measure A funds.

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of Measure D funds.
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City of Buellton, California
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

Redevelopment Non-major Funds

Special Agency Totals

Revenue Capital Projects

Funds Fund 2012

ASSETS

Cash and investments 1,750,132$             -$                            1,750,132$             
Restricted cash and investments -                              -                              -                              

Receivables:

Accounts 108,348                  -                              108,348                  

Interest 8,671                      -                              8,671                      

Intergovernmental -                              -                              -                              

Loans/Notes receivable 200,000                  -                              200,000                  
Due from other funds 192                         -                              192                         
Advances to other funds -                              -                              -                              

Other assets -                              -                              -                              

Total assets 2,067,343$             -$                            2,067,343$             

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 23,498$                  -$                            23,498$                  

Accrued wages -                              -                              -                              
Due to other funds 272,642                  -                              272,642                  
Deferred revenue -                              -                              -                              
Advances from other funds       -                              -                              -                              

Total liabilities 296,140                  -                              296,140                  

Fund Balances (Deficits):
Nonspendable

Prepaid items -                              -                              -                              
Loans/Notes receivable 200,000                  -                              200,000                  

Restricted 1,848,781               -                              1,848,781               
Committed -                              -                              -                              
Assigned -                              -                              -                              

Unassigned (Deficit) (277,578)                 -                              (277,578)                 

Total fund balances (deficits)      1,771,203               -                              1,771,203               

Total liabilities and fund balances       2,067,343$             -$                            2,067,343$             

Governmental Funds

76
Page 181 of 309



City of Buellton, California
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-major Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Redevelopment Non-major Funds
Special Agency Totals

Revenue Capital Projects
Funds Fund 2012

REVENUES:
Taxes -$                            -$                            -$                            
Licenses, permits and fees -                              -                              -                              
Intergovernmental 1,060,792               -                              1,060,792               
Charges for services -                              -                              -                              
Fines and forfeitures -                              -                              -                              
Use of money and property 30,766                    -                              30,766                    
Other -                              -                              -                              

Total revenues 1,091,558               -                              1,091,558               

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                              -                              -                              
Community development -                              143,523 143,523                  
Culture and leisure -                              -                              -                              
Public safety -                              -                              -                              
Public works 334,822                  -                              334,822                  

Capital outlay 1,292,930               35,066 1,327,996               

Debt service:

Principal -                              -                              -                              

Interest and fiscal charges -                              -                              -                              

Total expenditures 1,627,752               178,589                  1,806,341               

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (536,194)                 (178,589)                 (714,783)                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Extraordinary gain (loss) on dissolution of redevelopment (1,721,550)              173,734 (1,547,816)              

Transfers in -                              -                              -                              

Transfers out -                              -                              -                              

Total other financing

sources (uses) (1,721,550)              173,734                  (1,547,816)              

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING (USES) (2,257,744)              (4,855)                     (2,262,599)              

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):
Beginning of year 4,028,947               4,855 4,033,802               

End of year 1,771,203$             -$                            1,771,203$             

Governmental Funds
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City of Buellton, California
Combining Balance Sheet

Non-major Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2012

Traffic Gas
Housing Mitigation Tax Measure A

Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS

Cash and investments 443,568$        -$                    855,751$         290,306$        
Restricted cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts -                     -                     85,665 22,452
Interest 7,687 12 721 170
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                      -                      
Loans/Notes receivable 200,000 -                     -                      -                      

Due from other funds -                     -                     -                      -                      

Total assets 651,255$        12$                 942,137$         312,928$        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable -$                    -$                    1,443$             9,765$            
Due to other funds -                     157,717         -                      -                      

Total liabilities -                     157,717         1,443              9,765              

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:

Note receivable 200,000         -                     -                      -                      
Restricted 451,255 -                     940,694 303,163
Unassigned (deficit) -                     (157,705)        -                      -                      

Total fund balances 651,255         (157,705)        940,694          303,163          

Total liabilities and fund balances 651,255$        12$                 942,137$         312,928$        

Special Revenue Funds
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Former
Redevelopment Total

Local Transportation Agency Non-major
Measure D Transportation Planning Low & Special Revenue

Fund Fund Fund Moderate Fund Funds

55,689$           104,818$         -$                    -$                    1,750,132$        
-                        

-                       231 -                      -                     108,348            
-                       81 -                      -                     8,671                
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                        
-                       -                       -                      -                     200,000            

192                  -                       -                      -                     192                   

55,881$           105,130$         -$                    -$                    2,067,343$        

-$                     7,342$             4,948$             -$                    23,498$             
-                       -                       114,925           -                     272,642            

-                       7,342               119,873           -                     296,140            

-                       -                       -                      -                     200,000            
55,881             97,788 -                      -                     1,848,781         

-                       -                       (119,873)          -                     (277,578)           

55,881             97,788             (119,873)          -                     1,771,203         

55,881$           105,130$         -$                    -$                    2,067,343$        

Special Revenue Funds
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City of Buellton, California
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Special Revenue Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Traffic Gas
Housing Mitigation Tax Measure A

Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Taxes -$                    -$                    -$                     -$                    
Licenses, permits, and fees -                     -                     -                       -                     
Intergovernmental -                     5,200 722,444 328,814
Charges for services -                     -                     -                       -                     
Fines and forfeitures -                     -                     -                       -                     
Use of money and property 6,792 49 18,853 740
Other -                     -                     -                       -                     

Total revenues 6,792             5,249             741,297           329,554         

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                     -                     -                       -                     
Community development -                     -                     -                       -                     
Culture and leisure -                     -                     -                       -                     
Public safety -                     -                     -                       -                     
Public works -                     -                     83,483 -                     

Capital outlay -                     -                     988,583 304,347
Debt service:

Principal -                     -                     -                       -                     
Interest and fiscal charges -                     -                     -                       -                      

Total expenditures -                     -                     1,072,066        304,347         

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 6,792             5,249             (330,769)          25,207           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Extraordinary gain (loss) on dissolution of redevelopment -                     -                     -                       -                     

Total other financing
sources and uses -                     -                     -                       -                     

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING (USES) 6,792             5,249             (330,769)          25,207           

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year 644,463 (162,954) 1,271,463 277,956

End of year 651,255$        (157,705)$       940,694$         303,163$        

Special Revenue Funds
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Former 
Redevelopment Total

Local Transportation Agency Low & Non-major
Measure D Transportation Planning Moderate Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

-$                     -$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     
-                       4,334 -                      -                     1,060,792      
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     

177 416 -                      3,739 30,766
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     

177                  4,750               -                      3,739             1,091,558      

-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     

133,109 76,575 41,655 -                     334,822         
-                       -                       -                      -                     1,292,930      

-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     
-                       -                       -                      -                     -                     

133,109           76,575             41,655             -                     1,627,752      

(132,932)          (71,825)            (41,655)            3,739             (536,194)        

-                       -                       -                      (1,721,550)     (1,721,550)     

-                       -                       -                      (1,721,550)     (1,721,550)     

(132,932)          (71,825)            (41,655)            (1,717,811)     (2,257,744)     

188,813           169,613 (78,218) 1,717,811      4,028,947      

55,881$           97,788$           (119,873)$        -$                    1,771,203$     

Special Revenue Funds
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
Housing Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures 2,000$              2,000$              -$                      (2,000)$             

Use of money and property 4,500                4,500                6,792                2,292                

Total revenues 6,500                6,500                6,792                292                   

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Community development -                        -                        -                        -                        

Capital outlay -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total expenditures -                        -                        -                        -                        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES 6,500                6,500                6,792                292                   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances 6,500                6,500                6,792                292                   

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 644,463            644,463            644,463 -                        

End of year 650,963$          650,963$          651,255$          292$                 

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
Traffic Mitigation Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental -$                      -$                      5,200$              5,200$              

Use of money and property -                        -                        49                     49                     

Total revenues -                        -                        5,249                5,249                

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works -                        -                        -                        -                        

Capital outlay -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total expenditures -                        -                        -                        -                        

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES -                        -                        5,249                5,249                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances -                        -                        5,249                5,249                

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year (162,954)           (162,954)           (162,954)           -                        

End of year (162,954)$         (162,954)$         (157,705)$         5,249$              

Budgeted Amounts

83
Page 188 of 309



City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 197,124$          197,124$          722,444$          525,320$          

Use of money and property 5,000                5,000                18,853              13,853              

Total revenues 202,124            202,124            741,297            539,173            

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works 120,813 120,813 83,483 37,330              

Capital outlay 390,915 390,915 988,583 (597,668)           

Total expenditures 511,728            511,728            1,072,066         (560,338)           

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (309,604)           (309,604)           (330,769)           (21,165)             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances (309,604)           (309,604)           (330,769)           (21,165)             

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 1,271,463         1,271,463         1,271,463 -                        

End of year 961,859$          961,859$          940,694$          (21,165)$           

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
Measure A Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 282,825$          282,825$          328,814$          45,989$            

Use of money and property 450                   450                   740                   290                   

Total revenues 283,275            283,275            329,554            46,279              

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works -                        -                        -                        -                        

Capital outlay 575,524 575,524 304,347 271,177            

Total expenditures 575,524            575,524            304,347            271,177            

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (292,249)           (292,249)           25,207              317,456            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances (292,249)           (292,249)           25,207              317,456            

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 277,956            277,956            277,956 -                        

End of year (14,293)$           (14,293)$           303,163$          317,456$          

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
Measure D Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Use of money and property -                        -                        177                   177                   

Total revenues -                        -                        177                   177                   

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works -                        130,000 133,109 (3,109)               

Total expenditures -                        130,000            133,109            (3,109)               

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES -                        (130,000)           (132,932)           (2,932)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances -                        (130,000)           (132,932)           (2,932)               

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 188,813            188,813            188,813            -                        

End of year 188,813$          58,813$            55,881$            (2,932)$             

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
Local Transportation Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 2,500$              2,500$              4,334$              1,834$              

Use of money and property 500                   500                   415                   (85)                    

Total revenues 3,000                3,000                4,749                1,749                

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works 75,000 75,000 76,575 (1,575)               

Capital outlay 6,500 6,500 -                        6,500                

Total expenditures 81,500              81,500              76,575              4,925                

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (78,500)             (78,500)             (71,826)             6,674                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances (78,500)             (78,500)             (71,826)             6,674                

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 169,614            169,614            169,614 -                        

End of year 91,114$            91,114$            97,788$            6,674$              

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
Transportation Planning Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Total revenues -                        -                        -                        -                        

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works 50,000 50,000 41,655 8,345                

Total expenditures 50,000              50,000              41,655              8,345                

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (50,000)             (50,000)             (41,655)             8,345                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        

Transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances (50,000)             (50,000)             (41,655)             8,345                

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year (78,218)             (78,218)             (78,218)             -                        

End of year (128,218)$         (128,218)$         (119,873)$         8,345$              

Budgeted Amounts
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  - Budget to Actual
RDA Low and Moderate Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Variance w/Final

Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Taxes 200,000$          200,000$          -$                      (200,000)$         

Use of money and property 5,000                5,000                3,739                (1,261)               

Total revenues 205,000            205,000            3,739                (201,261)           

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Community development 29,000 29,000 -                        29,000              

Total expenditures 29,000              29,000              -                        29,000              

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES 176,000            176,000            3,739                (172,261)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Extraordinary gain (loss) on dissolution of 
redevelopment -                        -                        (1,721,550)        (1,721,550)        

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        -                        (1,721,550)        (1,721,550)        

Net change in fund balances 176,000            176,000            (1,717,811)        (1,893,811)        

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 1,717,811         1,717,811         1,717,811         -                        

End of year 1,893,811$       1,893,811$       -$                      (1,893,811)$      

Budgeted Amounts
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Fund Type

Private Purpose Trust Funds

Successor Agency - Non-Housing

Successor Agency - Housing

Agency Funds

Deposits Agency Fund

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Description

This fund accounts for various deposits that are held on 
behalf of the City for various projects or programs

Accounts for funds collected and disbursed for the 
dissolution of the former Buellton Redevelopment 
Agency related to Administration and Retirement of 
enforceable obligations.

Accounts for funds collected and disbursed for the 
dissolution of the former Buellton Redevelopment 
Agency's housing related debts.
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City of Buellton, California
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Private Purpose Trust Funds

June 30, 2012

Non-Housing Housing Totals
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 163,496$       1,721,550$     1,885,046$    
Receivables:

Accounts 91,926          -                     91,926          
Interest 122               1,191 1,313            

Prepaids 3,866            -                     3,866            
Total current assets 259,410        1,722,741      1,982,151     

Noncurrent Assets
Investment in land and building held for resale 345,683 -                     345,683        

Total noncurrent assets: 345,683        -                     345,683        

Total assets 605,093$        1,722,741$     2,327,834$     

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 280,650$       -$                    280,650$       

Total current liabilities: 280,650        -                     280,650        
Noncurrent liabilities:

Advances from City of Buellton General Fund 1,876,208     -                     1,876,208     
Noncurrent liabilities 1,876,208     -                     1,876,208     

Total liabilities 2,156,858     -                     2,156,858     

Net Assets (Deficit)
Net assets held in trust for
Redevelopment Dissolution (1,551,765)   1,722,741      170,976        

Total liabilities and net assets 605,093$        1,722,741$     2,327,834$     

Successor Agency
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City of Buellton, California
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Private Purpose Trust Funds

June 30, 2012

Non-Housing Housing Totals
ADDITIONS:

Property taxes 94,926$         -$                    94,926$         
Investment earnings 275 1,191 1,466            
Net assets received upon dissolution of Redevelopment Agency (1,430,269)   1,721,550 291,281        

Total additions: (1,335,068)   1,722,741      387,673        

DEDUCTIONS:

Community development 216,697 -                     216,697        

Total deductions: 216,697        -                     216,697        

CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS (1,551,765)   1,722,741      170,976        

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year -                    -                     -                    
End of year (1,551,765)$  1,722,741$     170,976$       

Successor Agency
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Deposits Agency Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2012

2012

ASSETS

Cash and investments 143,242$                     

Total assets 143,242$                     

LIABILITIES

Refundable deposits 143,242$                     

Total liabilities 143,242$                     
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City of Buellton, California
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Deposits Agency Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Balance Balance

July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and investments 139,956$             3,286$                 -$                         143,242$             

Total assets 139,956$             3,286$                 -$                         143,242$             

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3,258$                 -$                         (3,258)$                -$                         

Refundable deposits 136,698               6,544                   -                           143,242               

Total liabilities 139,956$             6,544$                 (3,258)$                143,242$             
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7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 ● phone (925) 556-6200 ● fax: (510) 217-5930 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
of the City of Buellton 
Buellton, California 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Buellton, 
California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated 
June 10, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined previously. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within 
the entity, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

 

       ]]TVcT? \ÇvA 
June 10, 2013                      JJACPA, Inc. 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:      7 
 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:   Annette Muñoz, Finance Director 
  Marc Bierdzinski, Interim City Manager 
 
Meeting Date:  June 27, 2013 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 13-11 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the 

City of Buellton, California, Adopting the Fiscal Year 2013-14 
Budget” 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
Based upon the review and comments of the City Council to the preliminary Fiscal Year 
2013-14 Budget, attached for consideration and adoption is the final Fiscal Year 2013-14 
Budget for the City of Buellton.  Additions, changes and deletions may still be made at the 
June 27 meeting and would be reflected in the final printed budget. 
 
Based on direction from the City Council on June 13, the following information has been 
changed: 
 
1. The travel/training expenditure for the city manager department, public works 

department, sewer fund, and water fund were each decreased $1,000 for a total of 
$4,000. 

2. The $5,000 stipend is no longer being allocated to the Criterium.    
3. The expenditure for the library was increased by $9,000 (the increased funding to be 

reviewed and allocated mid-year).  
 
The parks function and recreation function are still shown together in Attachment 1 (but 
noted in different colors). These budget functions will be separated in the final budget 
document that is printed. The final budget document will also include a Capital Project 
Fund which will allow for better tracking of capital fund projects. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 

The final fiscal impact will be determined as a result of any additions, changes, or deletions 
to the Budget made by the Council.   
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Third Review of FY 2013-14                         Page 2 June 27, 2013 
Preliminary City Budget 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the City Council consider the approval and adoption of Resolution No. 13-11 - “A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, California, Adopting the Fiscal Year 
2013-14 Budget” 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

Resolution No. 13-11 
Attachment 1 – Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-14 City Budget 
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RESOLUTION NO. 13-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF BUELLTON, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2013-14 BUDGET 

 
 
I. THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUELLTON DOES HEREBY FIND 

AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

A. City staff has presented a budget to the City Council which recognizes those 
known sources of City income and the expenses anticipated during Fiscal Year 
2013-14. 

 
B. The City Council has reviewed and studied the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal 

Year 2013-14. 
 
II. NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUELLTON 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

A. The City Council hereby adopts the final Fiscal Year 2013-14 Budget for the City 
of Buellton in those amounts which are hereby appropriated for the purposes as 
described therein. 

 
B. That a true and correct copy of the final Fiscal Year 2013-14 Budget will be on 

file in the Office of the City Clerk. 
 

C. That the City Manager can approve budget transfers within funds, providing it has 
no impact on fund balance and the Council can amend this Budget at any time. In 
addition, the City Council will review the Budget mid-year at the second meeting 
in January 2014. 

 
D. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 27th day of June, 2013. 
 
 

________________________________ 
                           Judith Dale 

 Mayor  
 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________  
Linda Reid 
City Clerk 
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